DATE:

TO:

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

GREG COX
First District

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

Second District

PAM SLATER-PRICE
Third District

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT RON ROBERTS

Fourth District

BILL HORN
Fifth District

June 24, 2009

San Diego County Air Pollution Control Board

SUBJECT: NOTICED PUBLIC HEARING - REPEAL SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc OF

REGULATION X AND ADOPT BY REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW
SOURCE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc FOR
BOILERS (District: All)

SUMMARY:

Overview

New Source Performance Standards are periodically issued by the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency and apply throughout the country to specified new, modified, and
reconstructed stationary sources of air pollution such as boilers, which burn fuel to heat
water or produce steam for use in space heating, electricity generation and industrial
processes. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency may delegate authority for
administering and enforcing a federal New Source Performance Standard to State or
local air agencies. Delegated authority provides a single, local point of reference for air
pollution control requirements relating to a New Source Performance Standard and
assists local businesses in streamlining their communication.

The Air Pollution Control District’s Regulation X contains federal New Source
Performance Standards that were locally adopted and for which delegation was
received. Periodic amendments to Regulation X are necessary to incorporate new or
amended federal New Source Performance Standards by reference. Adoption by the
Air Pollution Control Board is requested for proposed amendments to Regulation X to
repeal outdated versions and adopt, by reference, current federal versions of New
Source Performance Subparts D, Da, Db, and Dc. These federal requirements each
apply to specific boilers according to their size, purpose, and date of construction. They
also establish air pollutant emission limits, require monitoring of emission rates and
fuel usage, specify test methods and procedures, and require record keeping and
reporting.

The Air Pollution Control District proposes seeking delegation from the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency to locally administer and enforce updated Subparts
D, Da, Db, and Dc following their local adoption by reference. The updated Subparts
result in no change in requirements for boilers operating in San Diego County because
these boilers are already subject to equivalent or more stringent requirements of other



SUBJECT: REPEAL SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc OF REGULATION X AND ADOPT BY
REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc FOR BOILERS (District: All)

Air Pollution Control District rules that were adopted pursuant to State requirements.

Recommendation(s)

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL OFFICER

1. Find that it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the adoption
of the proposed amendments to Regulation X may have a significant effect on the
environment, and the adoption of those proposed amendments is exempt from the
provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to California
Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15061(b)(3).

2. Adopt the resolution titled Resolution Repealing Existing Regulation X Subpart D,
Da, Db, Dc and Adopting by Reference Federal New Source Performance Standard
Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc to Regulation X of the Rules and Regulations of the San
Diego County Air Pollution Control District.

3. Direct the Air Pollution Control Officer to request delegation from the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency to locally implement and enforce current federal
Subparts D, Da, Db, and Dc.

Fiscal Impact

The recommended actions will have no fiscal impact on the Air Pollution Control
District. Once delegated authority is received from the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency, the amendments will be implemented and enforced locally using existing
staffing and funding identified in the Air Pollution Control District’s Operational Plan.

Business Impact Statement

Federal delegation of authority to locally implement and enforce a New Source
Performance Standard is preferred by affected businesses. Businesses can continue to
work with the Air Pollution Control District to resolve any compliance issues that may
arise rather than dealing directly with the federal agency, thereby streamlining
communication.

The federal amendments to Subparts D, Da, Db, and Dc result in no change in
requirements for boilers operating in San Diego County because these boilers are
already subject to equivalent or more stringent requirements of other Air Pollution
Control District rules adopted pursuant to State requirements. Furthermore, the
updated versions of federal Subparts D, Da, Db, and Dc are currently applicable and
enforceable by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The recommended actions
will allow the Air Pollution Control District to receive delegation of authority to
administer and enforce these updated federal requirements.

Advisory Board Statement



SUBJECT: REPEAL SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc OF REGULATION X AND ADOPT BY
REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc FOR BOILERS (District: All)

There was no quorum at the Air Pollution Control Advisory Committee meeting on
May 13, 2009. Members present expressed support of the Air Pollution Control
District’s recommendations.

BACKGROUND:

Federal New Source Performance Standards (NSPSs) are regulations that establish minimum air
pollution control standards for specific industries. They are issued by the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) as Subparts of Title 40, Chapter 1, Part 60, of the Code of Federal
Regulations and apply uniformly throughout the country. EPA can enforce an NSPS, but often
delegates primary implementation and enforcement authority to state and local air pollution
control agencies.

Subparts D, Da, Db, and Dc each apply to specific boilers, according to their size, purpose, and
date of construction. These Subparts establish air pollutant emission limits, require monitoring
of emission rates and fuel usage, specify test methods and procedures, and require recordkeeping
and reporting.

Subpart D applies to large boilers used in steam or electricity production that were built or
modified between August 17, 1971, and September 18, 1978, while Subpart Da applies to boilers
used in electricity production that were built or modified thereafter. Subpart Db applies to large
boilers used industrial, commercial, or institutional purposes that were built or modified after
June 19, 1984, while Subpart Dc applies to small boilers used for such purposes and built or
modified after June 9, 1989.

Local adoption of these Subparts, by reference, last occurred on October 17, 2001 (APCB #3,
Subparts D and Da), April 25, 2001 (APCB #1, Subpart Db), and August 13, 1997 (APCB #1,
Subpart Dc). Delegation of authority to implement and enforce these Subparts was received
from EPA subsequent to their local adoption.

EPA has since amended each Subpart as necessary to clarify or add definitions, add exemptions,
update testing methods, tighten emission standards, simplify record keeping and reporting
requirements, or establish monitoring alternatives. Consequently, the existing Regulation X
versions of these Subparts are now outdated. The District proposes to repeal the existing
versions of Subparts D, Da, Db, and Dc from Regulation X and adopt, by reference, the current
federal versions.

If Subparts D, Da, Db, and Dc are adopted by reference the District will then petition EPA for
delegation of implementation and enforcement authority. Routine approval by EPA is
anticipated. Delegation will allow for more efficient local implementation of the Subparts, both
for the affected facilities and the District.

A public workshop was held on April 16, 2009. No issues were raised and there was no
opposition to the proposed actions.



SUBJECT: REPEAL SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc OF REGULATION X AND ADOPT BY
REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc FOR BOILERS (District: All)

Compliance with Board Policy on Adopting New Rules

On February 2, 1993 (APCB #2), the Board directed that, with the exception of a regulation
requested by business or a regulation for which a socioeconomic impact assessment is not
required, no new or revised regulation shall be implemented unless specifically required by
federal or State law. The proposed adoption of federal Subparts D, Da, Db, and Dc is consistent
with this Board directive.

Environmental Statement

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires an environmental review for certain
actions. The District has conducted a preliminary review of whether CEQA applies to amending
Regulation X of the District Rules and Regulations to update federal Subparts D, Da, Db, and
Dc. Because the affected sources are already subject to these updated federal regulations, it is
certain there is no possibility that this action may have a significant adverse effect on the
environment. Therefore, the adoption of amendments to Regulation X is exempt from the
provisions of CEQA pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15061(b)(3).

Linkage to the County of San Diego’s Strategic Plan

The County’s five-year strategic plan includes an Environment Strategic Initiative with an
objective to reduce environmental risk through regulation, intergovernmental collaboration, and
the leveraging of public and private resources. Local adoption and enforcement of federal
Subparts D, Da, Db, and Dc on sources that may emit sizeable amounts of harmful emissions
fulfills the objective to restore air quality, thus protecting public health and the environment.

Respectfully submitted,

e NN S~ Aot te

CHANDEA L. WALLAR . ROBERT KARD
Deputy Chief Administrative Officer Air Pollution Control Officer



SUBJECT: REPEAL SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc OF REGULATION X AND ADOPT BY
REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc FOR BOILERS (District: All)

ATTACHMENT(S)

Attachment A - Resolution Repealing Existing Regulation X Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc and
Adopting By Reference Federal New Source Performance Standard (NSPS)
Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc to Regulation X of the Rules and Regulations of the San
Diego County Air Pollution Control District.

Attachment B - Change Copy of Regulation X
Attachment C - Federal New Source Performance Standard Subparts D, Da, Db, and Dc

Attachment D - Workshop Report



SUBJECT: REPEAL SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc OF REGULATION X AND ADOPT BY
REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc FOR BOILERS (District: All)

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET

CONCURRENCE(S)

COUNTY COUNSEL REVIEW [X]Yes

Written disclosure per County Charter

§1000.1 required? [l Yes [X]No
GROUP/AGENCY FINANCE DIRECTOR [1 Yes [XIN/A
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER [1 Yes [XIN/A

Requires Four Votes [] Yes [X]No
GROUP/AGENCY INFORMATION

TECHNOLOGY DIRECTOR [1 Yes [XIN/A
COUNTY TECHNOLOGY OFFICE [1 Yes [XIN/A
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES [1 Yes [XIN/A

Other Concurrence(s): N/A

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: Air Pollution Control District, County of San Diego

CONTACT PERSON(S):

ROBERT J. KARD

Name Name
(858) 586-2700

Phone Phone
(858) 586-2701

Fax Fax
0-176

Mail Station Mail Station
Robert.Kard@sdcounty.ca.gov

E-mail E-mail

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE:

ROBERT J. KARD
Air Pollution Control Officer



SUBJECT: REPEAL SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc OF REGULATION X AND ADOPT BY
REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc FOR BOILERS (District: All)

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION SHEET
(continued)

PREVIOUS RELEVANT BOARD ACTIONS:

October 17, 2001 (APCB 3), Amended Regulation X to update NSPS Subparts D and Da;
April 25, 2001 (APCB 1), Amended Regulation X to update NSPS Subpart Db;

August 13, 1997 (APCB 1), Amended Regulation X to update NSPS Subpart Dc;

February 2, 1993 (APCB 2), Delayed implementation of particular new or revised regulations.

BOARD POLICIES APPLICABLE:
N/A

BOARD POLICY STATEMENTS:
N/A

CONTRACT AND/OR REQUISITION NUMBER(S):
N/A



Resolution No. 09-112 ATTACHMENT A

06/24/09 (AP1)
Re Rules and Regulations of the)
Air Pollution Control District . .)

of San Diego County . ....... )

RESOLUTION REPEALING EXISTING REGULATION X SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, D¢
AND ADOPTING BY REFERENCE FEDERAL NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE
STANDARD (NSPS) SUBPARTS D, Da, Db, Dc TO
REGULATION X OF THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
SAN DIEGO COUNTY AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT

On motion of Member _Cox , seconded by Member _Roberts ,
the following resolution is adopted: '

WHEREAS, the San Diego County Air Pollution Control Board, pursuant to Section 40702
of the Health and Safety Code, adopted Rules and Regulations of the Air Pollution Control
District of San Diego County; and - :

WHEREAS, said Board now desires to amend said Rules and Regulations; and

WHEREAS, notice has been given and a public hearing has been had relating to the
amendment of said Rules and Regulations pursuant to Section 40725 of the Health and Safety Code;
and :

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 40727 of the Health and Safety Code, the San Diego County
Air Pollution Control Board makes the following findings: '

(1) (Necessity) The repeal of existing Regulation X Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc and
adoption by reference of federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc to Regulation X is
necessary in order to receive delegation from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency to
implement and enforce federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc, as required pursuant to
the Section 105 grant from U.S. Environmental Protection Agency to the Air Pollution
Control District;

(2) (Authority) The repeal of existing Regulation X Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc and
adoption by reference of federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc to Regulation X is
authorized by Health and Safety Code section 40702; .

(3) (Clarity) Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc can be easily understood by
persons directly affected by them;

(4) (Consistency) The repeal of existing Regulation X Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc
and adoption by reference of federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc to Regulation X
merely incorporates by reference the federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc adopted
pursuant to Section 111 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7411), and federal NSPS
Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc align with, and not in conflict with or contrary to, existing
statutes, court decisions, and State and federal regulations;

Resolution Regulation X — Subparts D, Da, Db & Dc A-1
06/24/09



(5) (Non-duplication) The repeal of existing Regulation X Subparts D, Da, Db and
Dc and adoption by reference of federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc to Regulation X
. will not duplicate existing district or federal requirements, but merely incorporates the
federal NSPS Subparts;

(6) (Reference) The repeal of existing Regulation X Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc and
adoption by reference of federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc to Regulation X is
necessary to receive delegation from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency to
implement and enforce federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc in accordance with Clean
Air Act section 111 (42 U.S.C. § 7411); and

WHEREAS, the Air Pollution Control Board further finds that an analysis of existing
requirements applicable to the source or category is not required by Section 40727.2 of the
Health and Safety Code because the proposed addition of Subparts D, Da, Db and D¢ does not
impose new or more stringent requirements; and

WHEREAS, the Air Pollution Control Board further finds pursuant to Health and Safety
Code section 40001 that the addition by reference of federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc is
required to receive delegation to implement the federal NSPS and will promote the attainment of
ambient air quality standards; and

WHEREAS, the Air Pollution Control Board further finds that an assessment of
socioeconomic impacts is not required by Health and Safety Code section 40728.5 for addition
by reference of federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db and Dc because it will not significantly affect
air quality or emission limitations,

NOW THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the San Diego County Air
Pollution Control Board that the Rules and Regulations of the Air Pollution Control District of
San Diego County be and hereby are amended as follows:

The proposed amendment to the Preamble to Regulation X modifying Subparts D, Da, Db, and Dc by
reference is to read as follows:

REGULATION X. STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW
STATIONARY SOURCES (NSPS) (Rev. Effective (date of adoption))

The provisions of Part 60, Chapter I, Title 40, of the Code of Federal Regulations, (40 CFR 60),
applicable to the subparts listed in this Regulation are hereby adopted by reference on the date shown
and made part of the Air Pollution Control District Rules and Regulations. Whenever any source is
subject to more than one rule, regulation, provision, or requirement relating to the control of any air
contaminant, in cases of conflict or duplication the most stringent rule, regulation, provision, or
requirement shall apply.

All new sources of air pollution and all modified or reconstructed sources of air pollution shall

comply with the applicable standards, criteria, and requirements set forth herein. For the purpose of
this Regulation, the word “Administrator” as used in 40 CFR 60 shall mean the Air Pollution Control

Resolution Regulation X — Subparts GG and KKKK _ A-2



Officer of the San Diego County Air Pollution Control District, except that the Air Pollution Control
Officer shall not be empowered to approve alternate test methods, alternate standards or work
practices. Other deviations, if any, from the provisions of 40 CFR 60 which are adopted by the Air

Pollution Control Board are noted in the reference to the affected Subpart.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) retains concurrent enforcement authority for these
standards pursuant to Section 113 of the federal Clean Air Act, as amended, if the EPA Administrator
desires to exercise it, including those not yet adopted by the Air Pollution Control District.

The addition of federal Subparts by reference to Regulation X shall take effect and be in force on
the date of delegation of enforcement authority to the San Diego County Air Pollution Control

District by EPA.

SUBPART D
40CFR60.40-46

SUBPART Da

40CFR60.40a-52a

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR FOSSIL-FUEL-FIRED
STEAM GENERATORS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION IS
COMMENCED AFTER AUGUST 17, 1971

FR Citation

39 FR 20791, June 14, 1974
40 FR 2803, Jan. 16, 1975
40 FR 46256, Oct. 6, 1975
41 FR 51398, Nov. 22, 1976
42 FR 37936, July 25, 1977
42 FR 61537, Dec. 5, 1977
43 FR 9278, Mar. 7, 1978
44 FR 33612, June 17, 1979
44 FR 76787, Dec. 28, 1979
45 FR 36077, May 29, 1980

‘45 FR 47146, July 14, 1980

46 FR 57498, Nov. 24, 198]
48 FR 3736, Jan. 27, 1983

51 FR 42797, Nov. 25, 1986 .

52 FR 28954, Aug. 4, 1987
54 FR 6662, Feb. 14, 1989
54 FR 21344, May 17, 1989
55 FR 5212, Feb. 14, 1990
60 FR 65415, Dec. 19, 1995
61 FR 49976, Sept. 24, 1996
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
72 FR 32717, June 13, 2007
74 FR 5077, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5078, Jan. 28, 2009

Adoption Date
October 17, 2001

October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001

‘October 17, 2001

October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17,2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR ELECTRIC UTILITY
STEAM GENERATING UNITS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION

IS COMMENCED AFTER SEPTEMBER 18, 1978
FR Citation Adoption Date

44 FR 33613, June 11, 1979 October 17, 2001

48 F4 3737, Jan. 27, 1983 October 17, 2001

54 FR 6663, Feb. 14, 1989 October 17, 2001

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

Resolution Regulation X — Subparts GG and KKKK A-3




SUBPART Da continued

SUBPART Db
40CFR60.40b-49b

54 FR 21344, May 17, 1989
55 FR 5212, Feb. 14, 1990
55 FR 18876, May 7, 1990
63 FR 49453, Sept. 16, 1998
64 FR 7464, Feb. 12, 1999
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
66 FR 18551, April 10, 2001
66 FR 31178, June 11, 2001
66 FR 42610, Aug. 14, 2001
70 FR 28653, May 18, 2005
70 FR 51268, Aug. 30, 2005
71 FR 9876, Feb. 27, 2006
71 FR 33399, June 9, 2006
72 FR 32722, June 13, 2007
74 FR 5078, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5079, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5081, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5083, Jan. 28, 2009

October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17,2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adopfion)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR INDUSTRIAL-
COMMERCIAL-INSTITUTIONAL STEAM GENERATING UNITS

FR Citation

51 FR 42768, Nov. 25, 1986
52 FR 47842, Dec. 16, 1987
54 FR 51824, Dec. 18, 1989
54 FR 51819, Dec. 18, 1989
55 FR 5212, Feb. 14, 1990
55 FR 18876, May 7, 1990
60 FR 28062, May 30, 1995
61 FR 14031, Mar. 29, 1996
62 FR 52641, Oct. 8, 1997
63 FR 49454, Sept. 16, 1998
64 FR 7464, Feb. 12, 1999
65 FR 13243, Mar. 13, 2000
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
66 FR 18553, April 10, 2001
66 FR 42610, Aug. 14, 2001
66 FR 49834, Oct. 1, 2001

. 69 FR 40773, July 7, 2004

71 FR'9881, Feb. 27, 2006
71 FR 33400, June 9, 2006
72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007
74 FR 5084, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5086, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5087, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5089, Jan. 28, 2009

Resolution Regulation X — Subparts GG and KKKK

Adoption Date
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)

(date of adoption)

(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
-(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008



SUBPART Dc
40CFR60.40c-48c

SUBPART Eb
40CFR60.50b-5%b

SUBPART Ec
40CFR60.50c-58¢

SUBPART K
40CFR60.110-113

Resolution Regulation X — Subparts GG and KKKK

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR SMALL INDUSTRIAL-
COMMERCIAL-INSTITUTIONAL STEAM GENERATING UNITS

FR Citation

55 FR 37683, Sept. 12, 1990
61 FR 20736, May 8, 1996
64 FR 7465, Feb. 12, 1999
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
71 FR 9884, Feb. 27, 2006
72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007
74 FR 5090, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5091, Jan. 28, 2009

Adoption Date
Aug. 13,1997

Aug. 13,1997 -

(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)

Delegation Date
June 24, 1998

June 24, 1998

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR LARGE MUNICIPAL
WASTE COMBUSTORS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION IS
COMMENCED AFTER SEPTEMBER 20, 1994 OR FOR WHICH
MODIFCATION OR RECONSTRUCTION COMMENCED AFTER

JUNE 19, 1996

FR Citation

60 FR 65419, Dec. 19, 1995
62 FR 45120, Aug. 25, 1997
62 FR 45125, Aug. 25, 1997
65 FR 61753, Oct. 17, 2000
66 FR 36476, July 12, 2001

66 FR 57827, Nov. 16, 2001
71 FR 27335, May 10, 2006

Adoption Date
June 20, 2007

June 20, 2007

. June 20, 2007

June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007

" June 20, 2007

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008

January-3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR HOSPITAL/MEDICAL/
INFECTIOUS WASTE INCINERATORS FOR WHICH
CONSTRUCTION IS COMMENCED AFTER JUNE 20, 1996

FR Citation
62 FR 48382, Sept. 15, 1997
65 FR 61753, Oct. 17, 2000

Adoption Date
June 20, 2007

June 20, 2007

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008

January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR STORAGE VESSELS FOR
PETROLEUM LIQUIDS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION,
RECONSTRUCTION, OR MODIFICATION COMMENCED AFTER

JUNE 11, 1973, AND PRIOR TO MAY 19, 1978

FR Citation

39 FR 9317, March 8, 1974
39 FR 13776, April 17,1974
39 FR 20794, June 14, 1974
42 FR 37937, July 25, 1977
45 FR 23379, April 4, 1980
48 FR 3737, Jan. 27, 1983
52 FR 11429, April 8, 1987
65 FR 61755, Oct. 17, 2000

Adoption Date
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008



SUBPART Ka

40CFR60.110a-115a

SUBPART Kb

40CFR60.110b-117b

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR STORAGE VESSELS FOR
PETROLEUM LIQUIDS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION,
RECONSTRUCTION, OR MODIFICATION COMMENCED AFTER
May 18, 1978, AND PRIOR TO July 23, 1984

FR Citation

45 FR 23379, April 4, 1980
45 FR 83229, Dec. 18,1980
48 FR 3737, Jan. 27, 1983
52 FR 11429, April 8, 1987
65 FR 61756, Oct. 17,2000
65 FR 78275, Dec. 14, 2000

Adoption Date

June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR VOLATILE ORGANIC
LIQUID STORAGE VESSELS (INCLUDING PETROLEUM LIQUID
STORAGE VESSELS) FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION,
RECONSTRUCTION, OR MODIFICATION COMMENCED AFTER

JULY 23, 1984

FR Citation

52 FR 11429, April 8, 1987
52 FR 22780, June 16, 1987
54 FR 32973, Aug. 11, 1989
62 FR 52641, Oct. 8, 1997
65 FR 61756, Oct. 17,2000

" 65 FR 78275, Dec. 14, 2000

68 FR 59332, Oct. 15, 2003

Adoption Date

June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

SUBPART GG STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR STATIONARY

40CFR60.330-335 GAS TURBINES
FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date
44 FR 52798, Sept. 10, 1979 October 17, 2001 January 3, 2008
47 FR 3770, Jan. 27, 1982 October 17, 2001 January 3, 2008
52 FR 42434, Nov. 5, 1987 October 17, 2001 January 3, 2008
54 FR 6675 Feb. 14, 1989 October 17, 2001 January 3, 2008
54 FR 27016, June 27, 1989 October 17, 2001 January 3, 2008

65 FR 61759, Oct. 17, 2000
69 FR 41359, July 8, 2004
‘71 FR 9458, Feb. 24, 2006

February 25, 2009
February 25, 2009
February 25, 2009

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW RESIDENTIAL

SUBPART AAA
40CFR60.530-539b WOOD HEATERS ’
FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date

53 FR 5873, Feb. 26, 1988 April 12,2000 January 3, 2008

Resolution Regulation X — Subparts GG and KKKK

53 FR 12009, April 12, 1988 April 12,2000 January 3, 2008
53 FR 14889, April 26, 1988 April 12,2000 January 3, 2008
57 FR 5328, Feb. 13, 1992 April 12, 2000 January 3, 2008
60 FR 33925, June 29, 1995 April 12,2000 January 3, 2008
63 FR 64874, Nov. 24, 1998 April 12, 2000 January 3, 2008
64 FR 7466, Feb. 12, 1999 April 12,2000 January 3, 2008
65 FR 61763, Oct. 17, 2000 Not Yet Adopted



SUBPART 00O
40CFR60.670-676

SUBPART UUU
40CFR60.730-737

SUBPART VVV
40CFR60.740-748

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NONMETALLIC
MINERAL PROCESSING PLANTS

FR Citation - Adoption Date Delegation Date

50 FR 31328, Aug. 1, 1985 April 28, 1999 " May 28, 2002
51 FR 31337, Aug. 1, 1985 Not Yet Adopted
54 FR 6680, Feb. 14, 1989 Not Yet Adopted
62 FR 31351, June 9, 1997 April 28, 1999 May 28, 2002
65 FR 61778, Oct. 17, 2000 Not Yet Adopted

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR CALCINERS AND DRYERS

IN MINERAL INDUSTRIES

FR Citation

Adoption Date Delegation Date

57 FR 44503, Sept. 28, 1992 Nov. 17, 1999 May 28, 2002
58 FR 40591, July 29, 1993 * Nov. 17, 1999 May 28, 2002
65 FR 61778, Oct. 17, 2000 Not Yet Adopted

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR POLYMERIC COATING
OF SUPPORTING SUBSTRATES

FR Citation Adoption Date
54 FR 37551, Sept. 11, 1989 May 23, 2007

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008

SUBPART WWW STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR MUNICIPAL
40CFR60.750-759 SOLID WASTE LANDFILLS
FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date

61 FR 9919, Mar. 12, 1996 Aug. 13, 1997 June 24, 1998
63 FR 32750, June 16, 1998 Not Yet Adopted
64 FR 9262, Feb. 24, 1999 Not Yet Adopted
65 FR 18908, Apr. 10, 2000 Not Yet Adopted
65 FR 61778, Oct. 17, 2000 Not Yet Adopted
71 FR 55127, Sept. 21, 2006 Not Yet Adopted

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR SMALL MUNICIPAL
WASTE COMBUSTION UNITS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION IS
COMMENCED AFTER AUGUST 30, 1999 OR FOR WHICH
MODIFICATION OR RECONSTRUCTION IS COMMENCED AFTER
JUNE 6, 2001

FR Citation

65 FR 76355, Dec. 6, 2000

SUBPART AAAA
40CFR60.1000-1465

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008

Adoption Date
June 20, 2007

SUBPART CCCC
40CFR60.2000-2265

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR COMMERCIAL AND
INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE INCINERATION UNITS FOR WHICH
CONSTRUCTION IS COMMENCED AFTER NOVEMBER 30, 1999 OR
FOR WHICH MODIFICATION OR RECONSTRUCTION IS
COMMENCED ON OR AFTER JUNE 2, 2001
FR Citation Adoption Date
65 FR 75350, Dec. 1, 2000 June 20, 2007
66 FR 16606, Mar. 27, 2001 June 20, 2007
70 FR 55580, Sept. 22, 2005 June'20, 2007

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

Resolution Regulation X — Subparts GG and KKKK




SUBPART EEEE STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR OTHER SOLID WASTE

40CFR60.2880-2977 INCINERATIOI\,I_QUNITS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION IS
COMMENCED AFTER DECEMBER 9, 2004, OR FOR WHICH
MODIFICATION OR RECONSTRUCTION IS COMMENCED ON OR
AFTER JUNE 16, 2006

FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date
70 FR 74892, Dec. 16, 2005 June 20, 2007 January 3, 2008

SUBPART KKKK STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW STATIONARY
40CFR60.4300-4420 COMBUSTION TURBINES

FR Citation Adoption Date - Delegation Date
71 FR 38497, July 6, 2006 February 25, 2009

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the repeal of existing Regulation
X Subparts D, Da, Db, and Dc and adoption, by reference, of federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db,
and Dc to Regulation X shall take effect and be in force on the date of delegation of enforcement
authority to the Air Pollution Control District by the United States Environmental Protection
Agency.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Air Pollution Control Board of the San Diego County
Air Pollution Control District, State of California, this ___24th day of
June , 2009, by the following votes:

AYES: Cox, Jacob, Slater-Price, Roberts, Horn

STATE OF CALIFORNIA)

County of San Diego)™®

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the Original Resolution

entered in the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors. A5 ONTO BL TO RORM AND LEGALOY
COUNTY COUHBEL

THOMAS J. PASTUSZKA BY
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

By: V\,«J..Q/—c %a.a- LQAAAﬁ

Kellie Barclay, Deputy O

Resolution No. 09-112
06/24/09 (AP1)

Resolution Regulation X — Subparts GG and KKKK A-8




ATTACHMENT B

SAN DIEGO AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT |
PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO REGULATION X

CHANGE COPY

Proposed amendment to Regulation X is to read as follows:

REGULATION X. STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW
STATIONARY SOURCES (NSPS)

date of adopted)

(Rev. Effective:

The provisions of Part 60, Chapter I, Title 40, of the Code of Federal Regulations, (40 CFR 60),
applicable to the subparts listed in this Regulation are hereby adopted by reference on the date shown
and made part of the Air Pollution Control District Rules and Regulations. Whenever any source is
subject to more than one rule, regulation, provision, or requirement relating to the control of any air
contaminant, in cases of conflict or duplication the most stringent rule, regulation, provision, or
requirement shall apply.

All new sources of air pollution and all modified or reconstructed sources of air pollution shall
comply with the applicable standards, criteria, and requirements set forth herein. For the purpose of
this Regulation, the word “Administrator” as used in 40 CFR 60 shall mean the Air Pollution Control
Officer of the San Diego County Air Pollution Control District, except that the Air Pollution Control
Officer shall not be empowered to approve alternate test methods, alternate standards, or work
practices. Other deviations, if any, from the provisions of 40 CFR 60, which are adopted by the Air
Pollution Control Board, are noted in the reference to the affected Subpart.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) retains concurrent enforcement authority for these
standards pursuant to Section 113 of the federal Clean Air Act, as amended, if the EPA Administrator
desires to exercise it, including those not yet adopted by the Air Pollution Control District.

The addition of federal Subparts by reference to Regulation X shall take effect and be in force on
the date of delegation of enforcement authority to the San Diego County Air Pollution Control
District by EPA.

SUBPART D
40CFR60.40-46

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR FOSSIL-FUEL-FIRED
STEAM GENERATORS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION IS
COMMENCED AFTER AUGUST 17, 1971

FR Citation

39 FR 20791, June 14, 1974
40 FR 2803, Jan. 16, 1975
40 FR 46256, Oct. 6, 1975
41 FR 51398, Nov. 22, 1976
42 FR 37936, July 25, 1977

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008



SUBPART D continued

SUBPART Da

40CFR60.40a-52a

Proposed Amendment to Regulation X — Change Copy

42 FR 61537, Dec. 5, 1977
43 FR 9278, Mar. 7, 1978
44 FR 33612, June 17, 1979
44 FR 76787, Dec. 28, 1979
45 FR 36077, May 29, 1980
45 FR 47146, July 14, 1980
46 FR 57498, Nov. 24, 1981
48 FR 3736, Jan. 27, 1983
51 FR 42797, Nov. 25, 1986
52 FR 28954, Aug. 4, 1987
54 FR 6662, Feb. 14, 1989
54 FR 21344, May 17, 1989
55 FR 5212, Feb. 14, 1990
60 FR 65415, Dec. 19, 1995
61 FR 49976, Sept. 24, 1996
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
72 FR 32717, June 13, 2007
74 FR 5077, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5078, Jan. 28, 2009

October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
(date of adoption)

(date of adoption)

(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR ELECTRIC UTILITY
STEAM GENERATING UNITS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION

IS COMMENCED AFTER SEPTEMBER 18, 1978

FR Citation

44 FR 33613, June 11, 1979
48 F4 3737, Jan. 27, 1983
54 FR 6663, Feb. 14, 1989
54 FR 21344, May 17, 1989
55 FR 5212, Feb. 14, 1990
55 FR 18876, May 7, 1990
63 FR 49453, Sept. 16, 1998
64 FR 7464, Feb. 12, 1999
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
66 FR 18551, April 10, 2001
66 FR 31178, June 11, 2001
66 FR 42610, Aug. 14,2001
70 FR 28653, May 18, 2005
70 FR 51268, Aug. 30, 2005
71 FR 9876, Feb. 27, 2006
71 FR 33399, June 9, 2006
72 FR 32722, June 13, 2007
74 FR 5078, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5079, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5081, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5083, Jan. 28, 2009

Adoption Date
October 17, 2001

October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)

Delegation Date

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008



SUBPART Db

40CFR60.40b-49b

SUBPART Dc

40CFR60.40c-48¢

SUBPART Eb

40CFR60.50b-59b

Proposed Amendment to Regulation X — Change Copy

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR INDUSTRIAL-
COMMERCIAL-INSTITUTIONAL STEAM GENERATING UNITS

FR Citation

51 FR 42768, Nov. 25, 1986
52 FR 47842, Dec. 16, 1987
54 FR 51824, Dec. 18, 1989
54 FR 51819, Dec. 18, 1989
55 FR 5212, Feb. 14, 1990
55 FR 18876, May 7, 1990
60 FR 28062, May 30, 1995
61 FR 14031, Mar. 29, 1996
62 FR 52641, Oct. 8, 1997
63 FR 49454, Sept. 16, 1998
64 FR 7464, Feb. 12, 1999
65 FR 13243, Mar. 13, 2000
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
66 FR 18553, April 10, 2001
66 FR 42610, Aug. 14,2001
66 FR 49834, Oct. 1, 2001
69 FR 40773, July 7, 2004
71 FR 9881, Feb. 27, 2006
71 FR 33400, June 9, 2006
72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007
74 FR 5084, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5086, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5087, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5089, Jan. 28, 2009

Adoption Date
April 25, 2001
April 25,2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25,2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
April 25, 2001
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)

(date of adoption)

(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)

(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR SMALL INDUSTRIAL-
COMMERCIAL-INSTITUTIONAL STEAM GENERATING UNITS

FR Citation

55 FR 37683, Sept. 12, 1990
61 FR 20736, May 8, 1996
64 FR 7465, Feb. 12, 1999
65 FR 61752, Oct. 17, 2000
71 FR 9884, Feb. 27, 2006
72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007
74 FR 5090, Jan. 28, 2009
74 FR 5091, Jan. 28, 2009

Adoption Date
Aug. 13, 1997

Aug. 13, 1997

(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)
(date of adoption)

Delegation Date
June 24, 1998

June 24, 1998

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR LARGE MUNICIPAL
WASTE COMBUSTORS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION IS
COMMENCED AFTER SEPTEMBER 20, 1994 OR FOR WHICH
MODIFCATION OR RECONSTRUCTION COMMENCED AFTER

JUNE 19, 1996

FR Citation

60 FR 65419, Dec. 19, 1995
62 FR 45120, Aug. 25, 1997

Adoption Date

June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008

January 3, 2008

B-3



SUBPART Eb continued

SUBPART Ec
40CFR60.50c-58¢

SUBPARTK
40CFR60.110-113

SUBPART Ka
40CFR60.110a-115a

Proposed Amendment to Regulation X — Change Copy

62 FR 45125, Aug. 25, 1997
65 FR 61753, Oct. 17, 2000
66 FR 36476, July 12,2001
66 FR 57827, Nov. 16, 2001
71 FR 27335, May 10, 2006

June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR HOSPITAL/MEDICAL/
INFECTIOUS WASTE INCINERATORS FOR WHICH
CONSTRUCTION IS COMMENCED AFTER JUNE 20, 1996

FR Citation
62 FR 48382, Sept. 15, 1997
65 FR 61753, Oct. 17, 2000

Adoption Date
June 20, 2007

June 20, 2007

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR STORAGE VESSELS FOR
PETROLEUM LIQUIDS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION,
RECONSTRUCTION, OR MODIFICATION COMMENCED AFTER

JUNE 11, 1973, AND PRIOR TO MAY 19, 1978

FR Citation

39 FR 9317, March 8, 1974
39 FR 13776, April 17, 1974
39 FR 20794, June 14, 1974
42 FR 37937, July 25, 1977
45 FR 23379, April 4, 1980
48 FR 3737, Jan. 27, 1983
52 FR 11429, April 8, 1987
65 FR 61755, Oct. 17, 2000

Adoption Date
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR STORAGE VESSELS FOR
PETROLEUM LIQUIDS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION,
RECONSTRUCTION, OR MODIFICATION COMMENCED AFTER
May 18, 1978, AND PRIOR TO July 23, 1984

FR Citation

45 FR 23379, April 4, 1980
45 FR 83229, Dec. 18,1980
48 FR 3737, Jan. 27, 1983
52 FR 11429, April 8, 1987
65 FR 61756, Oct. 17, 2000
65 FR 78275, Dec. 14, 2000

Adoption Date
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

B-4



SUBPART Kb

40CFR60.110b-117b

SUBPART GG

40CFR60.330-335

SUBPART AAA
40CFR60.530-539b

SUBPART OO0
40CFR60.670-676

Proposed Amendment to Regulation X — Change Copy

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR VOLATILE ORGANIC
LIQUID STORAGE VESSELS (INCLUDING PETROLEUM LIQUID
STORAGE VESSELS) FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION,
RECONSTRUCTION, OR MODIFICATION COMMENCED AFTER

JULY 23, 1984

FR Citation

52 FR 11429, April 8, 1987
52 FR 22780, June 16, 1987
54 FR 32973, Aug. 11, 1989
62 FR 52641, Oct. 8, 1997
65 FR 61756, Oct. 17, 2000
65 FR 78275, Dec. 14, 2000
68 FR 59332, Oct. 15, 2003

Adoption Date

June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007
June 20, 2007

Delegation Date

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR STATIONARY

GAS TURBINES

FR Citation

44 FR 52798, Sept. 10, 1979
47 FR 3770, Jan. 27, 1982
52 FR 42434, Nov. 5, 1987
54 FR 6675 Feb. 14, 1989
54 FR 27016, June 27, 1989
65 FR 61759, Oct. 17, 2000
69 FR 41359, July 8, 2004
71 FR 9458, Feb. 24, 2006

Adoption Date
October 17, 2001

October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001
October 17, 2001

February 25, 2009
February 25, 2009
February 25, 2009

Delegation Date
January 3, 2008

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW RESIDENTIAL

WOOD HEATERS

FR Citation

53 FR 5873, Feb. 26, 1988
53 FR 12009, April 12, 1988
53 FR 14889, April 26, 1988
57 FR 5328, Feb. 13, 1992
60 FR 33925, June 29, 1995
63 FR 64874, Nov. 24, 1998
64 FR 7466, Feb. 12, 1999
65 FR 61763, Oct. 17, 2000

Adoption Date

Delegation Date

April 12, 2000
April 12, 2000
April 12, 2000
April 12,2000
April 12,2000
April 12,2000
April 12,2000

Not Yet Adopted

January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008
January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NONMETALLIC
MINERAL PROCESSING PLANTS

FR Citation

50 FR 31328, Aug. 1, 1985
51 FR 31337, Aug. 1, 1985
54 FR 6680, Feb. 14, 1989

62 FR 31351, June 9, 1997

65 FR 61778, Oct. 17, 2000

Adoption Date Delegation Date
April 28, 1999 May 28, 2002
Not Yet Adopted
Not Yet Adopted
April 28, 1999 May 28, 2002
Not Yet Adopted
B-5



SUBPART UUU
40CFR60.730-737

SUBPART VVV
40CFR60.740-748

SUBPART WWW
40CFR60.750-759

SUBPART AAAA
40CFR60.1000-1465

SUBPART CCCC
40CFR60.2000-2265

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR CALCINERS AND DRYERS
IN MINERAL INDUSTRIES

FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date
57 FR 44503, Sept. 28, 1992 Nov. 17, 1999 May 28, 2002

58 FR 40591, July 29, 1993 Nov. 17, 1999 May 28, 2002

65 FR 61778, Oct. 17,2000 Not Yet Adopted

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR POLYMERIC COATING
OF SUPPORTING SUBSTRATES

FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date
54 FR 37551, Sept. 11, 1989 May 23, 2007 January 3, 2008
STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR MUNICIPAL

SOLID WASTE LANDFILLS

FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date
61 FR 9919, Mar. 12, 1996 Aug. 13, 1997 June 24, 1998

63 FR 32750, June 16, 1998 Not Yet Adopted

64 FR 9262, Feb. 24, 1999 Not Yet Adopted

65 FR 18908, Apr. 10, 2000 Not Yet Adopted

65 FR 61778, Oct. 17, 2000 Not Yet Adopted

71 FR 55127, Sept. 21, 2006 Not Yet Adopted

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR SMALL MUNICIPAL
WASTE COMBUSTION UNITS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION IS
COMMENCED AFTER AUGUST 30, 1999 OR FOR WHICH
MODIFICATION OR RECONSTRUCTION IS COMMENCED AFTER
JUNE 6, 2001

FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date
65 FR 76355, Dec. 6, 2000 June 20, 2007 January 3, 2008

STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR COMMERCIAL AND
INDUSTRIAL SOLID WASTE INCINERATION UNITS FOR WHICH
CONSTRUCTION IS COMMENCED AFTER NOVEMBER 30, 1999 OR
FOR WHICH MODIFICATION OR RECONSTRUCTION IS
COMMENCED ON OR AFTER JUNE 2, 2001

FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date
65 FR 75350, Dec. 1, 2000 June 20, 2007 January 3, 2008
66 FR 16606, Mar. 27, 2001 June 20, 2007 January 3, 2008
70 FR 55580, Sept. 22, 2005 June 20, 2007 January 3, 2008

Proposed Amendment to Regulation X — Change Copy B-6



SUBPART EEEE STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR OTHER SOLID WASTE
40CFR60.2880-2977 INCINERATION UNITS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION IS
COMMENCED AFTER DECEMBER 9, 2004, OR FOR WHICH

MODIFICATION OR RECONSTRUCTION IS COMMENCED ON OR
AFTER JUNE 16, 2006

FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date
70 FR 74892, Dec. 16, 2005 June 20, 2007 January 3, 2008

SUBPART KKKK STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW STATIONARY
40CFR60.4300-4420 COMBUSTION TURBINES

FR Citation Adoption Date Delegation Date
71 FR 38497, July 6, 2006 February 25, 2009

Proposed Amendment to Regulation X — Change Copy B-7



ATTACHMENT C

Title 40: Protection of Environment
PART 60—STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW STATIONARY SOURCES

Subpart D—Standards of Performance for Fossil-Fuel-Fired Steam Generators for Which
Construction Is Commenced After August 17,1971

Source: 72 FR 32717, June 13, 2007, unless otherwise noted.
§ 60.40 Applicability and designation of affected facility.
(a) The affected facilities to which the provisions of this subpart apply are:

(1) Each fossil-fuel-fired steam generating unit of more than 73 megawatts (MW) heat input rate
(250 million British thermal units per hour (MMBtu/hr)).

(2) Each fossil-fuel and wood-residue-fired steam generating unit capable of firing fossil fuel at a
heat input rate of more than 73 MW (250 MMBtu/hr).

(b) Any change to an existing fossil-fuel-fired steam generating unit to accommodate the use of
combustible materials, other than fossil fuels as defined in this subpart, shall not bring that unit
under the applicability of this subpart.

(c) Except as provided in paragraph (d) of this section, any facility under paragraph (a) of this
section that commenced construction or modification after August 17, 1971, is subject to the
requirements of this subpart.

(d) The requirements of §§60.44 (a)(4), (a)(5), (b) and (d), and 60.45(f)(4)(vi) are applicable to
lignite-fired steam generating units that commenced construction or modification after December
22, 1976.

(e) Any facility covered under subpart Da is not covered under this subpart.

§ 60.41 Definitions.

As used in this subpart, all terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given them in the
Act, and in subpart A of this part.

Boiler operating day means a 24-hour period between 12 midnight and the following midnight
during which any fuel is combusted at any time in the steam-generating unit. It is not necessary

for fuel to be combusted the entire 24-hour period.

Coal means all solid fuels classified as anthracite, bituminous, subbituminous, or lignite by
ASTM D388 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17).

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc



Coal refuse means waste-products of coal mining, cleaning, and coal preparation operations
(e.g., culm, gob, etc.) containing coal, matrix material, clay, and other organic and inorganic
material.

Fossil fuel means natural gas, petroleum, coal, and any form of solid, liquid, or gaseous fuel
derived from such materials for the purpose of creating useful heat.

Fossil fuel and wood residue-fired steam generating unit means a furnace or boiler used in the
process of burning fossil fuel and wood residue for the purpose of producing steam by heat
transfer.

Fossil-fuel-fired steam generating unit means a furnace or boiler used in the process of burning
fossil fuel for the purpose of producing steam by heat transfer.

Wood residue means bark, sawdust, slabs, chips, shavings, mill trim, and other wood products
derived from wood processing and forest management operations.

§ 60.42 Standard for particulate matter (PM).

(a) On and after the date on which the performance test required to be conducted by §60.8 is
completed, no owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall cause to be
discharged into the atmosphere from any affected facility any gases that:

(1) Contain PM in excess of 43 nanograms per joule (ng/J) heat input (0.10 Ib/MMBtu) derived
from fossil fuel or fossil fuel and wood residue.

(2) Exhibit greater than 20 percent opacity except for one six-minute period per hour of not more
than 27 percent opacity.

(b)(1) On or after December 28, 1979, no owner or operator shall cause to be discharged into the
atmosphere from the Southwestern Public Service Company's Harrington Station #1, in
Amarillo, TX, any gases which exhibit greater than 35 percent opacity, except that a maximum
or 42 percent opacity shall be permitted for not more than 6 minutes in any hour.

(2) Interstate Power Company shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from its
Lansing Station Unit No. 4 in Lansing, [A, any gases which exhibit greater than 32 percent
opacity, except that a maximum of 39 percent opacity shall be permitted for not more than six
minutes in any hour.

(c) As an alternate to meeting the requirements of paragraph (a) of this section, an owner or
operator that elects to install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a continuous emissions monitoring
systems (CEMS) for measuring PM emissions can petition the Administrator (in writing) to
comply with §60.42Da(a) of subpart Da of this part. If the Administrator grants the petition, the
source will from then on (unless the unit is modified or reconstructed in the future) have to
comply with the requirements in §60.43Da(a) of subpart Da of this part.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-2



[60 FR 65415, Dec. 19, 1995, as amended at 74 FR 5077, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.43 Standard for sulfur dioxide (SO,).

(a) Except as provided under paragraph (d) of this section, on and after the date on which the
performance test required to be conducted by §60.8 is completed, no owner or operator subject to
the provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any affected
facility any gases that contain SO; in excess of:

(1) 340 ng/J heat input (0.80 1b/MMBtu) derived from liquid fossil fuel or liquid fossil fuel and
wood residue.

(2) 520 ng/J heat input (1.2 Ib/MMBtu) derived from solid fossil fuel or solid fossil fuel and
wood residue, except as provided in paragraph (e) of this section.

(b) Except as provided under paragraph (d) of this section, when different fossil fuels are burned
simultaneously in any combination, the applicable standard (in ng/J) shall be determined by
proration using the following formula:

_y (340) +z (520)
o Ty

Where:

PSso2= Prorated standard for Sp; when burning different fuels simultaneously, in ng/J heat input
derived from all fossil fuels or from all fossil fuels and wood residue fired;

y = Percentage of total heat input derived from liquid fossil fuel; and
z = Percentage of total heat input derived from solid fossil fuel.

(c) Compliance shall be based on the total heat input from all fossil fuels burned, including
gaseous fuels.

(d) As an alternate to meeting the requirements of paragraphs (a) and (b) of this section, an
owner or operator can petition the Administrator (in writing) to comply with §60.43Da(i)(3) of
subpart Da of this part or comply with §60.42b(k)(4) of subpart Db of this part, as applicable to
the affected source. If the Administrator grants the petition, the source will from then on (unless
the unit is modified or reconstructed in the future) have to comply with the requirements in
§60.43Da(i)(3) of subpart Da of this part or §60.42b(k)(4) of subpart Db of this part, as
applicable to the affected source.

(e) Units 1 and 2 (as defined in appendix G of this part) at the Newton Power Station owned or

operated by the Central Illinois Public Service Company will be in compliance with paragraph
(a)(2) of this section if Unit 1 and Unit 2 individually comply with paragraph (a)(2) of this

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-3



section or if the combined emission rate from Units 1 and 2 does not exceed 470 ng/J (1.1
Ib/MMBtu) combined heat input to Units 1 and 2.

[60 FR 65415, Dec. 19, 1995, as amended at 74 FR 5077, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.44 Standard for nitrogen oxides (NOX).

(a) Except as provided under paragraph (e) of this section, on and after the date on which the
performance test required to be conducted by §60.8 is completed, no owner or operator subject to
the provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any affected
facility any gases that contain NOx, expressed as NO; in excess of:

(1) 86 ng/J heat input (0.20 Ib/MMBtu) derived from gaseous fossil fuel.

(2) 129 ng/J heat input (0.30 1b/MMBtu) derived from liquid fossil fuel, liquid fossil fuel and
wood residue, or gaseous fossil fuel and wood residue.

(3) 300 ng/J heat input (0.70 Ib/MMBtu) derived from solid fossil fuel or solid fossil fuel and
wood residue (except lignite or a solid fossil fuel containing 25 percent, by weight, or more of
coal refuse).

(4) 260 ng/J heat input (0.60 1b MMBtu) derived from lignite or lignite and wood residue (except
as provided under paragraph (a)(5) of this section).

(5) 340 ng/J heat input (0.80 Ib MMBtu) derived from lignite which is mined in North Dakota,
South Dakota, or Montana and which is burned in a cyclone-fired unit.

(b) Except as provided under paragraphs (c), (d), and (e) of this section, when different fossil
fuels are burned simultaneously in any combination, the applicable standard (in ng/J) is
determined by proration using the following formula:

ps. o W(260)+x (86) +y (130) +z (300)
= (W rxryeD)

Where:

PSnox= Prorated standard for NOx when burning different fuels simultaneously, in ng/J heat
input derived from all fossil fuels fired or from all fossil fuels and wood residue fired;

w = Percentage of total heat input derived from lignite;
x = Percentage of total heat input derived from gaseous fossil fuel,
y = Percentage of total heat input derived from liquid fossil fuel; and

z = Percentage of total heat input derived from solid fossil fuel (except lignite).

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-4



(c) When a fossil fuel containing at least 25 percent, by weight, of coal refuse is burned in
combination with gaseous, liquid, or other solid fossil fuel or wood residue, the standard for NOx
does not apply.

(d) Except as provided under paragraph (e) of this section, cyclone-fired units which burn fuels
containing at least 25 percent of lignite that is mined in North Dakota, South Dakota, or Montana
remain subject to paragraph (a)(5) of this section regardless of the types of fuel combusted in
combination with that lignite.

(e) As an alternate to meeting the requirements of paragraphs (a), (b), and (d) of this section, an
owner or operator can petition the Administrator (in writing) to comply with §60.44Da(e)(3) of
subpart Da of this part. If the Administrator grants the petition, the source will from then on
(unless the unit is modified or reconstructed in the future) have to comply with the requirements
in §60.44Da(e)(3) of subpart Da of this part.

§ 60.45 Emissions and fuel monitoring.

(a) Each owner or operator shall install, calibrate, maintain, and operate continuous opacity
monitoring system (COMS) for measuring opacity and a CEMS for measuring SO, emissions,
NOx emissions, and either oxygen (O,) or carbon dioxide (CO,) except as provided in paragraph
(b) of this section.

(b) Certain of the CEMS requirements under paragraph (a) of this section do not apply to owners
or operators under the following conditions:

(1) For a fossil-fuel-fired steam generator that burns only gaseous or liquid fossil fuel (excluding
residual oil) with potential SO, emissions rates of 26 ng/J (0.060 1b/MMBtu) or less and that
doesnot use post-combustion technology to reduce emissions of SO, or PM, CEMS for
measuring the opacity of emissions and SO, emissions are not required if the owner or operator
monitors SO, emissions by fuel sampling and analysis or fuel receipts.

(2) For a fossil-fuel-fired steam generator that does not use a flue gas desulfurization device, a
CEMS for measuring SO, emissions is not required if the owner or operator monitors SO,
emissions by fuel sampling and analysis.

(3) Notwithstanding §60.13(b), installation of a CEMS for NOx may be delayed until after the
initial performance tests under §60.8 have been conducted. If the owner or operator
demonstrates during the performance test that emissions of NOx are less than 70 percent of the
applicable standards in §60.44, a CEMS for measuring NOx emissions is not required. If the
initial performance test results show that NOx emissions are greater than 70 percent of the
applicable standard, the owner or operator shall install a CEMS for NOx within one year after the
date of the initial performance tests under §60.8 and comply with all other applicable monitoring
requirements under this part.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-5



(4) If an owner or operator does not install any CEMS for sulfur oxides and NOXx, as provided
under paragraphs (b)(1) and (b)(3) or paragraphs (b)(2) and (b)(3) of this section a CEMS for
measuring either O, or CO; is not required.

(5) An owner or operator may petition the Administrator (in writing) to install a PM CEMS as an
alternative to the CEMS for monitoring opacity emissions.

(6) A CEMS for measuring the opacity of emissions is not required for a fossil fuel-fired steam
generator that does not use post-combustion technology (except a wet scrubber) for reducing
PM, SO,, or carbon monoxide (CO) emissions, burns only gaseous fuels or fuel oils that contain
less than or equal to 0.30 weight percent sulfur, and is operated such that emissions of CO to the
atmosphere from the affected source are maintained at levels less than or equal to 0.15
Ib/MMBtu on a boiler operating day average basis. Owners and operators of affected sources
electing to comply with this paragraph must demonstrate compliance according to the procedures
specified in paragraphs (b)(6)(i) through (iv) of this section.

(i) You must monitor CO emissions using a CEMS according to the procedures specified in
paragraphs (b)(6)(i)(A) through (D) of this section.

(A) The CO CEMS must be installed, certified, maintained, and operated according to the
provisions in §60.58b(i)(3) of subpart Eb of this part.

(B) Each 1-hour CO emissions average is calculated using the data points generated by the CO
CEMS expressed in parts per million by volume corrected to 3 percent oxygen (dry basis).

(C) At a minimum, valid 1-hour CO emissions averages must be obtained for at least 90 percent
of the operating hours on a 30-day rolling average basis. The 1-hour averages are calculated
using the data points required in §60.13(h)(2).

(D) Quarterly accuracy determinations and daily calibration drift tests for the CO CEMS must be
performed in accordance with procedure 1 in appendix F of this part.

(ii) You must calculate the 1-hour average CO emissions levels for each boiler operating day by
multiplying the average hourly CO output concentration measured by the CO CEMS times the
corresponding average hourly flue gas flow rate and divided by the corresponding average
hourly heat input to the affected source. The 24-hour average CO emission level is determined
by calculating the arithmetic average of the hourly CO emission levels computed for each boiler
operating day.

(iii) You must evaluate the preceding 24-hour average CO emission level each boiler operating
day excluding periods of affected source startup, shutdown, or malfunction. If the 24-hour
average CO emission level is greater than 0.15 Ib/MMBtu, you must initiate investigation of the
relevant equipment and control systems within 24 hours of the first discovery of the high
emission incident and, take the appropriate corrective action as soon as practicable to adjust
control settings or repair equipment to reduce the 24-hour average CO emission level to 0.15
1b/MMBtu or less.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-6



(iv) You must record the CO measurements and calculations performed according to paragraph
(b)(6) of this section and any corrective actions taken. The record of corrective action taken
must include the date and time during which the 24-hour average CO emission level was greater
than 0.15 Ib/MMBtu, and the date, time, and description of the corrective action.

(7) The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to an opacity standard under §60.42 and
that elects to not install a COMS because the affected facility burns only fuels as specified under
paragraph (b)(1) of this section, monitors PM emissions as specified under paragraph (b)(5) of
this section, or monitors CO emissions as specified under paragraph (b)(6) of this section shall
conduct a performance test using Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part and the procedures in
§60.11 to demonstrate compliance with the applicable limit in §60.42 and shall comply with
either paragraphs (b)(7)(i), (b)(7)(ii), or (b)(7)(iii) of this section. If during the initial 60 minutes
of observation all 6-minute averages are less than 10 percent and all individual 15-second
observations are less than or equal to 20 percent, the observation period may be reduced from 3
hours to 60 minutes.

(i) Except as provided in paragraph (b)(7)(ii) or (b)(7)(iii) of this section, the owner or operator
shall conduct subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance tests using the
procedures in paragraph (b)(7) of this section according to the applicable schedule in paragraphs
(b)(7)(1)(A) through (b)(7)(i)(D) of this section, as determined by the most recent Method 9 of
appendix A—4 of this part performance test results.

(A) If no visible emissions are observed, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part
performance test must be completed within 12 calendar months from the date that the most
recent performance test was conducted,

(B) If visible emissions are observed but the maximum 6-minute average opacity is less than or
equal to 5 percent, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test must be
completed within 6 calendar months from the date that the most recent performance test was
conducted;

(C) If the maximum 6-minute average opacity is greater than 5 percent but less than or equal to
10 percent, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test must be
completed within 3 calendar months from the date that the most recent performance test was
conducted; or

(D) If the maximum 6-minute average opacity is greater than 10 percent, a subsequent Method 9
of appendix A—4 of this part performance test must be completed within 30 calendar days from
the date that the most recent performance test was conducted.

(i1) If the maximum 6-minute opacity is less than 10 percent during the most recent Method 9 of
appendix A—4 of this part performance test, the owner or operator may, as an alternative to
performing subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test, elect to perform
subsequent monitoring using Method 22 of appendix A—7 of this part according to the
procedures specified in paragraphs (b)(7)(ii)(A) and (B) of this section.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-7



(A) The owner or operator shall conduct 10 minute observations (during normal operation) each
operating day the affected facility fires fuel for which an opacity standard is applicable using
Method 22 of appendix A—7 of this part and demonstrate that the sum of the occurrences of any
visible, emissions is not in excess of 5 percent of the observation period (i.e., 30 seconds per 10
minute period). If the sum of the occurrence of any visible emissions is greater than 30 seconds
during the initial 10 minute observation, immediately conduct a 30 minute observation. If the
sum of the occurrence of visible emissions is greater than 5 percent of the observation period
(i.e., 90 seconds per 30 minute period) the owner or operator shall either document and adjust the
operation of the facility and demonstrate within 24 hours that the sum of the occurrence of
visible emissions is equal to or less than 5 percent during a 30 minute observation (i.e., 90
seconds) or conduct a new Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test using the
procedures in paragraph (b)(7) of this section within 30 calendar days according to the
requirements in §60.46(b)(3).

(B) If no visible emissions are observed for 30 operating days during which an opacity standard
is applicable, observations can be reduced to once every 7 operating days during which an
opacity standard is applicable. If any visible emissions are observed, daily observations shall be
resumed.

(iii) If the maximum 6-minute opacity is less than 10 percent during the most recent Method 9 of
appendix A—4 of this part performance test, the owner or operator may, as an alternative to
performing subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 performance tests, elect to perform
subsequent monitoring using a digital opacity compliance system according to a site-specific
monitoring plan approved by the Administrator. The observations shall be similar, but not
necessarily identical, to the requirements in paragraph (b)(7)(ii) of this section. For reference
purposes in preparing the monitoring plan, see OAQPS “Determination of Visible Emission
Opacity from Stationary Sources Using Computer-Based Photographic Analysis Systems.” This
document is available from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA); Office of Air
Quality and Planning Standards; Sector Policies and Programs Division; Measurement Policy
Group (D243-02), Research Triangle Park, NC 27711. This document is also available on the
Technology Transfer Network (TTN) under Emission Measurement Center Preliminary
Methods.

(c) For performance evaluations under §60.13(c) and calibration checks under §60.13(d), the
following procedures shall be used:

(1) Methods 6, 7, and 3B of appendix A of this part, as applicable, shall be used for the
performance evaluations of SO, and NOx continuous monitoring systems. Acceptable alternative
methods for Methods 6, 7, and 3B of appendix A of this part are given in §60.46(d).

(2) Sulfur dioxide or nitric oxide, as applicable, shall be used for preparing calibration gas
mixtures under Performance Specification 2 of appendix B to this part.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-8



(3) For affected facilities burning fossil fuel(s), the span value for a continuous monitoring
system measuring the opacity of emissions shall be 80, 90, or 100 percent. For a continuous
monitoring system measuring sulfur oxides or NOx the span value shall be determined using one
of the following procedures:

(i) Except as provided under paragraph (c)(3)(ii) of this section, SO, and NOx span values shall
be determined as follows:

In parts per million

e Span value for SO, Span value for NOx
Gas " 500.
Liquid 1,000 500.
Solid 1,500 1,000.
Combinations 1,000y + 1,500z 500 (x +y) + 1,000z.
"Not applicable.
Where:

x = Fraction of total heat input derived from gaseous fossil fuel;
y = Fraction of total heat input derived from liquid fossil fuel; and
z = Fraction of total heat input derived from solid fossil fuel.

(i1) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (c)(3)(i) of this section, the owner
or operator of an affected facility may elect to use the SO, and NOx span values determined
according to sections 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 in appendix A to part 75 of this chapter.

(4) All span values computed under paragraph (c)(3)(i) of this section for burning combinations
of fossil fuels shall be rounded to the nearest 500 ppm. Span values that are computed under
paragraph (c)(3)(ii) of this section shall be rounded off according to the applicable procedures in
section 2 of appendix A to part 75 of this chapter.

(5) For a fossil-fuel-fired steam generator that simultaneously burns fossil fuel and nonfossil
fuel, the span value of all CEMS shall be subject to the Administrator's approval.

(d) [Reserved]
(e) For any CEMS installed under paragraph (a) of this section, the following conversion

procedures shall be used to convert the continuous monitoring data into units of the applicable
standards (ng/J, Ib/MMBtu):

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-9



(1) When a CEMS for measuring O, is selected, the measurement of the pollutant concentration
and O,concentration shall each be on a consistent basis (wet or dry). Alternative procedures
approved by the Administrator shall be used when measurements are on a wet basis. When
measurements are on a dry basis, the following conversion procedure shall be used:

i 209
. CF[(zo.g —%o,)]

Where E, C, F, and %0, are determined under paragraph (f) of this section.
(2) When a CEMS for measuring CO; is selected, the measurement of the pollutant concentration

and CO; concentration shall each be on a consistent basis (wet or dry) and the following
conversion procedure shall be used:

g =cp [_100
“| %co,

Where E, C, F.and %CO,are determined under paragraph (f) of this section.

(f) The values used in the equations under paragraphs (e)(1) and (2) of this section are derived as
follows:

(1) E = pollutant emissions, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu).

(2) C = pollutant concentration, ng/dscm (Ib/dscf), determined by multiplying the average
concentration (ppm) for each one-hour period by 4.15 x 10* M ng/dscm per ppm (2.59 x 10°M
Ib/dscf per ppm) where M = pollutant molecular weight, g/g-mole (1b/lb-mole). M = 64.07 for
SO, and 46.01 for NOx.

(3) %0,, %CO,= O, or CO, volume (expressed as percent), determined with equipment specified
under paragraph (a) of this section.

(4) F, F= a factor representing a ratio of the volume of dry flue gases generated to the calorific
value of the fuel combusted (F), and a factor representing a ratio of the volume of CO, generated
to the calorific value of the fuel combusted (F.), respectively. Values of F and F; are given as
follows:

(i) For anthracite coal as classified according to ASTM D388 (incorporated by reference, see
§60.17), F = 2,723 x 10" "dscm/J (10,140 dscf/MMBtu) and F.= 0.532 x 10™""scm CO4/J (1,980
scf CO,/MMBtu).

(ii) For subbituminous and bituminous coal as classified according to ASTM D388 (incorporated
by reference, see §60.17), F =2.637 x 10""dscm/J (9,820 dscf/MMBtu) and F= 0.486 x 10 "scm
CO,/J (1,810 scf CO,/MMBtu).

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-10



(iii) For liquid fossil fuels including crude, residual, and distillate oils, F = 2.476 x 10 "dscm/J
(9,220 dscf/MMBtu) and F.= 0.384 x 10 "scm CO,/J (1,430 scf CO,/MMBtu).

(iv) For gaseous fossil fuels, F =2.347 x 107 "dsem/J (8,740 dscf/MMBtu). For natural gas,
propane, and butane fuels, F.= 0.279 x 107scm CO4/J (1,040 scf COo/MMBtu) for natural gas,
0.322 x 107 'sem CO4/J (1,200 scf COo/MMBtu) for propane, and 0.338 x 1077sem CO4/J (1,260
scf CO,/MMBtu) for butane.

(v) For bark F = 2.589 x 107 7dscm/J (9,640 dscf/MMBtu) and F.= 0.500 x 10™'scm CO/J (1,840
scf CO,/MMBtu). For wood residue other than bark F =2.492 x 107 "dscm/J (9,280
dscf/MMBtu) and F¢= 0.494 x 107'scm CO,/J (1,860 scf CO/MMBtu).

(vi) For lignite coal as classified according to ASTM D388 (incorporated b_?/ reference, see
§60.17), F = 2.659 x 10~ dsem/J (9,900 dscf/MMBtu) and F.= 0.516 x 10™'scm CO»/J (1,920 scf
CO,/MMBtu).

(5) The owner or operator may use the following equation to determine an F factor (dscm/J or
dscf/MMBtu) on a dry basis (if it is desired to calculate F on a wet basis, consult the
Administrator) or Fc factor (scm CO5/J, or scf CO,/MMBtu) on either basis in lieu of the F or F¢
factors specified in paragraph (f)(4) of this section:

g~ [227.2 G6H) +95.5 (%C) +35.6 (%) +8.7 (%) - 28.7 (%O)]

F
GCV
_ 20x107(%C)
© GCV B! units)
F = 1p-¢ B.64 (%) +1.53 (%C) +0.57 (%8) +0.14 (%N) -0.46 (%0)]

GCV (English units)

_ 200(%C)
¢~ GCV (5! units)

. 321x10° (%C)
*  GCV (English units)

(i) %H, %C, %S, %N, and %0 are content by weight of hydrogen, carbon, sulfur, nitrogen, and
Oa(expressed as percent), respectively, as determined on the same basis as GCV by ultimate
analysis of the fuel fired, using ASTM D3178 or D3176 (solid fuels), or computed from results
using ASTM D1137, D1945, or D1946 (gaseous fuels) as applicable. (These five methods are
incorporated by reference, see §60.17.)

(ii) GVC is the gross calorific value (kJ/kg, Btu/lb) of the fuel combusted determined by the

ASTM test methods D2015 or D5865 for solid fuels and D1826 for gaseous fuels as applicable.
(These three methods are incorporated by reference, see §60.17.)

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-11



(iii) For affected facilities which fire both fossil fuels and nonfossil fuels, the F or Fc value shall
be subject to the Administrator's approval.

(6) For affected facilities firing combinations of fossil fuels or fossil fuels and wood residue, the
F or Fc factors determined by paragraphs (£)(4) or (£)(5) of this section shall be prorated in
accordance with the applicable formula as follows:

F=3XF o F=3%(F)
inl iml

Where:

X;= Fraction of total heat input derived from each type of fuel (e.g., natural gas, bituminous coal,
wood residue, etc.);

F;or (F.)i= Applicable F or F factor for each fuel type determined in accordance with paragraphs
(H)(4) and (f)(5) of this section; and

n = Number of fuels being burned in combination.

(g) Excess emission and monitoring system performance reports shall be submitted to the
Administrator semiannually for each six-month period in the calendar year. All semiannual
reports shall be postmarked by the 30th day following the end of each six-month period. Each
excess emission and MSP report shall include the information required in §60.7(c). Periods of
excess emissions and monitoring systems (MS) downtime that shall be reported are defined as
follows:

(1) Opacity. Excess emissions are defined as any six-minute period during which the average
opacity of emissions exceeds 20 percent opacity, except that one six-minute average per hour of
up to 27 percent opacity need not be reported.

(1) For sources subject to the opacity standard of §60.42(b)(1), excess emissions are defined as
any six-minute period during which the average opacity of emissions exceeds 35 percent opacity,
except that one six-minute average per hour of up to 42 percent opacity need not be reported.

(ii) For sources subject to the opacity standard of §60.42(b)(2), excess emissions are defined as
any six-minute period during which the average opacity of emissions exceeds 32 percent opacity,
except that one six-minute average per hour of up to 39 percent opacity need not be reported.

(2) Sulfur dioxide. Excess emissions for affected facilities are defined as:

(1) For affected facilities electing not to comply with §60.43(d), any three-hour period during

which the average emissions (arithmetic average of three contiguous one-hour periods) of SO, as
measured by a CEMS exceed the applicable standard in §60.43; or

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-12



(ii) For affected facilities electing to comply with §60.43(d), any 30 operating day period during
which the average emissions (arithmetic average of all one-hour periods during the 30 operating
days) of SO, as measured by a CEMS exceed the applicable standard in §60.43. Facilities
complying with the 30-day SO; standard shall use the most current associated SO, compliance
and monitoring requirements in §§60.48Da and 60.49Da of subpart Da of this part or §§60.45b
and 60.47b of subpart Db of this part, as applicable.

(3) Nitrogen oxides. Excess emissions for affected facilities using a CEMS for measuring NOx
are defined as:

(1) For affected facilities electing not to comply with §60.44(e), any three-hour period during
which the average emissions (arithmetic average of three contiguous one-hour periods) exceed
the applicable standards in §60.44; or

(ii) For affected facilities electing to comply with §60.44(e), any 30 operating day period during
which the average emissions (arithmetic average of all one-hour periods during the 30 operating
days) of NOx as measured by a CEMS exceed the applicable standard in §60.44. Facilities
complying with the 30-day NOx standard shall use the most current associated NOx compliance
and monitoring requirements in §§60.48Da and 60.49Da of subpart Da of this part.

(4) Particulate matter. Excess emissions for affected facilities using a CEMS for measuring PM
are defined as any boiler operating day period during which the average emissions (arithmetic
average of all operating one-hour periods) exceed the applicable standards in §60.42. Affected
facilities using PM CEMS must follow the most current applicable compliance and monitoring
provisions in §§60.48Da and 60.49Da of subpart Da of this part.

(h) The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to the opacity limits in §60.42 that elects
to monitor emissions according to the requirements in §60.45(b)(7) shall maintain records '
according to the requirements specified in paragraphs (h)(1) through (3) of this section, as
applicable to the visible emissions monitoring method used.

(1) For each performance test conducted using Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part, the owner
or operator shall keep the records including the information specified in paragraphs (h)(1)(i)
through (iii) of this section.

(i) Dates and time intervals of all opacity observation periods;

(ii) Name, affiliation, and copy of current visible emission reading certification for each visible
emission observer participating in the performance test; and

(iii) Copies of all visible emission observer opacity field data sheets;
(2) For each performance test conducted using Method 22 of appendix A—4 of this part, the

owner or operator shall keep the records including the information specified in paragraphs
(h)(2)(1) through (iv) of this section.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-13



(i) Dates and time intervals of all visible emissions observation periods;

(i1) Name and affiliation for each visible emission observer participating in the performance test;
(iii) Copies of all visible emission observer opacity field data sheets; and

(iv) Documentation of any adjustments made and the time the adjustments were completed to the
affected facility operation by the owner or operator to demonstrate compliance with the
applicable monitoring requirements.

(3) For each digital opacity compliance system, the owner or operator shall maintain records and
submit reports according to the requirements specified in the site-specific monitoring plan
approved by the Administrator.

[60 FR 65415, Dec. 19, 1995, as amended at 74 FR 5077, Jan. 28, 2009]

§ 60.46 Test methods and procedures.

(a) In conducting the performance tests required in §60.8, and subsequent performance tests as
requested by the EPA Administrator, the owner or operator shall use as reference methods and
procedures the test methods in appendix A of this part or other methods and procedures as
specified in this section, except as provided in §60.8(b). Acceptable alternative methods and

procedures are given in paragraph (d) of this section.

(b) The owner or operator shall determine compliance with the PM, SO, and NOx standards in
§§60.42, 60.43, and 60.44 as follows:

(1) The emission rate (E) of PM, SO,, or NOx shall be computed for each run using the
following equation:

20.9
E=CEF | ——
‘[(20.9—%0,)]

Where:

E = Emission rate of pollutant, ng/J (1b/million Btu);

C = Concentration of pollutant, ng/dscm (1b/dscf);

%0, = Oyconcentration, percent dry basis; and

F4= Factor as determined from Method 19 of appendix A of this part.

(2) Method 5 of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the PM concentration (C) at

affected facilities without wet flue-gas-desulfurization (FGD) systems and Method 5B of
appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the PM concentration (C) after FGD systems.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-14



(i) The sampling time and sample volume for each run shall be at least 60 minutes and 0.85 dscm
(30 dscf). The probe and filter holder heating systems in the sampling train shall be set to provide
an average gas temperature of 160+14 °C (320425 °F).

(ii) The emission rate correction factor, integrated or grab sampling and analysis procedure of
Method 3B of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the O, concentration (%0,).
The O, sample shall be obtained simultaneously with, and at the same traverse points as, the
particulate sample. If the grab sampling procedure is used, the O, concentration for the run shall
be the arithmetic mean of the sample O,concentrations at all traverse points.

(iii) If the particulate run has more than 12 traverse points, the O, traverse points may be reduced
to 12 provided that Method 1 of appendix A of this part is used to locate the 12 O, traverse
points.

(3) Method 9 of appendix A of this part and the procedures in §60.11 shall be used to determine
opacity.

(4) Method 6 of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the SO, concentration.

(i) The sampling site shall be the same as that selected for the particulate sample. The sampling
location in the duct shall be at the centroid of the cross section or at a point no closer to the walls
than 1 m (3.28 ft). The sampling time and sample volume for each sample run shall be at least
20 minutes and 0.020 dscm (0.71 dscf). Two samples shall be taken during a 1-hour period, with
each sample taken within a 30-minute interval.

(i1) The emission rate correction factor, integrated sampling and analysis procedure of Method
3B of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the O,concentration (%0;). The O,
sample shall be taken simultaneously with, and at the same point as, the SO, sample. The SO,
emission rate shall be computed for each pair of SO, and O;samples. The SO, emission rate (E)
for each run shall be the arithmetic mean of the results of the two pairs of samples.

(5) Method 7 of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the NOx concentration.

(i) The sampling site and location shall be the same as for the SO, sample. Each run shall consist
of four grab samples, with each sample taken at about 15-minute intervals.

(i1) For each NOx sample, the emission rate correction factor, grab sampling and analysis
procedure of Method 3B of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the O,
concentration (%0;). The sample shall be taken simultaneously with, and at the same point as,
the NOx sample.

(iii) The NOx emission rate shall be computed for each pair of NOx and O, samples. The NOx

emission rate (E) for each run shall be the arithmetic mean of the results of the four pairs of
samples.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-15



(c) When combinations of fossil fuels or fossil fuel and wood residue are fired, the owner or
operator (in order to compute the prorated standard as shown in §§60.43(b) and 60.44(b)) shall
determine the percentage (w, X, y, or z) of the total heat input derived from each type of fuel as
follows:

(1) The heat input rate of each fuel shall be determined by multiplying the gross calorific value
of each fuel fired by the rate of each fuel burned.

(2) ASTM Methods D2015, or D5865 (solid fuels), D240 (liquid fuels), or D1826 (gaseous
fuels) (all of these methods are incorporated by reference, see §60.17) shall be used to determine
the gross calorific values of the fuels. The method used to determine the calorific value of wood

residue must be approved by the Administrator.

(3) Suitable methods shall be used to determine the rate of each fuel burned during each test
period, and a material balance over the steam generating system shall be used to confirm the rate.

(d) The owner or operator may use the following as alternatives to the reference methods and
procedures in this section or in other sections as specified:

(1) The emission rate (E) of PM, SO, and NOx may be determined by using the Fc factor,
provided that the following procedure is used:

(i) The emission rate (E) shall be computed using the following equation:

& = cp 100
%CO,

Where:

E = Emission rate of pollutant, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu);

C = Concentration of pollutant, ng/dscm (Ib/dscf);

%C0, = CO,concentration, percent dry basis; and

F. = Factor as determined in appropriate sections of Method 19 of appendix A of this part.

(ii) If and only if the average Fc factor in Method 19 of appendix A of this part is used to
calculate E and either E is from 0.97 to 1.00 of the emission standard or the relative accuracy of
a continuous emission monitoring system is from 17 to 20 percent, then three runs of Method 3B
of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the O, and CO; concentration according to
the procedures in paragraph (b)(2)(ii), (4)(ii), or (5)(ii) of this section. Then if F, (average of
three runs), as calculated from the equation in Method 3B of appendix A of this part, is more
than 3 percent than the average F, value, as determined from the average values of Fyand F.in
Method 19 of appendix A of this part, i.e., Foa=0.209 (Fya/Fa), then the following procedure
shall be followed:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-16



(A) When F, is less than 0.97 F,,, then E shall be increased by that proportion under 0.97 F,,
e.g., if F,is 0.95 Fo,, E shall be increased by 2 percent. This recalculated value shall be used to
determine compliance with the emission standard.

(B) When F, is less than 0.97 F,, and when the average difference (d) between the continuous
monitor minus the reference methods is negative, then E shall be increased by that proportion
under 0.97 Fo,, e.g., if Fois 0.95 F,, E shall be increased by 2 percent. This recalculated value
shall be used to determine compliance with the relative accuracy specification.

(C) When F, is greater than 1.03 F,; and when the average difference d is positive, then E shall
be decreased by that proportion over 1.03 Fo,, e.g., if Fyis 1.05 F,,, E shall be decreased by 2
percent. This recalculated value shall be used to determine compliance with the relative
accuracy specification.

(2) For Method 5 or 5B of appendix A—3 of this part, Method 17 of appendix A—6 of this part
may be used at facilities with or without wet FGD systems if the stack gas temperature at the
sampling location does not exceed an average temperature of 160 °C (320 °F). The procedures
of sections 8.1 and 11.1 of Method 5B of appendix A—3 of this part may be used with Method 17
of appendix A—6 of this part only if it is used after wet FGD systems. Method 17 of appendix
A—6 of this part shall not be used after wet FGD systems if the effluent gas is saturated or laden
with water droplets.

(3) Particulate matter and SO, may be determined simultaneously with the Method 5 of appendix
A of this part train provided that the following changes are made:

(1) The filter and impinger apparatus in sections 2.1.5 and 2.1.6 of Method 8 of appendix A of
this part is used in place of the condenser (section 2.1.7) of Method 5 of appendix A of this part.

(ii) All applicable procedures in Method 8 of appendix A of this part for the determination of
SO; (including moisture) are used:

(4) For Method 6 of appendix A of this part, Method 6C of appendix A of this part may be used.
Method 6A of appendix A of this part may also be used whenever Methods 6 and 3B of appendix
A of this part data are specified to determine the SO, emission rate, under the conditions in
paragraph (d)(1) of this section.

(5) For Method 7 of appendix A of this part, Method 7A, 7C, 7D, or 7E of appendix A of this
part may be used. If Method 7C, 7D, or 7E of appendix A of this part is used, the sampling time
for each run shall be at least 1 hour and the integrated sampling approach shall be used to
determine the O, concentration (%0,) for the emission rate correction factor.

(6) For Method 3 of appendix A of this part, Method 3A or 3B of appendix A of this part may be
used.

(7) For Method 3B of appendix A of this part, Method 3A of appendix A of this part may be
used.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-17



[60 FR 65415, Dec. 19, 1995, as amended at 74 FR 5078, Jan. 28, 2009]

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc



Title 40: Protection of Environment
PART 60—STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW STATIONARY SOURCES

Subpart Da—Standards of Performance for Electric Utility Steam Generating Units for
Which Construction is Commenced After September 18, 1978

Source: 72 FR 32722, June 13, 2007, unless otherwise noted.
§ 60.40Da Applicability and designation of affected facility.

(a) Except as specified in paragraph (e) of this section, the affected facility to which this subpart
applies is each electric utility steam generating unit:

(1) That is capable of combusting more than 73 megawatts (MW) (250 million British thermal
units per hour (MMBtw/hr)) heat input of fossil fuel (either alone or in combination with any
other fuel); and

(2) For which construction, modification, or reconstruction is commenced after September 18,
1978.

(b) An IGCC electric utility steam generating unit (both the stationary combustion turbine and
any associated duct burners) is subject to this part and is not subject to subpart GG or KKKK of
this part if both of the conditions specified in paragraphs (b)(1) and (2) of this section are met.

(1) The IGCC electric utility steam generating unit is capable of combusting more than 73 MW
(250 MMBtwhr) heat input of fossil fuel (either alone or in combination with any other fuel);
and

(2) The IGCC electric utility steam generating unit commenced construction, modification, or
reconstruction after February 28, 2005.

(c) Any change to an existing fossil-fuel-fired steam generating unit to accommodate the use of
combustible materials, other than fossil fuels, shall not bring that unit under the applicability of
this subpart.

(d) Any change to an existing steam generating unit originally designed to fire gaseous or liquid
fossil fuels, to accommodate the use of any other fuel (fossil or nonfossil) shall not bring that
unit under the applicability of this subpart.

(e) Applicability of the requirement of this subpart to an electric utility combined cycle gas

turbine other than an IGCC electric utility steam generating unit is as specified in paragraphs
(e)(1) and (2) of this section.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-19



(1) Heat recovery steam generators used with duct burners and associated with an electric utility
combined cycle gas turbine that are capable of combusting more than 73 MW (250 MMBtu/hr)
heat input of fossil fuel are subject to this subpart except in cases when the heat recovery steam
generator meets the applicability requirements and is subject to subpart KKKK of this part.

(2) For heat recovery steam generators use with duct burners subject to this subpart, only
emissions resulting from the combustion of fuels in the steam generating unit (i.e., duct burners)
are subject to the standards under this subpart. (The emissions resulting from the combustion of
fuels in the stationary combustion turbine engine are subject to subpart GG or KKK, as
applicable, of this part).

[72 FR 32722, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5078, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.41Da Definitions.

As used in this subpart, all terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given them in the Act
and in subpart A of this part.

Anthracite means coal that is classified as anthracite according to the American Society of
Testing and Materials in ASTM D388 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17).

Available purchase power means the lesser of the following:
(a) The sum of available system capacity in all neighboring companies.

(b) The sum of the rated capacities of the power interconnection devices between the principal
company and all neighboring companies, minus the sum of the electric power load on these
interconnections.

(c) The rated capacity of the power transmission lines between the power interconnection
devices and the electric generating units (the unit in the principal company that has the
malfunctioning flue gas desulfurization system and the unit(s) in the neighboring company
supplying replacement electrical power) less the electric power load on these transmission lines.

Available system capacity means the capacity determined by subtracting the system load and the
system emergency reserves from the net system capacity.

Biomass means plant materials and animal waste.

Bituminous coal means coal that is classified as bituminous according to the American Society of
Testing and Materials in ASTM D388 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17).

Boiler operating day for units constructed, reconstructed, or modified on or before February 28,
2005, means a 24-hour period during which fossil fuel is combusted in a steam-generating unit
for the entire 24 hours. For units constructed, reconstructed, or modified after February 28,
2005, boiler operating day means a 24-hour period between 12 midnight and the following

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-20



midnight during which any fuel is combusted at any time in the steam-generating unit. It is not
necessary for fuel to be combusted the entire 24-hour period.

Coal means all solid fuels classified as anthracite, bituminous, subbituminous, or lignite by the
American Society of Testing and Materials in ASTM D388 (incorporated by reference, see
§60.17) and coal refuse. Synthetic fuels derived from coal for the purpose of creating useful
heat, including but not limited to solvent-refined coal, gasified coal (not meeting the definition of
natural gas), coal-oil mixtures, and coal-water mixtures are included in this definition for the
purposes of this subpart.

Coal-fired electric utility steam generating unit means an electric utility steam generating unit
that burns coal, coal refuse, or a synthetic gas derived from coal either exclusively, in any
combination together, or in any combination with other fuels in any amount.

Coal refuse means waste products of coal mining, physical coal cleaning, and coal preparation
operations ( e.g., culm, gob, etc.) containing coal, matrix material, clay, and other organic and
inorganic material.

Cogeneration, also known as “combined heat and power,” means a steam-generating unit that
simultaneously produces both electric (or mechanical) and useful thermal energy from the same
primary energy source.

Combined cycle gas turbine means a stationary turbine combustion system where heat from the
turbine exhaust gases is recovered by a steam generating unit.

Dry flue gas desulfurization technology or dry FGD means a sulfur dioxide control system that is
located downstream of the steam generating unit and removes sulfur oxides (SO,) from the
combustion gases of the steam generating unit by contacting the combustion gases with an
alkaline reagent and water, whether introduced separately or as a premixed slurry or solution and
forming a dry powder material. This definition includes devices where the dry powder material
is subsequently converted to another form. Alkaline slurries or solutions used in dry FGD
technology include, but are not limited to, lime and sodium.

Duct burner means a device that combusts fuel and that is placed in the exhaust duct from
another source, such as a stationary gas turbine, internal combustion engine, kiln, etc., to allow
the firing of additional fuel to heat the exhaust gases before the exhaust gases enter a heat
recovery steam generating unit.

Electric utility combined cycle gas turbine means any combined cycle gas turbine used for
electric generation that is constructed for the purpose of supplying more than one-third of its
potential electric output capacity and more than 25 MW net-electrical output to any utility power
distribution system for sale. Any steam distribution system that is constructed for the purpose of
providing steam to a steam electric generator that would produce electrical power for sale is also
considered in determining the electrical energy output capacity of the affected facility.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-21



Electric utility company means the largest interconnected organization, business, or
governmental entity that generates electric power for sale (e.g., a holding company with
operating subsidiary companies).

Electric utility steam-generating unit means any steam electric generating unit that is constructed
for the purpose of supplying more than one-third of its potential electric output capacity and
more than 25 MW net-electrical output to any utility power distribution system for sale. Also,
any steam supplied to a steam distribution system for the purpose of providing steam to a steam-
electric generator that would produce electrical energy for sale is considered in determining the
electrical energy output capacity of the affected facility.

Electrostatic precipitator or ESP means an add-on air pollution control device used to capture
particulate matter (PM) by charging the particles using an electrostatic field, collecting the
particles using a grounded collecting surface, and transporting the particles into a hopper.

Emergency condition means that period of time when:

(1) The electric generation output of an affected facility with a malfunctioning flue gas
desulfurization system cannot be reduced or electrical output must be increased because:

(i) All available system capacity in the principal company interconnected with the affected
facility is being operated, and

(ii) All available purchase power interconnected with the affected facility is being obtained, or

(2) The electric generation demand is being shifted as quickly as possible from an affected
facility with a malfunctioning flue gas desulfurization system to one or more electrical
generating units held in reserve by the principal company or by a neighboring company, or

(3) An affected facility with a malfunctioning flue gas desulfurization system becomes the only
available unit to maintain a part or all of the principal company's system emergency reserves and
the unit is operated in spinning reserve at the lowest practical electric generation load consistent
with not causing significant physical damage to the unit. If the unit is operated at a higher load
to meet load demand, an emergency condition would not exist unless the conditions under
paragraph (1) of this definition apply.

Emission limitation means any emissions limit or operating limit.

Emission rate period means any calendar month included in a 12-month rolling average period.
Federally enforceable means all limitations and conditions that are enforceable by the
Administrator, including the requirements of 40 CFR parts 60 and 61, requirements within any

applicable State implementation plan, and any permit requirements established under 40 CFR
52.21 or under 40 CFR 51.18 and 51.24.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-22



Fossil fuel means natural gas, petroleum, coal, and any form of solid, liquid, or gaseous fuel
derived from such material for the purpose of creating useful heat.

Gaseous fuel means any fuel derived from coal or petroleum that is present as a gas at standard
conditions and includes, but is not limited to, refinery fuel gas, process gas, coke-oven gas,
synthetic gas, and gasified coal.

Gross output means the gross useful work performed by the steam generated and, for an IGCC
electric utility steam generating unit, the work performed by the stationary combustion turbines.
For a unit generating only electricity, the gross useful work performed is the gross electrical
output from the unit's turbine/generator sets. For a cogeneration unit, the gross useful work
performed is the gross electrical or mechanical output plus 75 percent of the useful thermal
output measured relative to ISO conditions that is not used to generate additional electrical or
mechanical output or to enhance the performance of the unit (i.e., steam delivered to an industrial
process).

24-hour period means the period of time between 12:01 a.m. and 12:00 midnight.

Integrated gasification combined cycle electric utility steam generating unit or IGCC electric
utility steam generating unit means an electric utility combined cycle gas turbine that is designed
to burn fuels containing 50 percent (by heat input) or more solid-derived fuel not meeting the
definition of natural gas. No solid fuel is directly burned in the unit during operation.

Interconnected means that two or more electric generating units are electrically tied together by a
network of power transmission lines, and other power transmission equipment.

ISO conditions means a temperature of 288 Kelvin, a relative humidity of 60 percent, and a
pressure of 101.3 kilopascals.

Lignite means coal that is classified as lignite A or B according to the American Society of
Testing and Materials in ASTM D388 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17).

Natural gas means:

(1) A naturally occurring mixture of hydrocarbon and nonhydrocarbon gases found in geologic
formations beneath the earth's surface, of which the principal constituent is methane; or

(2) Liquid petroleum gas, as defined by the American Society of Testing and Materials in ASTM
D1835 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17); or

(3) A mixture of hydrocarbons that maintains a gaseous state at ISO conditions. Additionally,
natural gas must either be composed of at least 70 percent methane by volume or have a gross
calorific value between 34 and 43 megajoules (MJ) per dry standard cubic meter (910 and 1,150
Btu per dry standard cubic foot).

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-23



Neighboring company means any one of those electric utility companies with one or more
electric power interconnections to the principal company and which have geographically
adjoining service areas.

Net-electric output means the gross electric sales to the utility power distribution system minus
purchased power on a calendar year basis.

Net system capacity means the sum of the net electric generating capability (not necessarily equal
to rated capacity) of all electric generating equipment owned by an electric utility company
(including steam generating units, internal combustion engines, gas turbines, nuclear units,
hydroelectric units, and all other electric generating equipment) plus firm contractual purchases
that are interconnected to the affected facility that has the malfunctioning flue gas desulfurization
system. The electric generating capability of equipment under multiple ownership is prorated
based on ownership unless the proportional entitlement to electric output is otherwise established
by contractual arrangement.

Noncontinental area means the State of Hawaii, the Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, or the Northern Mariana Islands.

Petroleum means crude oil or a fuel derived from crude oil, including, but not limited to,
distillate oil, and residual oil.

Potential combustion concentration means the theoretical emissions (nanograms per joule (ng/J),
1b/MMBtu heat input) that would result from combustion of a fuel in an uncleaned state without
emission control systems) and:

(1) For particulate matter (PM) is:

(1) 3,000 ng/J (7.0 Ib/MMBtu) heat input for solid fuel; and

(ii) 73 ng/J (0.17 1b/MMBtu) heat input for liquid fuels.

(2) For sulfur dioxide (SO3) is determined under §60.50Da(c).

(3) For nitrogen oxides (NOx) is:

(1) 290 ng/J (0.67 Ib/MMBtu) heat input for gaseous fuels;

(ii) 310 ng/J (0.72 1b/MMBtu) heat input for liquid fuels; and

(iii) 990 ng/J (2.30 Ib/MMBtu) heat input for solid fuels.

Potential electrical output capacity means 33 percent of the maximum design heat input capacity
of the steam generating unit, divided by 3,413 Btu/KWh, divided by 1,000 kWh/MWh, and

multiplied by 8,760 hr/yr (e.g., a steam generating unit with a 100 MW (340 MMBtu/hr) fossil-
fuel heat input capacity would have a 289,080 MWh 12 month potential electrical output

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-24



capacity). For electric utility combined cycle gas turbines the potential electrical output capacity
is determined on the basis of the fossil-fuel firing capacity of the steam generator exclusive of
the heat input and electrical power contribution by the gas turbine.

Principal company means the electric utility company or companies which own the affected
facility.

Resource recovery unit means a facility that combusts more than 75 percent non-fossil fuel on a
quarterly (calendar) heat input basis.

Responsible official means responsible official as defined in 40 CFR 70.2.

Solid-derived fuel means any solid, liquid, or gaseous fuel derived from solid fuel for the purpose
of creating useful heat and includes, but is not limited to, solvent refined coal, liquified coal,
synthetic gas, gasified coal, gasified petroleum coke, gasified biomass, and gasified tire derived
fuel.

Spare flue gas desulfurization system module means a separate system of SO, emission control
equipment capable of treating an amount of flue gas equal to the total amount of flue gas
generated by an affected facility when operated at maximum capacity divided by the total
number of nonspare flue gas desulfurization modules in the system.

Spinning reserve means the sum of the unutilized net generating capability of all units of the
electric utility company that are synchronized to the power distribution system and that are
capable of immediately accepting additional load. The electric generating capability of
equipment under multiple ownership is prorated based on ownership unless the proportional
entitlement to electric output is otherwise established by contractual arrangement.

Steam generating unit means any furnace, boiler, or other device used for combusting fuel for
the purpose of producing steam (including fossil-fuel-fired steam generators associated with
combined cycle gas turbines; nuclear steam generators are not included).

Subbituminous coal means coal that is classified as subbituminous A, B, or C according to the
American Society of Testing and Materials in ASTM D388 (incorporated by reference, see
§60.17).

System emergency reserves means an amount of electric generating capacity equivalent to the
rated capacity of the single largest electric generating unit in the electric utility company
(including steam generating units, internal combustion engines, gas turbines, nuclear units,
hydroelectric units, and all other electric generating equipment) which is interconnected with the
affected facility that has the malfunctioning flue gas desulfurization system. The electric
generating capability of equipment under multiple ownership is prorated based on ownership
unless the proportional entitlement to electric output is otherwise established by contractual
arrangement.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, D¢ C-25



System load means the entire electric demand of an electric utility company's service area
interconnected with the affected facility that has the malfunctioning flue gas desulfurization
system plus firm contractual sales to other electric utility companies. Sales to other electric
utility companies (e.g., emergency power) not on a firm contractual basis may also be included
in the system load when no available system capacity exists in the electric utility company to
which the power is supplied for sale.

Wet flue gas desulfurization technology or wet FGD means a SO, control system that is located
downstream of the steam generating unit and removes sulfur oxides from the combustion gases
of the steam generating unit by contacting the combustion gases with an alkaline slurry or
solution and forming a liquid material. This definition applies to devices where the aqueous
liquid material product of this contact is subsequently converted to other forms. Alkaline
reagents used in wet FGD technology include, but are not limited to, lime, limestone, and
sodium.

[72 FR 32722, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5079, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.42Da Standard for particulate matter (PM).

(a) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator subject to the
provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any affected
facility for which construction, reconstruction, or modification commenced before or on
February 28, 2005, any gases that contain PM in excess of:

(1) 13 ng/J (0.03 Ib/MMBtu) heat input derived from the combustion of solid, liquid, or gaseous
fuel;

(2) 1 percent of the potential combustion concentration (99 percent reduction) when combusting
solid fuel; and

(3) 30 percent of potential combustion concentration (70 percent reduction) when combusting
liquid fuel.

(b) On and after the date the initial PM performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator subject to the
provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any affected
facility any gases which exhibit greater than 20 percent opacity (6-minute average), except for
one 6-minute period per hour of not more than 27 percent opacity. Owners and operators of an
affected facility that elect to install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a continuous emissions
monitoring system (CEMS) for measuring PM emissions according to the requirements of this
subpart are exempt from the opacity standard specified in this paragraph b.

(c) Except as provided in paragraph (d) of this section, on and after the date on which the initial

performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes
first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that commenced construction, reconstruction, or

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-26



modification after February 28, 2005, shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that
affected facility any gases that contain PM in excess of either:

(1) 18 ng/J (0.14 Ib/MWh) gross energy output; or

(2) 6.4 ng/J (0.015 Ib/MMBtu) heat input derived from the combustion of solid, liquid, or
gaseous fuel.

(d) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (c) of this section, the owner or
operator of an affected facility for which construction, reconstruction, or modification
commenced after February 28, 2005, may elect to meet the requirements of this paragraph. On
and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be completed
under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility shall cause
to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility for which construction,
reconstruction, or modification commenced after February 28, 2005, any gases that contain PM
in excess of:

(1) 13 ng/J (0.03 Ib/MMBtu) heat input derived from the combustion of solid, liquid, or gaseous
fuel, and

(2) 0.1 percent of the combustion concentration determined according to the procedure in
§60.48Da(0)(5) (99.9 percent reduction) for an affected facility for which construction or
reconstruction commenced after February 28, 2005, when combusting solid, liquid, or gaseous
fuel, or

(3) 0.2 percent of the combustion concentration determined according to the procedure in
§60.48Da(0)(5) (99.8 percent reduction) for an affected facility for which modification
commenced after February 28, 2005, when combusting solid, liquid, or gaseous fuel.

[72 FR 32722, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5079, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.43Da Standard for sulfur dioxide (SO).

(a) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator subject to the
provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any affected
facility which combusts solid fuel or solid-derived fuel and for which construction,
reconstruction, or modification commenced before or on February 28, 2005, except as provided
under paragraphs (c), (d), (f) or (h) of this section, any gases that contain SO, in excess of:

(1) 520 ng/J (1.20 Ib/MMBtu) heat input and 10 percent of the potential combustion
concentration (90 percent reduction); or

(2) 30 percent of the potential combustion concentration (70 percent reduction), when emissions
are less than 260 ng/J (0.60 1b/MMBtu) heat input.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, D¢ C-27



(b) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator subject to the
provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any affected
facility which combusts liquid or gaseous fuels (except for liquid or gaseous fuels derived from
solid fuels and as provided under paragraphs (e) or (h) of this section) and for which
construction, reconstruction, or modification commenced before or on February 28, 2005, any
gases that contain SO; in excess of:

(1) 340 ng/J (0.80 Ib/MMBtu) heat input and 10 percent of the potential combustion
concentration (90 percent reduction); or

(2) 100 percent of the potential combustion concentration (zero percent reduction) when
emissions are less than 86 ng/J (0.20 Ib/MMBtu) heat input.

(c) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator subject to the
provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any affected
facility which combusts solid solvent refined coal (SRC-I) any gases that contain SO, in excess
of 520 ng/J (1.20 Ib/MMBtu) heat input and 15 percent of the potential combustion concentration
(85 percent reduction) except as provided under paragraph (f) of this section; compliance with
the emission limitation is determined on a 30-day rolling average basis and compliance with the
percent reduction requirement is determined on a 24-hour basis.

(d) Sulfur dioxide emissions are limited to 520 ng/J (1.20 Ib/MMBtu) heat input from any
affected facility which:

(1) Combusts 100 percent anthracite;

(2) Is classified as a resource recovery unit; or

(3) Is located in a noncontinental area and combusts solid fuel or solid-derived fuel.

(e) Sulfur dioxide emissions are limited to 340 ng/J (0.80 Ib/MMBtu) heat input from any
affected facility which is located in a noncontinental area and combusts liquid or gaseous fuels
(excluding solid-derived fuels).

() The emission reduction requirements under this section do not apply to any affected facility
that is operated under an SO, commercial demonstration permit issued by the Administrator in
accordance with the provisions of §60.47Da.

(g) Compliance with the emission limitation and percent reduction requirements under this
section are both determined on a 30-day rolling average basis except as provided under

paragraph (c) of this section.

(h) When different fuels are combusted simultaneously, the applicable standard is determined by
proration using the following formula:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-28



(1) If emissions of SO, to the atmosphere are greater than 260 ng/J (0.60 1b/MMBtu) heat input

£ GBI oy g g

(2) If emissions of SO, to the atmosphere are equal to or less than 260 ng/J (0.60 1o/MMBtu) heat
input:

g - GOX WP o gp . (0x+30y)
100 100

Where:
E= Prorated SO, emission limit (ng/J heat input);
%Ps= Percentage of potential SO, emission allowed;

x = Percentage of total heat input derived from the combustion of liquid or gaseous fuels
(excluding solid-derived fuels); and

y = Percentage of total heat input derived from the combustion of solid fuel (including solid-
derived fuels).

(i) Except as provided in paragraphs (j) and (k) of this section, on and after the date on which the
initial performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date
comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that commenced construction,
reconstruction, or modification commenced after February 28, 2005, shall cause to be discharged
into the atmosphere from that affected facility, any gases that contain SO, in excess of the
applicable emission limitation specified in paragraphs (i)(1) through (3) of this section.

(1) For an affected facility for which construction commenced after February 28, 2005, any gases
that contain SO, in excess of either:

(i) 180 ng/J (1.4 Ib/MWh) gross energy output on a 30-day rolling average basis; or

(i1) 5 percent of the potential combustion concentration (95 percent reduction) on a 30-day
rolling average basis.

(2) For an affected facility for which reconstruction commenced after February 28, 2005, any
gases that contain SO; in excess of either:

(i) 180 ng/J (1.4 Ib/MWh) gross energy output on a 30-day rolling average basis;

(ii) 65 ng/J (0.15 Ib/MMBtu) heat input on a 30-day rolling average basis; or

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-29



(iii) 5 percent of the potential combustion concentration (95 percent reduction) on a 30-day
rolling average basis.

(3) For an affected facility for which modification commenced after February 28, 2005, any
gases that contain SO, in excess of either:

(1) 180 ng/J (1.4 Ib/MWh) gross energy output on a 30-day rolling average basis;
(i) 65 ng/J (0.15 Ib/MMBtu) heat input on a 30-day rolling average basis; or

(iii) 10 percent of the potential combustion concentration (90 percent reduction) on a 30-day
rolling average basis.

() On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification commenced after February 28,
2005, and that burns 75 percent or more (by heat input) coal refuse on a 12-month rolling
average basis, shall caused to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any
gases that contain SO, in excess of the applicable emission limitation specified in paragraphs
())(1) through (3) of this section.

(1) For an affected facility for which construction commenced after February 28, 2005, any gases
that contain SO, in excess of either:

(i) 180 ng/J (1.4 Ib/MWh) gross energy output on a 30-day rolling average basis; or

(ii) 6 percent of the potential combustion concentration (94 percent reduction) on a 30-day
rolling average basis.

(2) For an affected facility for which reconstruction commenced after February 28, 2005, any
gases that contain SO, in excess of either:

(i) 180 ng/J (1.4 Ib/MWh) gross energy output on a 30-day rolling average basis;
(ii) 65 ng/J (0.15 Ib/MMBtu) heat input on a 30-day rolling average basis; or

(iii) 6 percent of the potential combustion concentration (94 percent reduction) on a 30-day
rolling average basis.

(3) For an affected facility for which modification commenced after February 28, 2005, any
gases that contain SO, in excess of either:

(1) 180 ng/J (1.4 1b/MWh) gross energy output on a 30-day rolling average basis;

(ii) 65 ng/J (0.15 1b/MMBtu) heat input on a 30-day rolling average basis; or

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-30



(iii) 10 percent of the potential combustion concentration (90 percent reduction) on a 30-day
rolling average basis.

(k) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
located in a noncontinental area that commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification
commenced after February 28, 2005, shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that
affected facility any gases that contain SO, in excess of the applicable emission limitation
specified in paragraphs (k)(1) and (2) of this section.

(1) For an affected facility that burns solid or solid-derived fuel, the owner or operator shall not
cause to be discharged into the atmosphere any gases that contain SO; in excess of 520 ng/J (1.2
Ib/MMBtu) heat input on a 30-day rolling average basis.

(2) For an affected facility that burns other than solid or solid-derived fuel, the owner or operator
shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere any gases that contain SO, in excess of if the
affected facility or 230 ng/J (0.54 Ib/MMBtu) heat input on a 30-day rolling average basis.

§ 60.44Da Standard for nitrogen oxides (NOX).

(a) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator subject to the
provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any affected
facility, except as provided under paragraphs (b), (d), (e), and (f) of this section, any gases that
contain NOx (expressed as NO,) in excess of the following emission limits, based on a 30-day
rolling average basis, except as provided under §60.48Da(j)(1):

(1) NOx emission limits.

Emission limit for
heat input
Fuel type ng/J | Ib/MMBtu

Gaseous fuels:

Coal-derived fuels 210 0.50

All other fuels 86 0.20
Liquid fuels:

Coal-derived fuels 210 0.50

Shale oil 210 0.50

All other fuels 130 0.30
Solid fuels:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-31



Coal-derived fuels 210 0.50

Any fuel containing more than 25%, by weight, coal refuse M M

Any fuel containing more than 25%, by weight, lignite if the 340 0.80
lignite is mined in North Dakota, South Dakota, or Montana, and
is combusted in a slag tap furnace®

Any fuel containing more than 25%, by weight, lignite not 260 0.60
subject to the 340 ng/J heat input emission limit

Subbituminous coal 210 0.50
Bituminous coal 260 0.60
Anthracite coal 260 0.60
All other fuels 260 0.60

'Exempt from NOx standards and NOx monitoring requirements.

2 Any fuel containing less than 25%, by weight, lignite is not prorated but its percentage is added
to the percentage of the predominant fuel.

(2) NOx reduction requirement.

Percent reduction of potential combustion
Fuel type concentration
Gaseous fuels 25
Liquid fuels 30
Solid fuels 65

(b) The emission limitations under paragraph (a) of this section do not apply to any affected
facility which is combusting coal-derived liquid fuel and is operating under a commercial
demonstration permit issued by the Administrator in accordance with the provisions of
§60.47Da.

(c) Except as provided under paragraphs (d), (e), and (f) of this section, when two or more fuels
are combusted simultaneously, the applicable standard is determined by proration using the
following formula:

_ ®6w +130x + 210y + 260z +340v)
EaT 100

Where:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-32




E,= Applicable standard for NOx when multiple fuels are combusted simultaneously (ng/J heat
input);

w = Percentage of total heat input derived from the combustion of fuels subject to the 86 ng/J
heat input standard,

x = Percentage of total heat input derived from the combustion of fuels subject to the 130 ng/J
heat input standard,

y = Percentage of total heat input derived from the combustion of fuels subject to the 210 ng/J
heat input standard;

z = Percentage of total heat input derived from the combustion of fuels subject to the 260 ng/J
heat input standard; and

v = Percentage of total heat input delivered from the combustion of fuels subject to the 340 ng/J
heat input standard.

(d)(1) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that commenced construction after July 9, 1997, but before or on February 28, 2005, shall cause
to be discharged into the atmosphere any gases that contain NOx (expressed as NO,) in excess of
200 ng/J (1.6 Ib/MWh) gross energy output, based on a 30-day rolling average basis, except as
provided under §60.48Da(k).

(2) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of affected facility for
which reconstruction commenced after July 9, 1997, but before or on February 28, 2005, shall
cause to be discharged into the atmosphere any gases that contain NOx (expressed as NO>) in
excess of 65 ng/J (0.15 Ib/MMBtu) heat input, based on a 30-day rolling average basis.

(e) Except for an IGCC electric utility steam generating unit meeting the requirements of
paragraph (f) of this section, on and after the date on which the initial performance test is
completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or
operator of an affected facility that commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification
after February 28, 2005, shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected
facility any gases that contain NOx (expressed as NO,) in excess of the applicable emission
limitation specified in paragraphs (e)(1) through (3) of this section.

(1) For an affected facility for which construction commenced after February 28, 2005, the
owner or operator shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere any gases that contain
NOx (expressed as NO,) in excess of 130 ng/J (1.0 Ib/MWh) gross energy output on a 30-day
rolling average basis, except as provided under §60.48Da(k).

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-33



(2) For an affected facility for which reconstruction commenced after February 28, 2005, the
owner or operator shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere any gases that contain
NOx (expressed as NO») in excess of either:

(1) 130 ng/J (1.0 Ib/MWh) gross energy output on a 30-day rolling average basis; or
(ii) 47 ng/J (0.11 16/MMBtu) heat input on a 30-day rolling average basis.

(3) For an affected facility for which modification commenced after February 28, 2005, the
owner or operator shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere any gases that contain
NOx (expressed as NO,) in excess of either:

(i) 180 ng/J (1.4 Ib/MWh) gross energy output on a 30-day rolling average basis; or
(i1) 65 ng/J (0.15 1b/MMBtu) heat input on a 30-day rolling average basis.

(f) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, the owner or operator of an IGCC electric
utility steam generating unit subject to the provisions of this subpart and for which construction,
reconstruction, or modification commenced after February 28, 2005, shall meet the requirements
specified in paragraphs (£)(1) through (3) of this section.

(1) Except as provided for in paragraphs (f)(2) and (3) of this section, the owner or operator shall
not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere any gases that contain NOx (expressed as NO>) in
excess of 130 ng/J (1.0 Ib/MWh) gross energy output on a 30-day rolling average basis.

(2) When burning liquid fuel exclusively or in combination with solid-derived fuel such that the
liquid fuel contributes 50 percent or more of the total heat input to the combined cycle
combustion turbine, the owner or operator shall not cause to be discharged into the atmosphere
any gases that contain NOx (expressed as NO;) in excess of 190 ng/J (1.5 Io/MWh) gross energy
output on a 30-day rolling average basis.

(3) In cases when during a 30-day rolling average compliance period liquid fuel is burned in such
a manner to meet the conditions in paragraph (f)(2) of this section for only a portion of the clock
hours in the 30-day period, the owner or operator shall not cause to be discharged into the
atmosphere any gases that contain NOx (expressed as NO,) in excess of the computed weighted-
average emissions limit based on the proportion of gross energy output (in MWh) generated
during the compliance period for each of emissions limits in paragraphs (f)(1) and (2) of this
section.

§ 60.45Da Standard for mercury (Hg).
(a) For each coal-fired electric utility steam generating unit other than an IGCC electric utility
steam generating unit, on and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or

required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator subject
to the provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-34



affected facility for which construction, modification, or reconstruction commenced after
January 30, 2004, any gases that contain mercury (Hg) emissions in excess of each Hg emissions
limit in paragraphs (a)(1) through (5) of this section that applies to you. The Hg emissions limits
in paragraphs (a)(1) through (5) of this section are based on a 12-month rolling average basis
using the procedures in §60.50Da(h).

(1) For each coal-fired electric utility steam generating unit that burns only bituminous coal, you
must not discharge into the atmosphere any gases from a new affected source that contain Hg in
excess of 20 x 107° pound per megawatt hour (Ib/MWh) or 0.020 1b/gigawatt-hour (GWh) on an
output basis. The International System of Units (SI) equivalent is 0.0025 ng/J.

(2) For each coal-fired electric utility steam generating unit that burns only subbituminous coal:

(1) If your unit is located in a county-level geographical area receiving greater than 25 inches per
year (in/yr) mean annual precipitation, based on the most recent publicly available U.S.
Department of Agriculture 30-year data, you must not discharge into the atmosphere any gases
from a new affected source that contain Hg in excess of 66 x 107 1b/MWh or 0.066 16/GWh on
an output basis. The SI equivalent is 0.0083 ng/J.

(ii) If your unit is located in a county-level geographical area receiving less than or equal to 25
in/yr mean annual precipitation, based on the most recent publicly available U.S. Department of
Agriculture 30-year data, you must not discharge into the atmosphere any gases from a new
affected source that contain Hg in excess of 97 x 107 1b/MWh or 0.097 16/GWh on an output
basis. The SI equivalent is 0.0122 ng/J.

(3) For each coal-fired electric utility steam generating unit that burns only lignite, you must not
discharge into the atmosphere any gases from a new affected source that contain Hg in excess of
175 x40 Ib/MWh or 0.175 1b/GWh on an output basis. The SI equivalent is 0.0221 ng/J.

(4) For each coal-burning electric utility steam generating unit that burns only coal refuse, you
must not discharge into the atmosphere any gases from a new affected source that contain Hg in
excess of 16 x 107° Ib/MWh or 0.016 1b/GWh on an output basis. The SI equivalent is 0.0020
ng/J.

(5) For each coal-fired electric utility steam generating unit that burns a blend of coals from
different coal ranks (i.e., bituminous coal, subbituminous coal, lignite) or a blend of coal and
coal refuse, you must not discharge into the atmosphere any gases from a new affected source
that contain Hg in excess of the unit-specific Hg emissions limit established according to
paragraph (a)(5)(1) or (ii) of this section, as applicable to the affected unit.

(i) If you operate a coal-fired electric utility steam generating unit that burns a blend of coals
from different coal ranks or a blend of coal and coal refuse, you must not discharge into the
atmosphere any gases from a new affected source that contain Hg in excess of the computed
weighted Hg emissions limit based on the Btu, MWh, or MJ) contributed by each coal rank
burned during the compliance period and its applicable Hg emissions limit in paragraphs (a)(1)
through (4) of this section as determined using Equation 1 in this section. For each affected

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-35



source, you must comply with the weighted Hg emissions limit calculated using Equation 1 in
this section based on the total Hg emissions from the unit and the total Btu, MWh, or MJ
contributed by all fuels burned during the compliance period.

n

SUEL, (HH,)
EL,=5 _ (Eq.l)
S,
iml
Where:

EL,= Total allowable Hg in Ib/MWh that can be emitted to the atmosphere from any affected
source being averaged according to this paragraph.

EL;= Hg emissions limit for the subcategory i (coal rank) that applies to affected source,
1b/MWh;

HH;= For each affected source, the Btu, MWh, or MJ contributed by the corresponding
subcategory i (coal rank) burned during the compliance period; and

n = Number of subcategories (coal ranks) being averaged for an affected source.

(ii) If you operate a coal-fired electric utility steam generating unit that burns a blend of coals
from different coal ranks or a blend of coal and coal refuse together with one or more non-
regulated, supplementary fuels, you must not discharge into the atmosphere any gases from a
new affected source that contain Hg in excess of the computed weighted Hg emission limit based
on the Btu, MWh, or MJ contributed by each coal rank burned during the compliance period and
its applicable Hg emissions limit in paragraphs (a)(1) through (4) of this section as determined
using Equation 1 in this section. For each affected source. You must comply with the weighted
Hg emissions limit calculated using Equation 1 in this section based on the total Hg emissions
from the unit contributed by both regulated and nonregulated fuels burned during the compliance
period and the total Btu, MWh, or MJ contributed by both regulated and nonregulated fuels
burned during the compliance period.

(b) For each IGCC electric utility steam generating unit, on and after the date on which the initial
performance test required to be conducted under §60.8 is completed, no owner or operator
subject to the provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from
any affected facility for which construction, modification, or reconstruction commenced after
January 30, 2004, any gases that contain Hg emissions in excess of 20 x 107 1b/MWh or 0.020
1b/GWh on an output basis. The SI equivalent is 0.0025 ng/J. This Hg emissions limit is based
on a 12-month rolling average basis using the procedures in §60.50Da(h).

§ 60.46Da [Reserved]

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-36



§ 60.47Da Commercial demonstration permit.

(a) An owner or operator of an affected facility proposing to demonstrate an emerging
technology may apply to the Administrator for a commercial demonstration permit. The
Administrator will issue a commercial demonstration permit in accordance with paragraph (e) of
this section. Commercial demonstration permits may be issued only by the Administrator, and
this authority will not be delegated.

(b) An owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts solid solvent refined coal (SRC-I)
and who is issued a commercial demonstration permit by the Administrator is not subject to the
SO, emission reduction requirements under §60.43Da(c) but must, as a minimum, reduce SO,
emissions to 20 percent of the potential combustion concentration (80 percent reduction) for each
24-hour period of steam generator operation and to less than 520 ng/J (1.20 Ib/MMBtu) heat
input on a 30-day rolling average basis.

(c) An owner or operator of a fluidized bed combustion electric utility steam generator
(atmospheric or pressurized) who is issued a commercial demonstration permit by the
Administrator is not subject to the SO, emission reduction requirements under §60.43Da(a) but
must, as a minimum, reduce SO, emissions to 15 percent of the potential combustion
concentration (85 percent reduction) on a 30-day rolling average basis and to less than 520 ng/J
(1.20 Ib/MMBtu) heat input on a 30-day rolling average basis.

(d) The owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts coal-derived liquid fuel and who
is issued a commercial demonstration permit by the Administrator is not subject to the applicable
NOx emission limitation and percent reduction under §60.44Da(a) but must, as a minimum,
reduce emissions to less than 300 ng/J (0.70 1b/MMBtu) heat input on a 30-day rolling average
basis.

(e) Commercial demonstration permits may not exceed the following equivalent MW electrical
generation capacity for any one technology category, and the total equivalent MW electrical
generation capacity for all commercial demonstration plants may not exceed 15,000 MW.

Equivalent electrical capacity
Technology Pollutant (MW electrical output)
Solid solvent refined coal (SCR I) SO, 6,000-10,000
Fluidized bed combustion (atmospheric) SO, 400-3,000
Fluidized bed combustion (pressurized) SO; 400-1,200
Coal liquification NOx 750-10,000
Total allowable for all technologies 15,000

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-37



§ 60.48Da Compliance provisions.

(a) Compliance with the PM emission limitation under §60.42Da(a)(1) constitutes compliance
with the percent reduction requirements for PM under §60.42Da(a)(2) and (3).

(b) Compliance with the NOx emission limitation under §60.44Da(a)(1) constitutes compliance
with the percent reduction requirements under §60.44Da(a)(2).

(c) The PM emission standards under §60.42Da, the NOx emission standards under §60.44Da,
and the Hg emission standards under §60.45Da apply at all times except during periods of
startup, shutdown, or malfunction.

(d) During emergency conditions in the principal company, an affected facility with a
malfunctioning flue gas desulfurization system may be operated if SO, emissions are minimized
by:

(1) Operating all operable flue gas desulfurization system modules, and bringing back into
operation any malfunctioned module as soon as repairs are completed,

(2) Bypassing flue gases around only those flue gas desulfurization system modules that have
been taken out of operation because they were incapable of any SO, emission reduction or which
would have suffered significant physical damage if they had remained in operation, and

(3) Designing, constructing, and operating a spare flue gas desulfurization system module for an
affected facility larger than 365 MW (1,250 MMBtu/hr) heat input (approximately 125 MW
electrical output capacity). The Administrator may at his discretion require the owner or
operator within 60 days of notification to demonstrate spare module capability. To demonstrate
this capability, the owner or operator must demonstrate compliance with the appropriate
requirements under paragraph under §60.43Da(a), (b), (d), (e), and (h) for any period of
operation lasting from 24 hours to 30 days when:

(i) Any one flue gas desulfurization module is not operated,
(ii) The affected facility is operating at the maximum heat input rate,

(iii) The fuel fired during the 24-hour to 30-day period is representative of the type and average
sulfur content of fuel used over a typical 30-day period, and

(iv) The owner or operator has given the Administrator at least 30 days notice of the date and
period of time over which the demonstration will be performed.

(e) After the initial performance test required under §60.8, compliance with the SO; emission
limitations and percentage reduction requirements under §60.43Da and the NOx emission
limitations under §60.44Da is based on the average emission rate for 30 successive boiler
operating days. A separate performance test is completed at the end of each boiler operating day

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-38



after the initial performance test, and a new 30 day average emission rate for both SO, and NOx
and a new percent reduction for SO, are calculated to show compliance with the standards.

(f) For the initial performance test required under §60.8, compliance with the SO, emission
limitations and percent reduction requirements under §60.43Da and the NOx emission limitation
under §60.44Da is based on the average emission rates for SO,, NOx, and percent reduction for
SO, for the first 30 successive boiler operating days. The initial performance test is the only test
in which at least 30 days prior notice is required unless otherwise specified by the Administrator.
The initial performance test is to be scheduled so that the first boiler operating day of the 30
successive boiler operating days is completed within 60 days after achieving the maximum
production rate at which the affected facility will be operated, but not later than 180 days after
initial startup of the facility.

(g) The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to emission limitations in this subpart
shall determine compliance as follows:

(1) Compliance with applicable 30-day rolling average SO, and NOx emission limitations is
determined by calculating the arithmetic average of all hourly emission rates for SO, and NOx
for the 30 successive boiler operating days, except for data obtained during startup, shutdown,
malfunction (NOx only), or emergency conditions (SO; only).

(2) Compliance with applicable SO, percentage reduction requirements is determined based on
the average inlet and outlet SO, emission rates for the 30 successive boiler operating days.

(3) Compliance with applicable daily average PM emission limitations is determined by
calculating the arithmetic average of all hourly emission rates for PM each boiler operating day,
except for data obtained during startup, shutdown, and malfunction. Averages are only
calculated for boiler operating days that have valid data for at least 18 hours of unit operation
during which the standard applies. Instead, all of the valid hourly emission rates of the operating
day(s) not meeting the minimum 18 hours valid data daily average requirement are averaged
with all of the valid hourly emission rates of the next boiler operating day with 18 hours or more
of valid PM CEMS data to determine compliance.

(h) If an owner or operator has not obtained the minimum quantity of emission data as required
under §60.49Da of this subpart, compliance of the affected facility with the emission
requirements under §§60.43Da and 60.44Da of this subpart for the day on which the 30-day
period ends may be determined by the Administrator by following the applicable procedures in
section 7 of Method 19 of appendix A of this part.

(i) Compliance provisions for sources subject to §60.44Da(d)(1), (e)(1), (e)(2)(i), (e)(3)(i), or (f)
. The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to §60.44Da(d)(1), (e)(1), (e)(2)(i),
(©)(3)(), or (f) shall calculate NOx emissions as 1.194 x 1077 1b/scf-ppm times the average
hourly NOx output concentration in ppm (measured according to the provisions of §60.49Da(c)),
times the average hourly flow rate (measured in scth, according to the provisions of §60.49Da(l)
or §60.49Da(m)), divided by the average hourly gross energy output (measured according to the
provisions of §60.49Da(k)). Alternatively, for oil-fired and gas-fired units, NOx emissions may

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-39



be calculated by multiplying the hourly NOx emission rate in lb/MMBtu (measured by the
CEMS required under §§60.49Da(c) and (d)), by the hourly heat input rate (measured according
to the provisions of §60.49Da(n)), and dividing the result by the average gross energy output
(measured according to the provisions of §60.49Da(k)).

() Compliance provisions for duct burners subject to $60.44Da(a)(1) . To determine
compliance with the emissions limits for NOx required by §60.44Da(a) for duct burners used in
combined cycle systems, either of the procedures described in paragraph (j)(1) or (2) of this
section may be used:

(1) The owner or operator of an affected duct burner shall conduct the performance test required
under §60.8 using the appropriate methods in appendix A of this part. Compliance with the
emissions limits under §60.44Da(a)(1) is determined on the average of three (nominal 1-hour)
runs for the initial and subsequent performance tests. During the performance test, one sampling
site shall be located in the exhaust of the turbine prior to the duct burner. A second sampling site
shall be located at the outlet from the heat recovery steam generating unit. Measurements shall
be taken at both sampling sites during the performance test; or

(2) The owner or operator of an affected duct burner may elect to determine compliance by using
the CEMS specified under §60.49Da for measuring NOx and oxygen (O;) (or carbon dioxide
(CO,)) and meet the requirements of §60.49Da. Alternatively, data from a NOx emission rate
(i.e., NOx-diluent) CEMS certified according to the provisions of §75.20(c) of this chapter and
appendix A to part 75 of this chapter, and meeting the quality assurance requirements of §75.21
of this chapter and appendix B to part 75 of this chapter, may be used, with the following
caveats. Data used to meet the requirements of §60.51Da shall not include substitute data values
derived from the missing data procedures in subpart D of part 75 of this chapter, nor shall the
data have been bias adjusted according to the procedures of part 75 of this chapter. The
sampling site shall be located at the outlet from the steam generating unit. The NOx emission
rate at the outlet from the steam generating unit shall constitute the NOx emission rate from the
duct burner of the combined cycle system.

(k) Compliance provisions for duct burners subject to $60.44Da(d)(1) or (e)(1) . To determine
compliance with the emission limitation for NOx required by §60.44Da(d)(1) or (e)(1) for duct
burners used in combined cycle systems, either of the procedures described in paragraphs (k)(1)
and (2) of this section may be used:

(1) The owner or operator of an affected duct burner used in combined cycle systems shall
determine compliance with the applicable NOX emission limitation in §60.44Da(d)(1) or (e)(1)
as follows:

(i) The emission rate (E) of NOx shall be computed using Equation 2 in this section:

C (C,‘,X Q‘f) ¥ (C' in)

ovndi (T

(Eq.2)

Where:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-40



E = Emission rate of NOx from the duct burner, ng/J (Ib/MWh) gross output;
Csg= Average hourly concentration of NOx exiting the steam generating unit, ng/dscm (Ib/dscf);

Ci.= Average hourly concentration of NOx in the turbine exhaust upstream from duct burner,
ng/dscm (Ib/dscf);

Qsg= Average hourly volumetric flow rate of exhaust gas from steam generating unit, dscm/hr
(dsct/hr);

Q.= Average hourly volumetric flow rate of exhaust gas from combustion turbine, dscm/hr
(dsct/hr);

Ose= Average hourly gross energy output from steam generating unit, J (MWh); and

h = Average hourly fraction of the total heat input to the steam generating unit derived from the
combustion of fuel in the affected duct burner. '

(ii) Method 7E of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the NOx concentrations (Cs,
and Ci). Method 2, 2F or 2G of appendix A of this part, as appropriate, shall be used to
determine the volumetric flow rates (Qsg and Q) of the exhaust gases. The volumetric flow rate
measurements shall be taken at the same time as the concentration measurements.

(iii) The owner or operator shall develop, demonstrate, and provide information satisfactory to
the Administrator to determine the average hourly gross energy output from the steam generating
unit, and the average hourly percentage of the total heat input to the steam generating unit
derived from the combustion of fuel in the affected duct burner.

(iv) Compliance with the applicable NOx emission limitation in §60.44Da(d)(1) or (e)(1) is
determined by the three-run average (nominal 1-hour runs) for the initial and subsequent
performance tests.

(2) The owner or operator of an affected duct burner used in a combined cycle system may elect
to determine compliance with the applicable NOx emission limitation in §60.44Da(d)(1) or (e)(1)
on a 30-day rolling average basis as indicated in paragraphs (k)(2)(i) through (iv) of this section.

(i) The emission rate (E) of NOx shall be computed using Equation 3 in this section:

(C.exQu)
0

E= (Eq.3)

Where:
E = Emission rate of NOx from the duct burner, ng/J (Ib/MWh) gross output;

Csg= Average hourly concentration of NOx exiting the steam generating unit, ng/dscm (Ib/dscf);

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-41



Qse= Average hourly volumetric flow rate of exhaust gas from steam generating unit, dscm/hr
(dsct/hr); and

O.c= Average hourly gross energy output from entire combined cycle unit, J] (MWh).

(i1) The CEMS specified under §60.49Da for measuring NOx and O, (or CO,) shall be used to
determine the average hourly NOx concentrations (Cs;). The continuous flow monitoring system
specified in §60.49Da(]) or §60.49Da(m) shall be used to determine the volumetric flow rate
(Qsg) of the exhaust gas. If the option to use the flow monitoring system in §60.49Da(m) is
selected, the flow rate data used to meet the requirements of §60.51Da shall not include
substitute data values derived from the missing data procedures in subpart D of part 75 of this
chapter, nor shall the data have been bias adjusted according to the procedures of part 75 of this
chapter. The sampling site shall be located at the outlet from the steam generating unit.

(iii) The continuous monitoring system specified under §60.49Da(k) for measuring and
determining gross energy output shall be used to determine the average hourly gross energy
output from the entire combined cycle unit (Oc), which is the combined output from the
combustion turbine and the steam generating unit.

(iv) The owner or operator may, in lieu of installing, operating, and recording data from the
continuous flow monitoring system specified in §60.49Da(l), determine the mass rate (Ib/hr) of
NOx emissions by installing, operating, and maintaining continuous fuel flowmeters following
the appropriate measurements procedures specified in appendix D of part 75 of this chapter. If
this compliance option is selected, the emission rate (E) of NOx shall be computed using
Equation 4 in this section:

i (ER, xH,)
0

(Eg 4)

Where:

E = Emission rate of NOx from the duct burner, ng/J (Ib/MWh) gross output;

ERg,= Average hourly emission rate of NOx exiting the steam generating unit heat input
calculated using appropriate F factor as described in Method 19 of appendix A of this part, ng/J
(Ib/MMBtu);

H..= Average hourly heat input rate of entire combined cycle unit, J/hr (MMBtuw/hr); and

O.= Average hourly gross energy output from entire combined cycle unit, J] (MWh).

(3) When an affected duct burner steam generating unit utilizes a common steam turbine with
one or more affected duct burner steam generating units, the owner or operator shall either:

(i) Determine compliance with the applicable NOx emissions limits by measuring the emissions
combined with the emissions from the other unit(s) utilizing the common steam turbine; or

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-42



(ii) Develop, demonstrate, and provide information satisfactory to the Administrator on methods
for apportioning the combined gross energy output from the steam turbine for each of the
affected duct burners. The Administrator may approve such demonstrated substitute methods for
apportioning the combined gross energy output measured at the steam turbine whenever the
demonstration ensures accurate estimation of emissions regulated under this part.

(1) Compliance provisions for sources subject to $§60.45Da. The owner or operator of an affected
facility subject to §60.45Da (new sources constructed or reconstructed after January 30, 2004)
shall calculate the Hg emission rate (Ib/MWh) for each calendar month of the year, using hourly
Hg concentrations measured according to the provisions of §60.49Da(p) in conjunction with
hourly stack gas volumetric flow rates measured according to the provisions of §60.49Da(l) or
(m), and hourly gross electrical outputs, determined according to the provisions in §60.49Da(k).
Compliance with the applicable standard under §60.45Da is determined on a 12-month rolling
average basis.

(m) Compliance provisions for sources subject to $§60.43Da(i)(1)(i), (1)(2)(i), ()(3)(i), G)(1(i),
G)(2)(i), or ()(3)(i). The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to §60.43Da(i)(1)(i),
HO2)(1), DB, GHD)E), G)2)(1), or ()(3)(i) shall calculate SO, emissions as 1.660 x 10~

Ib/scf-ppm times the average hourly SO, output concentration in ppm (measured according to
the provisions of §60.49Da(b)), times the average hourly flow rate (measured according to the
provisions of §60.49Da(l) or §60.49Da(m)), divided by the average hourly gross energy output
(measured according to the provisions of §60.49Da(k)). Alternatively, for oil-fired and gas-fired
units, SO, emissions may be calculated by multiplying the hourly SO, emission rate (in
1b/MMBtu), measured by the CEMS required under §60.49Da, by the hourly heat input rate
(measured according to the provisions of §60.49Da(n)), and dividing the result by the average
gross energy output (measured according to the provisions of §60.49Da(k)).

(n) Compliance provisions for sources subject to §60.42Da(c)(1). The owner or operator of an
affected facility subject to §60.42Da(c)(1) shall calculate PM emissions by multiplying the
average hourly PM output concentration (measured according to the provisions of §60.49Da(t)),
by the average hourly flow rate (measured according to the provisions of §60.49Da(l) or
§60.49Da(m)), and divided by the average hourly gross energy output (measured according to
the provisions of §60.49Da(k)). Compliance with the emission limit is determined by calculating
the arithmetic average of the hourly emission rates computed for each boiler operating day.

(o) Compliance provisions for sources subject to §60.42Da(c)(2) or (d). Except as provided for
in paragraph (p) of this section, the owner or operator of an affected facility for which
construction, reconstruction, or modification commenced after February 28, 2005, shall
demonstrate compliance with each applicable emission limit according to the requirements in
paragraphs (0)(1) through (0)(5) of this section.

(1) You must conduct a performance test to demonstrate initial compliance with the applicable
PM emissions limit in §60.42Da(c)(2) or (d) by the applicable date specified in §60.8(a).
Thereafter, you must conduct each subsequent performance test within 12 calendar months
following the date the previous performance test was required to be conducted. You must
conduct each performance test according to the requirements in §60.8 using the test methods and

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, D¢ C-43



procedures in §60.50Da. The owner or operator of an affected facility that has not operated for
60 consecutive calendar days prior to the date that the subsequent performance test would have
been required had the unit been operating is not required to perform the subsequent performance
test until 30 calendar days after the next boiler operating day. Requests for additional 30 day
extensions shall be granted by the relevant air division or office director of the appropriate
Regional Office of the U.S. EPA.

(2) You must monitor the performance of each electrostatic precipitator or fabric filter
(baghouse) operated to comply with the applicable PM emissions limit in §60.42Da(c)(2) or (d)
using a continuous opacity monitoring system (COMS) according to the requirements in
paragraphs (0)(2)(i) through (vi) unless you elect to comply with one of the alternatives provided
in paragraphs (0)(3) and (0)(4) of this section, as applicable to your control device.

(i) Each COMS must meet Performance Specification 1 in 40 CFR part 60, appendix B.

(i1) You must comply with the quality assurance requirements in paragraphs (0)(2)(ii)(A) through
(E) of this section.

(A) You must automatically (intrinsic to the opacity monitor) check the zero and upscale (span)
calibration drifts at least once daily. For a particular COMS, the acceptable range of zero and
upscale calibration materials is as defined in the applicable version of Performance Specification
1 in 40 CFR part 60, appendix B.

(B) You must adjust the zero and span whenever the 24-hour zero drift or 24-hour span drift
exceeds 4 percent opacity. The COMS must allow for the amount of excess zero and span drift
measured at the 24-hour interval checks to be recorded and quantified. The optical surfaces
exposed to the effluent gases must be cleaned prior to performing the zero and span drift
adjustments, except for systems using automatic zero adjustments. For systems using automatic
zero adjustments, the optical surfaces must be cleaned when the cumulative automatic zero
compensation exceeds 4 percent opacity.

(C) You must apply a method for producing a simulated zero opacity condition and an upscale
(span) opacity condition using a certified neutral density filter or other related technique to
produce a known obscuration of the light beam. All procedures applied must provide a system
check of the analyzer internal optical surfaces and all electronic circuitry including the lamp and
photodetector assembly.

(D) Except during periods of system breakdowns, repairs, calibration checks, and zero and span
adjustments, the COMS must be in continuous operation and must complete a minimum of one
cycle of sampling and analyzing for each successive 10 second period and one cycle of data
recording for each successive 6-minute period.

(E) You must reduce all data from the COMS to 6-minute averages. Six-minute opacity averages

must be calculated from 36 or more data points equally spaced over each 6-minute period. Data
recorded during periods of system breakdowns, repairs, calibration checks, and zero and span

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-44



adjustments must not be included in the data averages. An arithmetic or integrated average of all
data may be used.

(iii) During each performance test conducted according to paragraph (0)(1) of this section, you
must establish an opacity baseline level. The value of the opacity baseline level is determined by
averaging all of the 6-minute average opacity values (reported to the nearest 0.1 percent opacity)
from the COMS measurements recorded during each of the test run intervals conducted for the
performance test, and then adding 2.5 percent opacity to your calculated average opacity value
for all of the test runs. If your opacity baseline level is less than 5.0 percent, then the opacity
baseline level is set at 5.0 percent.

(iv) You must evaluate the preceding 24-hour average opacity level measured by the COMS each
boiler operating day excluding periods of affected facility startup, shutdown, or malfunction. If
the measured 24-hour average opacity emission level is greater than the baseline opacity level
determined in paragraph (0)(2)(iii) of this section, you must initiate investigation of the relevant
equipment and control systems within 24 hours of the first discovery of the high opacity incident
and take the appropriate corrective action as soon as practicable to adjust control settings or
repair equipment to reduce the measured 24-hour average opacity to a level below the baseline
opacity level. In cases when a wet scrubber is used in combination with another PM control
device that serves as the primary PM control device, the wet scrubber must be maintained and
operated.

(v) You must record the opacity measurements, calculations performed, and any corrective
actions taken. The record of corrective action taken must include the date and time during which
the measured 24-hour average opacity was greater than baseline opacity level, and the date, time,
and description of the corrective action.

(vi) If-the measured 24-hour average opacity for your affected facility remains at a level greater
than the opacity baseline level after 7 boiler operating days, then you must conduct a new PM
performance test according to paragraph (0)(1) of this section and establish a new opacity
baseline value according to paragraph (0)(2) of this section. This new performance test must be
conducted within 60 days of the date that the measured 24-hour average opacity was first
determined to exceed the baseline opacity level unless a waiver is granted by the permitting
authority.

(3) As an alternative to complying with the requirements of paragraph (0)(2) of this section, an
owner or operator may elect to monitor the performance of an electrostatic precipitator (ESP)
operated to comply with the applicable PM emissions limit in §60.42Da(c)(2) or (d) using an
ESP predictive model developed in accordance with the requirements in paragraphs (0)(3)(i)
through (v) of this section.

(1) You must calibrate the ESP predictive model with each PM control device used to comply
with the applicable PM emissions limit in §60.42Da(c)(2) or (d) operating under normal
conditions. In cases when a wet scrubber is used in combination with an ESP to comply with the
PM emissions limit, the wet scrubber must be maintained and operated.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-45



(i1) You must develop a site-specific monitoring plan that includes a description of the ESP
predictive model used, the model input parameters, and the procedures and criteria for
establishing monitoring parameter baseline levels indicative of compliance with the PM
emissions limit. You must submit the site-specific monitoring plan for approval by the
permitting authority. For reference purposes in preparing the monitoring plan, see the OAQPS
“Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) Protocol for an Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP)
Controlling Particulate Matter (PM) Emissions from a Coal-Fired Boiler.” This document is
available from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA); Office of Air Quality
Planning and Standards; Sector Policies and Programs Division; Measurement Policy Group
(D243-02), Research Triangle Park, NC 27711. This document is also available on the
Technology Transfer Network (TTN) under Emission Measurement Center Continuous Emission
Monitoring.

(iii) You must run the ESP predictive model using the applicable input data each boiler operating
day and evaluate the model output for the preceding boiler operating day excluding periods of
affected facility startup, shutdown, or malfunction. If the values for one or more of the model
parameters exceed the applicable baseline levels determined according to your approved site-
specific monitoring plan, you must initiate investigation of the relevant equipment and control
systems within 24 hours of the first discovery of a model parameter deviation and, take the
appropriate corrective action as soon as practicable to adjust control settings or repair equipment
to return the model output to within the applicable baseline levels.

(iv) You must record the ESP predictive model inputs and outputs and any corrective actions
taken. The record of corrective action taken must include the date and time during which the
model output values exceeded the applicable baseline levels, and the date, time, and description
of the corrective action.

(v) If after 7 consecutive days a model parameter continues to exceed the applicable baseline
level, then you must conduct a new PM performance test according to paragraph (0)(1) of this
section. This new performance test must be conducted within 60 calendar days of the date that
the model parameter was first determined to exceed its baseline level unless a waiver is granted
by the permitting authority.

(4) As an alternative to complying with the requirements of paragraph (0)(2) of this section, an
owner or operator may elect to monitor the performance of a fabric filter (baghouse) operated to
comply with the applicable PM emissions limit in §60.42Da(c)(2) or (d) by using a bag leak
detection system according to the requirements in paragraphs (0)(4)(i) through (v) of this section.

(i) Each bag leak detection system must meet the specifications and requirements in paragraphs
(0)(4)(1)(A) through (H) of this section.

(A) The bag leak detection system must be certified by the manufacturer to be capable of

detecting PM emissions at concentrations of 1 milligram per actual cubic meter (0.00044 grains
per actual cubic foot) or less.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-46



(B) The bag leak detection system sensor must provide output of relative PM loadings. The
owner or operator must continuously record the output from the bag leak detection system using
electronic or other means (e.g., using a strip chart recorder or a data logger.)

(C) The bag leak detection system must be equipped with an alarm system that will react when
the system detects an increase in relative particulate loading over the alarm set point established
according to paragraph (0)(4)(i)(D) of this section, and the alarm must be located such that it can
be noticed by the appropriate plant personnel.

(D) In the initial adjustment of the bag leak detection system, you must establish, at a minimum,
the baseline output by adjusting the sensitivity (range) and the averaging period of the device, the
alarm set points, and the alarm delay time.

(E) Following initial adjustment, you must not adjust the averaging period, alarm set point, or
alarm delay time without approval from the permitting authority except as provided in paragraph
(d)(1)(vi) of this section.

(F) Once per quarter, you may adjust the sensitivity of the bag leak detection system to account
for seasonal effects, including temperature and humidity, according to the procedures identified
in the site-specific monitoring plan required by paragraph (0)(4)(ii) of this section.

(G) You must install the bag leak detection sensor downstream of the fabric filter and upstream
of any wet scrubber.

(H) Where multiple detectors are required, the system's instrumentation and alarm may be shared
among detectors.

(ii) You must develop and submit to the permitting authority for approval a site-specific
monitoring plan for each bag leak detection system. You must operate and maintain the bag leak
detection system according to the site-specific monitoring plan at all times. Each monitoring plan
must describe the items in paragraphs (0)(4)(i1)(A) through (F) of this section.

(A) Installation of the bag leak detection system;

(B) Initial and periodic adjustment of the bag leak detection system, including how the alarm set-
point will be established;

(C) Operation of the bag leak detection system, including quality assurance procedures;

(D) How the bag leak detection system will be maintained, including a routine maintenance
schedule and spare parts inventory list;

(E) How the bag leak detection system output will be recorded and stored; and

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, D¢ C-47



(F) Corrective action procedures as specified in paragraph (0)(4)(iii) of this section. In
approving the site-specific monitoring plan, the permitting authority may allow owners and
operators more than 3 hours to alleviate a specific condition that causes an alarm if the owner or
operator identifies in the monitoring plan this specific condition as one that could lead to an
alarm, adequately explains why it is not feasible to alleviate this condition within 3 hours of the
time the alarm occurs, and demonstrates that the requested time will ensure alleviation of this
condition as expeditiously as practicable.

(iii) For each bag leak detection system, you must initiate procedures to determine the cause of
every alarm within 1 hour of the alarm. Except as provided in paragraph (0)(4)(ii)(F) of this
section, you must alleviate the cause of the alarm within 3 hours of the alarm by taking whatever
corrective action(s) are necessary. Corrective actions may include, but are not limited to the
following:

(A) Inspecting the fabric filter for air leaks, torn or broken bags or filter media, or any other
condition that may cause an increase in particulate emissions;

(B) Sealing off defective bags or filter media;
(C) Replacing defective bags or filter media or otherwise repairing the control device;
(D) Sealing off a defective fabric filter compartment;

(E) Cleaning the bag leak detection system probe or otherwise repairing the bag leak detection
system; or

(F) Shutting down the process producing the particulate emissions.

(iv) You must maintain records of the information specified in paragraphs (0)(4)(iv)(A) through
(C) of this section for each bag leak detection system.

(A) Records of the bag leak detection system output;

(B) Records of bag leak detection system adjustments, including the date and time of the
adjustment, the initial bag leak detection system settings, and the final bag leak detection system
settings; and

(C) The date and time of all bag leak detection system alarms, the time that procedures to
determine the cause of the alarm were initiated, if procedures were initiated within 1 hour of the
alarm, the cause of the alarm, an explanation of the actions taken, the date and time the cause of
the alarm was alleviated, and if the alarm was alleviated within 3 hours of the alarm.

(v) If after any period composed of 30 boiler operating days during which the alarm rate exceeds
5 percent of the process operating time (excluding control device or process startup, shutdown,
and malfunction), then you must conduct a new PM performance test according to paragraph
(0)(1) of this section. This new performance test must be conducted within 60 calendar days of

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-48



the date that the alarm rate was first determined to exceed 5 percent limit unless a waiver is
granted by the permitting authority.

(5) An owner or operator of a modified affected facility electing to meet the emission limitations
in §60.42Da(d) shall determine the percent reduction in PM by using the emission rate for PM
determined by the performance test conducted according to the requirements in paragraph (0)(1)
of this section and the ash content on a mass basis of the fuel burned during each performance
test run as determined by analysis of the fuel as fired.

(p) As an alternative to meeting the compliance provisions specified in paragraph (o) of this
section, an owner or operator may elect to install, evaluate, maintain, and operate a CEMS
measuring PM emissions discharged from the affected facility to the atmosphere and record the
output of the system as specified in paragraphs (p)(1) through (p)(8) of this section.

(1) The owner or operator shall submit a written notification to the Administrator of intent to
demonstrate compliance with this subpart by using a CEMS measuring PM. This notification
shall be sent at least 30 calendar days before the initial startup of the monitor for compliance
determination purposes. The owner or operator may discontinue operation of the monitor and
instead return to demonstration of compliance with this subpart according to the requirements in
paragraph (o) of this section by submitting written notification to the Administrator of such
intent at least 30 calendar days before shutdown of the monitor for compliance determination
purposes.

(2) Each CEMS shall be installed, evaluated, operated, and maintained according to the
requirements in §60.49Da(v).

(3) The initial performance evaluation shall be completed no later than 180 days after the date of
initial startup of the affected facility, as specified under §60.8 of subpart A of this part or within
180 days of the date of notification to the Administrator required under paragraph (p)(1) of this
section, whichever is later.

(4) Compliance with the applicable emissions limit shall be determined based on the 24-hour
daily (block) average of the hourly arithmetic average emissions concentrations using the
continuous monitoring system outlet data. The 24-hour block arithmetic average emission
concentration shall be calculated using EPA Reference Method 19 of appendix A of this part,
section 4.1.

(5) At a minimum, valid CEMS hourly averages shall be obtained for 75 percent of all operating
hours on a 30-day rolling average basis. Beginning on January 1, 2012, valid CEMS hourly
averages shall be obtained for 90 percent of all operating hours on a 30-day rolling average basis.

(i) At least two data points per hour shall be used to calculate each 1-hour arithmetic average.

(i1) [Reserved]

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-49



(6) The 1-hour arithmetic averages required shall be expressed in ng/J, MMBtu/hr, or lb/MWh
and shall be used to calculate the boiler operating day daily arithmetic average emission
concentrations. The 1-hour arithmetic averages shall be calculated using the data points required
under §60.13(e)(2) of subpart A of this part.

(7) All valid CEMS data shall be used in calculating average emission concentrations even if the
minimum CEMS data requirements of paragraph (j)(5) of this section are not met.

(8) When PM emissions data are not obtained because of CEMS breakdowns, repairs, calibration
checks, and zero and span adjustments, emissions data shall be obtained by using other
monitoring systems as approved by the Administrator or EPA Reference Method 19 of appendix
A of this part to provide, as necessary, valid emissions data for a minimum of 90 percent (only
75 percent is required prior to January 1, 2012) of all operating hours per 30-day rolling average.

(q) Compliance provisions for sources subject to §60.42Da(b). An owner or operator of an
affected facility subject to the opacity standard in §60.42Da(b) shall monitor the opacity of
emissions discharged from the affected facility to the atmosphere according to the requirements
in §60.49Da(a), as applicable to the affected facility.

[72 FR 32722, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5079, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.49Da Emission monitoring.

(a) An owner or operator of an affected facility subject to the opacity standard in §60.42Da(b)
shall monitor the opacity of emissions discharged from the affected facility to the atmosphere
according to the applicable requirements in paragraphs (a)(1) through (3) of this section.

(1) Except as provided for in paragraph (a)(2) of this section, the owner or operator of an
affected facility, shall install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a COMS, and record the output of
the system, for measuring the opacity of emissions discharged to the atmosphere. If opacity
interference due to water droplets exists in the stack (for example, from the use of an FGD
system), the opacity is monitored upstream of the interference (at the inlet to the FGD system).
If opacity interference is experienced at all locations (both at the inlet and outlet of the SO,
control system), alternate parameters indicative of the PM control system's performance and/or
good combustion are monitored (subject to the approval of the Administrator).

(2) As an alternative to the monitoring requirements in paragraph (a)(1) of this section, an owner
or operator of an affected facility that meets the conditions in either paragraph (a)(2)(i), (ii), or
(iii) of this section may elect to monitor opacity as specified in paragraph (a)(3) of this section.

(i) The affected facility uses a fabric filter (baghouse) to meet the standards in §60.42Da and a

bag leak detection system is installed and operated according to the requirements in paragraphs
§60.48Da(0)(4)(i) through (v);

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-50



(ii) The affected facility burns only gaseous or liquid fuels (excluding residual oil) with potential
SO, emissions rates of 26 ng/J (0.060 Ib/MMBtu) or less, and does not use a post-combustion
technology to reduce emissions of SO, or PM; or

(iii) The affected facility meets all of the conditions specified in paragraphs (a)(2)(iii)(A) through
(C) of this section.

(A) No post-combustion technology (except a wet scrubber) is used for reducing PM, SO, or
carbon monoxide (CO) emissions;

(B) Only natural gas, gaseous fuels, or fuel oils that contain less than or equal to 0.30 weight
percent sulfur are burned; and

(C) Emissions of CO discharged to the atmosphere are maintained at levels less than or equal to
1.4 Ib/MWh on a boiler operating day average basis as demonstrated by the use of a CEMS
measuring CO emissions according to the procedures specified in paragraph (u) of this section.

(3) The owner or operators of an affected facility that meets the conditions in paragraph (a)(2) of
this section may, as an alternative to COMS, elect to monitor visible emissions using the
applicable procedures specified in paragraphs (a)(3)(i) through (iv) of this section.

(i) The owner or operator shall conduct a performance test using Method 9 of appendix A—4 of
this part and the procedures in §60.11. If during the initial 60 minutes of the observation all the
6-minute averages are less than 10 percent and all the individual 15-second observations are less
than or equal to 20 percent, then the observation period may be reduced from 3 hours to 60
minutes.

(i1) Except as provided in paragraph (a)(3)(iii) or (iv) of this section, the owner or operator shall
conduct subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance tests using the
procedures in paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section according to the applicable schedule in
paragraphs (a)(3)(i1)(A) through (a)(3)(ii)(D) of this section, as determined by the most recent
Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test results.

(A) If no visible emissions are observed, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part
performance test must be completed within 12 calendar months from the date that the most
recent performance test was conducted;

(B) If visible emissions are observed but the maximum 6-minute average opacity is less than or
equal to 5 percent, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test must be
completed within 6 calendar months from the date that the most recent performance test was
conducted;

(C) If the maximum 6-minute average opacity is greater than 5 percent but less than or equal to
10 percent, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test must be
completed within 3 calendar months from the date that the most recent performance test was
conducted; or

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-51



(D) If the maximum 6-minute average opacity is greater than 10 percent, a subsequent Method 9
of appendix A—4 of this part performance test must be completed within 30 calendar days from
the date that the most recent performance test was conducted.

(iii) If the maximum 6-minute opacity is less than 10 percent during the most recent Method 9 of
appendix A—4 of this part performance test, the owner or operator may, as an alternative to
performing subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance tests, elect to
perform subsequent monitoring using Method 22 of appendix A-7 of this part according to the
procedures specified in paragraphs (a)(3)(iii)(A) and (B) of this section.

(A) The owner or operator shall conduct 10 minute observations (during normal operation) each
operating day the affected facility fires fuel for which an opacity standard is applicable using
Method 22 of appendix A7 of this part and demonstrate that the sum of the occurrences of any
visible emissions is not in excess of 5 percent of the observation period (i.e., 30 seconds per 10
minute period). If the sum of the occurrence of any visible emissions is greater than 30 seconds
during the initial 10 minute observation, immediately conduct a 30 minute observation. If the
sum of the occurrence of visible emissions is greater than 5 percent of the observation period
(i.e., 90 seconds per 30 minute period) the owner or operator shall either document and adjust the
operation of the facility and demonstrate within 24 hours that the sum of the occurrence of
visible emissions is equal to or less than 5 percent during a 30 minute observation (i.e., 90
seconds) or conduct a new Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test using the
procedures in paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section within 30 calendar days according to the
requirements in §60.50Da(b)(3).

(B) If no visible emissions are observed for 30 operating days during which an opacity standard
is applicable, observations can be reduced to once every 7 operating days during which an
opacity standard is applicable. If any visible emissions are observed, daily observations shall be
resumed.

(iv) If the maximum 6-minute opacity is less than 10 percent during the most recent Method 9 of
appendix A—4 of this part performance test, the owner or operator may, as an alternative to
performing subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 performance tests, elect to perform
subsequent monitoring using a digital opacity compliance system according to a site-specific
monitoring plan approved by the Administrator. The observations shall be similar, but not
necessarily identical, to the requirements in paragraph (a)(3)(iii) of this section. For reference
purposes in preparing the monitoring plan, see OAQPS “Determination of Visible Emission
Opacity from Stationary Sources Using Computer-Based Photographic Analysis Systems.” This
document is available from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA); Office of Air
Quality and Planning Standards; Sector Policies and Programs Division; Measurement Policy
Group (D243-02), Research Triangle Park, NC 27711. This document is also available on the
Technology Transfer Network (TTN) under Emission Measurement Center Preliminary
Methods.

(b) The owner or operator of an affected facility shall install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a
CEMS, and record the output of the system, for measuring SO, emissions, except where natural
gas is the only fuel combusted, as follows:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-52



(1) Sulfur dioxide emissions are monitored at both the inlet and outlet of the SO, control device.

(2) For a facility that qualifies under the numerical limit provisions of §60.43Da(d), (i), (), or (k)
SO, emissions are only monitored as discharged to the atmosphere.

(3) An “as fired” fuel monitoring system (upstream of coal pulverizers) meeting the requirements
of Method 19 of appendix A of this part may be used to determine potential SO, emissions in
place of a continuous SO, emission monitor at the inlet to the SO, control device as required
under paragraph (b)(1) of this section.

(4) If the owner or operator has installed and certified a SO, CEMS according to the
requirements of §75.20(c)(1) of this chapter and appendix A to part 75 of this chapter, and is
continuing to meet the ongoing quality assurance requirements of §75.21 of this chapter and
appendix B to part 75 of this chapter, that CEMS may be used to meet the requirements of this
section, provided that:

(i) A CO; or O; continuous monitoring system is installed, calibrated, maintained and operated at
the same location, according to paragraph (d) of this section; and

(ii) For sources subject to an SO, emission limit in Ib/MMBtu under §60.43Da:

(A) When relative accuracy testing is conducted, SO, concentration data and CO; (or O,) data are
collected simultaneously; and

(B) In addition to meeting the applicable SO; and CO; (or O,) relative accuracy specifications in
Figure 2 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter, the relative accuracy (RA) standard in section

13.2 of Performance Specification 2 in appendix B to this part is met when the RA is calculated
on a Ib/MMBtu basis; and

(iii) The reporting requirements of §60.51Da are met. The SO; and, if required, CO; (or O;) data
reported to meet the requirements of §60.51Da shall not include substitute data values derived
from the missing data procedures in subpart D of part 75 of this chapter, nor shall the SO, data
have been bias adjusted according to the procedures of part 75 of this chapter.

(c)(1) The owner or operator of an affected facility shall install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a
CEMS, and record the output of the system, for measuring NOx emissions discharged to the
atmosphere; or

(2) If the owner or operator has installed a NOx emission rate CEMS to meet the requirements of
part 75 of this chapter and is continuing to meet the ongoing requirements of part 75 of this
chapter, that CEMS may be used to meet the requirements of this section, except that the owner
or operator shall also meet the requirements of §60.51Da. Data reported to meet the
requirements of §60.51Da shall not include data substituted using the missing data procedures in
subpart D of part 75 of this chapter, nor shall the data have been bias adjusted according to the
procedures of part 75 of this chapter.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-53



(d) The owner or operator of an affected facility not complying with an output based limit shall
install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a CEMS, and record the output of the system, for
measuring the O,or carbon dioxide (CO,) content of the flue gases at each location where SO, or
NOx emissions are monitored. For affected facilities subject to a [b/MMBtu SO, emission limit
under §60.43Da, if the owner or operator has installed and certified a CO; or O, monitoring
system according to §75.20(c) of this chapter and appendix A to part 75 of this chapter and the
monitoring system continues to meet the applicable quality-assurance provisions of §75.21 of
this chapter and appendix B to part 75 of this chapter, that CEMS may be used together with the
part 75 SO, concentration monitoring system described in paragraph (b) of this section, to
determine the SO, emission rate in lb/MMBtu. SO, data used to meet the requirements of
§60.51Da shall not include substitute data values derived from the missing data procedures in
subpart D of part 75 of this chapter, nor shall the data have been bias adjusted according to the
procedures of part 75 of this chapter.

(e) The CEMS under paragraphs (b), (c), and (d) of this section are operated and data recorded
during all periods of operation of the affected facility including periods of startup, shutdown,
malfunction or emergency conditions, except for CEMS breakdowns, repairs, calibration checks,
and zero and span adjustments.

(H)(1) For units that began construction, reconstruction, or modification on or before February 28,
2005, the owner or operator shall obtain emission data for at least 18 hours in at least 22 out of
30 successive boiler operating days. If this minimum data requirement cannot be met with
CEMS, the owner or operator shall supplement emission data with other monitoring systems
approved by the Administrator or the reference methods and procedures as described in
paragraph (h) of this section.

(2) For units that began construction, reconstruction, or modification after February 28, 2005, the
owner or operator shall obtain emission data for at least 90 percent of all operating hours for
each 30 successive boiler operating days. If this minimum data requirement cannot be met with
a CEMS, the owner or operator shall supplement emission data with other monitoring systems
approved by the Administrator or the reference methods and procedures as described in
paragraph (h) of this section.

(g) The 1-hour averages required under paragraph §60.13(h) are expressed in ng/J (Ib/MMBtu)
heat input and used to calculate the average emission rates under §60.48Da. The 1-hour averages
are calculated using the data points required under §60.13(h)(2).

(h) When it becomes necessary to supplement CEMS data to meet the minimum data
requirements in paragraph (f) of this section, the owner or operator shall use the reference
methods and procedures as specified in this paragraph. Acceptable alternative methods and
procedures are given in paragraph (j) of this section.

(1) Method 6 of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the SO, concentration at the
same location as the SO, monitor. Samples shall be taken at 60-minute intervals. The sampling
time and sample volume for each sample shall be at least 20 minutes and 0.020 dscm (0.71 dscf).
Each sample represents a 1-hour average.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-54



(2) Method 7 of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the NOx concentration at the
same location as the NOx monitor. Samples shall be taken at 30-minute intervals. The arithmetic
average of two consecutive samples represents a 1-hour average.

(3) The emission rate correction factor, integrated bag sampling and analysis procedure of
Method 3B of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the O, or CO; concentration at
the same location as the O, or CO, monitor. Samples shall be taken for at least 30 minutes in
each hour. Each sample represents a 1-hour average.

(4) The procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part shall be used to compute each 1-hour
average concentration in ng/J (Ib/MMBtu) heat input.

(i) The owner or operator shall use methods and procedures in this paragraph to conduct
monitoring system performance evaluations under §60.13(c) and calibration checks under
§60.13(d). Acceptable alternative methods and procedures are given in paragraph (j) of this
section.

(1) Methods 3B, 6, and 7 of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine O,, SO,, and NOx
concentrations, respectively.

(2) SO, or NOx (NO), as applicable, shall be used for preparing the calibration gas mixtures (in
N,, as applicable) under Performance Specification 2 of appendix B of this part.

(3) For affected facilities burning only fossil fuel, the span value for a COMS is between 60 and
80 percent. Span values for a CEMS measuring NOx shall be determined using one of the
following procedures:

(i) Except as provided under paragraph (i)(3)(ii) of this section, NOx span values shall be
determined as follows:

Span values for NOx
Fossil fuel (ppm)
Gas 500.
Liquid 500.
Solid 1,000.
Combination 500 (x +y) + 1,000z.
Where:

x = Fraction of total heat input derived from gaseous fossil fuel,

y = Fraction of total heat input derived from liquid fossil fuel, and

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-55




z = Fraction of total heat input derived from solid fossil fuel.

(ii) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (i)(3)(i) of this section, the owner
or operator of an affected facility may elect to use the NOx span values determined according to
section 2.1.2 in appendix A to part 75 of this chapter.

(4) All span values computed under paragraph (i)(3)(i) of this section for burning combinations
of fossil fuels are rounded to the nearest 500 ppm. Span values computed under paragraph
(1)(3)(i1) of this section shall be rounded off according to section 2.1.2 in appendix A to part 75
of this chapter.

(5) For affected facilities burning fossil fuel, alone or in combination with non-fossil fuel and
determining span values under paragraph (i)(3)(i) of this section, the span value of the SO,
CEMS at the inlet to the SO, control device is 125 percent of the maximum estimated hourly
potential emissions of the fuel fired, and the outlet of the SO, control device is 50 percent of
maximum estimated hourly potential emissions of the fuel fired. For affected facilities
determining span values under paragraph (i)(3)(ii) of this section, SO, span values shall be
determined according to section 2.1.1 in appendix A to part 75 of this chapter.

() The owner or operator may use the following as alternatives to the reference methods and
procedures specified in this section:

(1) For Method 6 of appendix A of this part, Method 6A or 6B (whenever Methods 6 and 3 or 3B
of appendix A of this part data are used) or 6C of appendix A of this part may be used. Each
Method 6B of appendix A of this part sample obtained over 24 hours represents 24 1-hour
averages. If Method 6A or 6B of appendix A of this part is used under paragraph (i) of this
section, the conditions under §60.48Da(d)(1) apply; these conditions do not apply under
paragraph (h) of this section.

(2) For Method 7 of appendix A of this part, Method 7A, 7C, 7D, or 7E of appendix A of this
part may be used. If Method 7C, 7D, or 7E of appendix A of this part is used, the sampling time
for each run shall be 1 hour.

(3) For Method 3 of appendix A of this part, Method 3A or 3B of appendix A of this part may be
used if the sampling time is 1 hour.

(4) For Method 3B of appendix A of this part, Method 3A of appendix A of this part may be
used.

(k) The procedures specified in paragraphs (k)(1) through (3) of this section shall be used to
determine gross output for sources demonstrating compliance with the output-based standard
under §§60.42Da(c), 60.43Da(i), 60.43Da(j), 60.44Da(d)(1), and 60.44Da(e).

(1) The owner or operator of an affected facility with electricity generation shall install, calibrate,
maintain, and operate a wattmeter; measure gross electrical output in MWh on a continuous
basis; and record the output of the monitor.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-56



(2) The owner or operator of an affected facility with process steam generation shall install,
calibrate, maintain, and operate meters for steam flow, temperature, and pressure; measure gross
process steam output in joules per hour (or Btu per hour) on a continuous basis; and record the
output of the monitor.

(3) For affected facilities generating process steam in combination with electrical generation, the
gross energy output is determined from the gross electrical output measured in accordance with
paragraph (k)(1) of this section plus 75 percent of the gross thermal output (measured relative to
ISO conditions) of the process steam measured in accordance with paragraph (k)(2) of this
section.

(1) The owner or operator of an affected facility demonstrating compliance with an output-based
standard under §60.42Da, §60.43Da, §60.44Da, or §60.45Da shall install, certify, operate, and
maintain a continuous flow monitoring system meeting the requirements of Performance
Specification 6 of appendix B of this part and the CD assessment, RATA and reporting
provisions of procedure 1 of appendix F of this part, and record the output of the system, for
measuring the volumetric flow rate of exhaust gases discharged to the atmosphere; or

(m) Alternatively, data from a continuous flow monitoring system certified according to the
requirements of §75.20(c) of this chapter and appendix A to part 75 of this chapter, and
continuing to meet the applicable quality control and quality assurance requirements of §75.21 of
this chapter and appendix B to part 75 of this chapter, may be used. Flow rate data reported to
meet the requirements of §60.51Da shall not include substitute data values derived from the
missing data procedures in subpart D of part 75 of this chapter, nor shall the data have been bias
adjusted according to the procedures of part 75 of this chapter.

(n) Gas-fired and oil-fired units. The owner or operator of an affected unit that qualifies as a gas-
fired or oil-fired unit, as defined in 40 CFR 72.2, may use, as an alternative to the requirements
specified in either paragraph (1) or (m) of this section, a fuel flow monitoring system certified
and operated according to the requirements of appendix D of part 75 of this chapter.

(o) The owner or operator of a duct burner, as described in §60.41Da, which is subject to the
NOx standards of §60.44Da(a)(1), (d)(1), or (e)(1) is not required to install or operate a CEMS to
measure NOx emissions; a wattmeter to measure gross electrical output; meters to measure steam
flow, temperature, and pressure; and a continuous flow monitoring system to measure the flow of
exhaust gases discharged to the atmosphere.

(p) The owner or operator of an affected facility demonstrating compliance with an Hg limit in
§60.45Da shall install and operate a CEMS to measure and record the concentration of Hg in the
exhaust gases from each stack according to the requirements in paragraphs (p)(1) through (p)(3)
of this section. Alternatively, for an affected facility that is also subject to the requirements of
subpart I of part 75 of this chapter, the owner or operator may install, certify, maintain, operate
and quality-assure the data from a Hg CEMS according to §75.10 of this chapter and appendices
A and B to part 75 of this chapter, in lieu of following the procedures in paragraphs (p)(1)
through (p)(3) of this section.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-57



(1) The owner or operator must install, operate, and maintain each CEMS according to
Performance Specification 12A in appendix B to this part.

(2) The owner or operator must conduct a performance evaluation of each CEMS according to
the requirements of §60.13 and Performance Specification 12A in appendix B to this part.

(3) The owner or operator must operate each CEMS according to the requirements in paragraphs
(p)(3)(i) through (iv) of this section.

(i) As specified in §60.13(e)(2), each CEMS must complete a minimum of one cycle of operation
(sampling, analyzing, and data recording) for each successive 15-minute period.

(i1) The owner or operator must reduce CEMS data as specified in §60.13(h).

(iii) The owner or operator shall use all valid data points collected during the hour to calculate
the hourly average Hg concentration.

(iv) The owner or operator must record the results of each required certification and quality
assurance test of the CEMS.

(4) Mercury CEMS data collection must conform to paragraphs (p)(4)(i) through (iv) of this
section.

(i) For each calendar month in which the affected unit operates, valid hourly Hg concentration
data, stack gas volumetric flow rate data, moisture data (if required), and electrical output data
(i.e., valid data for all of these parameters) shall be obtained for at least 75 percent of the unit
operating hours in the month.

(ii) Data reported to meet the requirements of this subpart shall not include hours of unit startup,
shutdown, or malfunction. In addition, for an affected facility that is also subject to subpart I of
part 75 of this chapter, data reported to meet the requirements of this subpart shall not include
data substituted using the missing data procedures in subpart D of part 75 of this chapter, nor
shall the data have been bias adjusted according to the procedures of part 75 of this chapter.

(iii) If valid data are obtained for less than 75 percent of the unit operating hours in a month, you
must discard the data collected in that month and replace the data with the mean of the individual
monthly emission rate values determined in the last 12 months. In the 12-month rolling average
calculation, this substitute Hg emission rate shall be weighted according to the number of unit
operating hours in the month for which the data capture requirement of §60.49Da(p)(4)(i) was
not met.

(iv) Notwithstanding the requirements of paragraph (p)(4)(iii) of this section, if valid data are
obtained for less than 75 percent of the unit operating hours in another month in that same 12-
month rolling average cycle, discard the data collected in that month and replace the data with
the highest individual monthly emission rate determined in the last 12 months. In the 12-month
rolling average calculation, this substitute Hg emission rate shall be weighted according to the

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-58



number of unit operating hours in the month for which the data capture requirement of
§60.49Da(p)(4)(i) was not met.

(q) As an alternative to the CEMS required in paragraph (p) of this section, the owner or operator
may use a sorbent trap monitoring system (as defined in §72.2 of this chapter) to monitor Hg
concentration, according to the procedures described in §75.15 of this chapter and appendix K to
part 75 of this chapter.

(r) For Hg CEMS that measure Hg concentration on a dry basis or for sorbent trap monitoring
systems, the emissions data must be corrected for the stack gas moisture content. A certified
continuous moisture monitoring system that meets the requirements of §75.11(b) of this chapter
is acceptable for this purpose. Alternatively, the appropriate default moisture value, as specified
in §75.11(b) or §75.12(b) of this chapter, may be used.

(s) The owner or operator shall prepare and submit to the Administrator for approval a unit-
specific monitoring plan for each monitoring system, at least 45 days before commencing
certification testing of the monitoring systems. The owner or operator shall comply with the
requirements in your plan. The plan must address the requirements in paragraphs (s)(1) through
(6) of this section.

(1) Installation of the CEMS sampling probe or other interface at a measurement location relative
to each affected process unit such that the measurement is representative of the exhaust
emissions (e.g., on or downstream of the last control device);

(2) Performance and equipment specifications for the sample interface, the pollutant
concentration or parametric signal analyzer, and the data collection and reduction systems;

(3) Performance evaluation procedures and acceptance criteria (e.g., calibrations, relative
accuracy test audits (RATA), etc.);

(4) Ongoing operation and maintenance procedures in accordance with the general requirements
of §60.13(d) or part 75 of this chapter (as applicable);

(5) Ongoing data quality assurance procedures in accordance with the general requirements of
§60.13 or part 75 of this chapter (as applicable); and

(6) Ongoing recordkeeping and reporting procedures in accordance with the requirements of this
subpart.

(t) The owner or operator of an affected facility demonstrating compliance with the output-based
emissions limitation under §60.42Da(c)(1) shall install, certify, operate, and maintain a CEMS
for measuring PM emissions according to the requirements of paragraph (v) of this section. An
owner or operator of an affected facility demonstrating compliance with the input-based
emission limitation in §60.42Da(a)(1) or §60.42Da(c)(2) may install, certify, operate, and
maintain a CEMS for measuring PM emissions according to the requirements of paragraph (v) of
this section.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-59



(u) The owner or operator of an affected facility using a CEMS measuring CO emissions to meet
requirements of this subpart shall meet the requirements specified in paragraphs (u)(1) through
(4) of this section.

(1) You must monitor CO emissions using a CEMS according to the procedures specified in
paragraphs (u)(1)(i) through (iv) of this section.

(i) The CO CEMS must be installed, certified, maintained, and operated according to the
provisions in §60.58b(1)(3) of subpart Eb of this part.

(ii) Each 1-hour CO emissions average is calculated using the data points generated by the CO
CEMS expressed in parts per million by volume corrected to 3 percent oxygen (dry basis).

(ii1) At a minimum, valid 1-hour CO emissions averages must be obtained for at least 90 percent
of the operating hours on a 30-day rolling average basis. The 1-hour averages are calculated
using the data points required in §60.13(h)(2).

(iv) Quarterly accuracy determinations and daily calibration drift tests for the CO CEMS must be
performed in accordance with procedure 1 in appendix F of this part.

(2) You must calculate the 1-hour average CO emissions levels for each boiler operating day by
multiplying the average hourly CO output concentration measured by the CO CEMS times the
corresponding average hourly flue gas flow rate and divided by the corresponding average
hourly useful energy output from the affected facility. The 24-hour average CO emission level is
determined by calculating the arithmetic average of the hourly CO emission levels computed for
each boiler operating day.

(3) You must evaluate the preceding 24-hour average CO emission level each boiler operating
day excluding periods of affected facility startup, shutdown, or malfunction. If the 24-hour
average CO emission level is greater than 1.4 Ib/MWh, you must initiate investigation of the
relevant equipment and control systems within 24 hours of the first discovery of the high
emission incident and, take the appropriate corrective action as soon as practicable to adjust
control settings or repair equipment to reduce the 24-hour average CO emission level to 1.4
Ib/MWh or less.

(4) You must record the CO measurements and calculations performed according to paragraph
(u)(3) of this section and any corrective actions taken. The record of corrective action taken
must include the date and time during which the 24-hour average CO emission level was greater
than 1.4 Ib/MWh, and the date, time, and description of the corrective action.

(v) The owner or operator of an affected facility using a CEMS measuring PM emissions to meet

requirements of this subpart shall install, certify, operate, and maintain the CEMS as specified in
paragraphs (v)(1) through (v)(4) of this section.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-60



(1) The owner or operator shall conduct a performance evaluation of the CEMS according to the
applicable requirements of §60.13, Performance Specification 11 in appendix B of this part, and
procedure 2 in appendix F of this part.

(2) During each PM correlation testing run of the CEMS required by Performance Specification
11 in appendix B of this part, PM and O,(or CO,) data shall be collected concurrently (or within
a 30- to 60-minute period) by both the CEMS and performance tests conducted using the
following test methods.

(i) For PM, Method 5 or 5B of appendix A-3 of this part or Method 17 of appendix A—6 of this
part shall be used; and

(ii) After July 1, 2010 or after Method 202 of appendix M of part 51 has been revised to
minimize artifact measurement and notice of that change has been published in the Federal

Register, whichever is later, for condensable PM emissions, Method 202 of appendix M of part
51 shall be used; and

(iii) For O; (or CO;), Method 3A or 3B of appendix A-2 of this part, as applicable shall be used.

(3) Quarterly accuracy determinations and daily calibration drift tests shall be performed in
accordance with procedure 2 in appendix F of this part. Relative Response Audit's must be
performed annually and Response Correlation Audits must be performed every 3 years.

(4) After July 1, 2011, within 90 days after the date of completing each performance evaluation
required by paragraph (v) of this section, the owner or operator of the affected facility must
either submit the test data to EPA by successfully entering the data electronically into EPA's
WebFIRE data base available at Attp://cfpub.epa.gov/oarweb/index.cfm?action=fire.main or mail
a copy to: United States Environmental Protection Agency; Energy Strategies Group; 109 TW
Alexander DR; Mail Code: D243-01; RTP, NC 27711.

(w) The owner or operator using a SO,, NOx, CO,, and O, CEMS to meet the requirements of
this subpart shall install, certify, operate, and maintain the CEMS as specified in paragraphs
(w)(1) through (w)(5) of this section.

(1) Except as provided for under paragraphs (w)(2), (w)(3), and (w)(4) of this section, each SO,
NOx, CO,, and O, CEMS required under paragraphs (b) through (d) of this section shall be
installed, certified, and operated in accordance with the applicable procedures in Performance
Specification 2 or 3 in appendix B to this part or according to the procedures in appendices A
and B to part 75 of this chapter. Daily calibration drift assessments and quarterly accuracy
determinations shall be done in accordance with Procedure 1 in appendix F to this part, and a
data assessment report (DAR), prepared according to section 7 of Procedure 1 in appendix F to
this part, shall be submitted with each compliance report required under §60.51Da.

(2) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (w)(1) of this section, an owner or

operator may elect to implement the following alternative data accuracy assessment procedures.
For all required CO; and O, CEMS and for SO, and NOx CEMS with span values greater than or

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-61



equal to 100 ppm, the daily calibration error test and calibration adjustment procedures described
in sections 2.1.1 and 2.1.3 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter may be followed instead of
the CD assessment procedures in Procedure 1, section 4.1 of appendix F of this part. If this
option is selected, the data validation and out-of-control provisions in sections 2.1.4 and 2.1.5 of
appendix B to part 75 of this chapter shall be followed instead of the excessive CD and out-of-
control criteria in Procedure 1, section 4.3 of appendix F to this part. For the purposes of data
validation under this subpart, the excessive CD and out-of-control criteria in Procedure 1, section
4.3 of appendix F to this part shall apply to SO, and NOx span values less than 100 ppm;

(3) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (w)(1) of this section, an owner or
operator may elect to may elect to implement the following alternative data accuracy assessment
procedures. For all required CO,and O,CEMS and for SO, and NOxCEMS with span values
greater than 30 ppm, quarterly linearity checks may be performed in accordance with section
2.2.1 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter, instead of performing the cylinder gas audits
(CGA:s) described in Procedure 1, section 5.1.2 of appendix F to this part. If this option is
selected: The frequency of the linearity checks shall be as specified in section 2.2.1 of appendix
B to part 75 of this chapter; the applicable linearity specifications in section 3.2 of appendix A to
part 75 of this chapter shall be met; the data validation and out-of-control criteria in section 2.2.3
of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter shall be followed instead of the excessive audit
inaccuracy and out-of-control criteria in Procedure 1, section 5.2 of appendix F to this part; and
the grace period provisions in section 2.2.4 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter shall apply.
For the purposes of data validation under this subpart, the cylinder gas audits described in
Procedure 1, section 5.1.2 of appendix F to this part shall be performed for SO, and NOx span
values less than or equal to 30 ppm;

(4) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (w)(1) of this section, an owner or
operator may elect to may elect to implement the following alternative data accuracy assessment
procedures. For SO,, CO,, and O, CEMS and for NOx CEMS, RATAs may be performed in
accordance with section 2.3 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter instead of following the
procedures described in Procedure 1, section 5.1.1 of appendix F to this part. If this option is
selected: The frequency of each RATA shall be as specified in section 2.3.1 of appendix B to
part 75 of this chapter; the applicable relative accuracy specifications shown in Figure 2 in
appendix B to part 75 of this chapter shall be met; the data validation and out-of-control criteria
in section 2.3.2 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter shall be followed instead of the excessive
audit inaccuracy and out-of-control criteria in Procedure 1, section 5.2 of appendix F to this part;
and the grace period provisions in section 2.3.3 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter shall
apply. For the purposes of data validation under this subpart, the relative accuracy specification
in section 13.2 of Performance Specification 2 in appendix B to this part shall be met on a
Ib/MMBtu basis for SO, (regardless of the SO; emission level during the RATA), and for NOx
when the average NOx emission rate measured by the reference method during the RATA is less
than 0.100 1lb/MMBtu;

(5) If the owner or operator elects to implement the alternative data assessment procedures
described in paragraphs (w)(2) through (w)(4) of this section, each data assessment report shall
include a summary of the results of all of the RATAs, linearity checks, CGAs, and calibration
error or drift assessments required by paragraphs (w)(2) through (w)(4) of this section.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-62



[72 FR 32722, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5081, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.50Da Compliance determination procedures and methods.

(a) In conducting the performance tests required in §60.8, the owner or operator shall use as
reference methods and procedures the methods in appendix A of this part or the methods and
procedures as specified in this section, except as provided in §60.8(b). Section 60.8(f) does not
apply to this section for SO, and NOx. Acceptable alternative methods are given in paragraph
(e) of this section.

(b) The owner or operator shall determine compliance with the PM standards in §60.42Da as
follows:

(1) The dry basis F factor (O,) procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part shall be used
to compute the emission rate of PM.

(2) For the particular matter concentration, Method 5 of appendix A of this part shall be used at
affected facilities without wet FGD systems and Method 5B of appendix A of this part shall be
used after wet FGD systems.

(i) The sampling time and sample volume for each run shall be at least 120 minutes and 1.70
dscm (60 dscf). The probe and filter holder heating system in the sampling train may be set to
provide an average gas temperature of no greater than 160+14 °C (320425 °F).

(ii) For each particulate run, the emission rate correction factor, integrated or grab sampling and
analysis procedures of Method 3B of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the
Os,concentration. The O, sample shall be obtained simultaneously with, and at the same traverse
points as, the particulate run. If the particulate run has more than 12 traverse points, the O;
traverse points may be reduced to 12 provided that Method 1 of appendix A of this part is used to
locate the 12 O, traverse points. If the grab sampling procedure is used, the O, concentration for
the run shall be the arithmetic mean of the sample O, concentrations at all traverse points.

(3) Method 9 of appendix A of this part and the procedures in §60.11 shall be used to determine
opacity.

(c) The owner or operator shall determine compliance with the SO, standards in §60.43Da as
follows:

(1) The percent of potential SO, emissions (%Ps) to the atmosphere shall be computed using the
following equation:

100 -%R,) (100 - %R
%P‘ :( f)( :)
100

Where:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-63



%Ps = Percent of potential SO, emissions, percent;
%Rf = Percent reduction from fuel pretreatment, percent; and
%Rg = Percent reduction by SO, control system, percent.

(2) The procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part may be used to determine percent
reduction (%Ry) of sulfur by such processes as fuel pretreatment (physical coal cleaning,
hydrodesulfurization of fuel oil, etc.), coal pulverizers, and bottom and fly ash interactions. This
determination is optional.

(3) The procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the
percent SO; reduction (%R,) of any SO, control system. Alternatively, a combination of an “as
fired” fuel monitor and emission rates measured after the control system, following the
procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part, may be used if the percent reduction is
calculated using the average emission rate from the SO, control device and the average SO, input
rate from the “as fired” fuel analysis for 30 successive boiler operating days.

(4) The appropriate procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part shall be used to
determine the emission rate.

(5) The CEMS in §60.49Da(b) and (d) shall be used to determine the concentrations of SO, and
COz or 02.

(d) The owner or operator shall determine compliance with the NOx standard in §60.44Da as
follows:

(1) The appropriate procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part shall be used to
determine the emission rate of NOx.

(2) The continuous monitoring system in §60.49Da(c) and (d) shall be used to determine the
concentrations of NOx and CO; or O,.

(e) The owner or operator may use the following as alternatives to the reference methods and
procedures specified in this section:

(1) For Method 5 or 5B of appendix A-3 of this part, Method 17 of appendix A—6 of this part
may be used at facilities with or without wet FGD systems if the stack temperature at the
sampling location does not exceed an average temperature of 160 °C (320 °F). The procedures
of sections 8.1 and 11.1 of Method 5B of appendix A-3 of this part may be used in Method 17 of
appendix A—6 of this part only if it is used after wet FGD systems. Method 17 of appendix A—6
of this part shall not be used after wet FGD systems if the effluent is saturated or laden with
water droplets.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-64



(2) The F factor (CO,) procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part may be used to
compute the emission rate of PM under the stipulations of §60.46(d)(1). The CO, shall be
determined in the same manner as the O,concentration.

(f) Electric utility combined cycle gas turbines that are not designed to burn fuels containing 50
percent (by heat input) or more solid derived fuel not meeting the definition of natural gas are
performance tested for PM, SO,, and NOx using the procedures of Method 19 of appendix A—7
of this part. The SO, and NOx emission rates calculations from the gas turbine used in Method
19 of appendix A-7 of this part are determined when the gas turbine is performance tested under
subpart GG of this part. The potential uncontrolled PM emission rate from a gas turbine is
defined as 17 ng/J (0.04 1b/MMBtu) heat input.

(g) For the purposes of determining compliance with the emission limits in §60.45Da, the owner
or operator of an electric utility steam generating unit which is also a cogeneration unit shall use
the procedures in paragraphs (g)(1) and (2) of this section to calculate emission rates based on
electrical output to the grid plus 75 percent of the equivalent electrical energy (measured relative
to ISO conditions) in the unit's process stream.

(1) All conversions from Btu/hr unit input to MW unit output must use equivalents found in 40
CFR 60.40(a)(1) for electric utilities (i.e., 250 MMBtu/hr input to an electric utility steam
generating unit is equivalent to 73 MW input to the electric utility steam generating unit); 73
MW input to the electric utility steam generating unit is equivalent to 25 MW output from the
boiler electric utility steam generating unit; therefore, 250 MMBtu input to the electric utility
steam generating unit is equivalent to 25 MW output from the electric utility steam generating
unit).

(2) Use the Equation 5 in this section to determine the cogeneration Hg emission rate over a
specific compliance period.

M

ERppn =
= (Ve +075xV

(Eq.5)
pmu)

Where:

ERcogen= Cogeneration Hg emission rate over a compliance period in lb/MWh;

E = Mass of Hg emitted from the stack over the same compliance period (1b);

Vgrig= Amount of energy sent to the grid over the same compliance period (MWh); and

Vprocess= Amount of energy converted to steam for process use over the same compliance period
(MWh).

(h) The owner or operator shall determine compliance with the Hg limit in §60.45Da according
to the procedures in paragraphs (h)(1) through (3) of this section.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-65



(1) The initial performance test shall be commenced by the applicable date specified in §60.8(a).
The required CEMS must be certified prior to commencing the test. The performance test
consists of collecting hourly Hg emission data (Ib/MWh) with the CEMS for 12 successive
months of unit operation (excluding hours of unit startup, shutdown and malfunction). The
average Hg emission rate is calculated for each month, and then the weighted, 12-month average
Hg emission rate is calculated according to paragraph (h)(2) or (h)(3) of this section, as
applicable. If, for any month in the initial performance test, the minimum data capture
requirement in §60.49Da(p)(4)(1) is not met, the owner or operator shall report a substitute Hg
emission rate for that month, as follows. For the first such month, the substitute monthly Hg
emission rate shall be the arithmetic average of all valid hourly Hg emission rates recorded to
date. For any subsequent month(s) with insufficient data capture, the substitute monthly Hg
emission rate shall be the highest valid hourly Hg emission rate recorded to date. When the 12-
month average Hg emission rate for the initial performance test is calculated, for each month in
which there was insufficient data capture, the substitute monthly Hg emission rate shall be
weighted according to the number of unit operating hours in that month. Following the initial
performance test, the owner or operator shall demonstrate compliance by calculating the
weighted average of all monthly Hg emission rates (in Ilb/MWh) for each 12 successive calendar
months, excluding data obtained during startup, shutdown, or malfunction.

(2) If a CEMS is used to demonstrate compliance, follow the procedures in paragraphs (h)(2)(i)
through (iii) of this section to determine the 12-month rolling average.

(i) Calculate the total mass of Hg emissions over a month (M), in lb, using either Equation 6 in
paragraph (h)(2)(i)(A) of this section or Equation 7 in paragraph (h)(2)(i)(B) of this section, in
conjunction with Equation 8 in paragraph (h)(2)(i)(C) of this section.

(A) If the Hg CEMS measures Hg concentration on a wet basis, use Equation 6 below to
calculate the Hg mass emissions for each valid hour:

E,=KC, Q, t, (Eq 6)

Where:

Ew= Hg mass emissions for the hour, (Ib);

K = Units conversion constant, 6.24 x 10™"! Ib-scm/pgm-scf;
Cr= Hourly Hg concentration, wet basis, (ugm/scm);

Qn= Hourly stack gas volumetric flow rate, (scth); and

ty= Unit operating time, i.e., the fraction of the hour for which the unit operated. For example, th
= 0.50 for a half-hour of unit operation and 1.00 for a full hour of operation.

(B) If the Hg CEMS measures Hg concentration on a dry basis, use Equation 7 below to
calculate the Hg mass emissions for each valid hour:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-66



E, =KC, Q, t, (I-B“) Eq. D

Where:

Ey= Hg mass emissions for the hour, (Ib);

K = Units conversion constant, 6.24 x 10" Ilb-scrn/pgm-scf;

Cn= Hourly Hg concentration, dry basis, (pgm/dscm);

Qn= Hourly stack gas volumetric flow rate, (scth);

ty= Unit operating time, i.e. , the fraction of the hour for which the unit operated; and

Bws= Stack gas moisture content, expressed as a decimal fraction (e.g., for 8 percent H,O, Bys=
0.08).

(C) Use Equation 8, below, to calculate M, the total mass of Hg emitted for the month, by
summing the hourly masses derived from Equation 6 or 7 (as applicable):

M =zn:Eh Eq 8)
=

Where:
M = Total Hg mass emissions for the month, (Ib);
En= Hg mass emissions for hour “h”, from Equation 6 or 7 of this section, (Ib); and

n = Number of unit operating hours in the month with valid CE and electrical output data,
excluding hours of unit startup, shutdown and malfunction.

(ii) Calculate the monthly Hg emission rate on an output basis (Ib/MWh) using Equation 9,
below. For a cogeneration unit, use Equation 5 in paragraph (g) of this section instead.

ER = Eaq 9

*u|,’c:::

Where:
ER = Monthly Hg emission rate, (1b/MWh);
M = Total mass of Hg emissions for the month, from Equation 8, above, (Ib); and

P = Total electrical output for the month, for the hours used to calculate M, (MWh).

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-67



(iii) Until 12 monthly Hg emission rates have been accumulated, calculate and report only the
monthly averages. Then, for each subsequent calendar month, use Equation 10 below to
calculate the 12-month rolling average as a weighted average of the Hg emission rate for the
current month and the Hg emission rates for the previous 11 months, with one exception.
Calendar months in which the unit does not operate (zero unit operating hours) shall not be
included in the 12-month rolling average.

2

1
Z(ERi" ny)
E\w: inl 7 (Eq 10)
20
iml
Where:

Eavg= Weighted 12-month rolling average Hg emission rate, (Ib/MWh);
ER;= Monthly Hg emission rate, for month “i”, (Ib/MWh); and

n = Number of unit operating hours in month “i” with valid CEM and electrical output data,
excluding hours of unit startup, shutdown, and malfunction.

(3) If a sorbent trap monitoring system is used in lieu of a Hg CEMS, as described in §75.15 of
this chapter and in appendix K to part 75 of this chapter, calculate the monthly Hg emission rates
using Equations 7 through 9 of this section, except that for a particular pair of sorbent traps, Cyin
Equation 7 shall be the flow-proportional average Hg concentration measured over the data
collection period.

(i) Daily calibration drift (CD) tests and quarterly accuracy determinations shall be performed for
Hg CEMS in accordance with Procedure 1 of appendix F to this part. For the CD assessments,
you may use either elemental mercury or mercuric chloride (Hg® HgCl,) standards. The four
quarterly accuracy determinations shall consist of one RATA and three measurement error (ME)
tests using HgCl, standards, as described in section 8.3 of Performance Specification 12—-A in
appendix B to this part (note: Hg® standards may be used if the Hg monitor does not have a
converter). Alternatively, the owner or operator may implement the applicable daily, weekly,
quarterly, and annual quality assurance (QA) requirements for Hg CEMS in appendix B to part
75 of this chapter, in lieu of the QA procedures in appendices B and F to this part. Annual RATA
of sorbent trap monitoring systems shall be performed in accordance with appendices A and B to
part 75 of this chapter, and all other quality assurance requirements specified in appendix K to
part 75 of this chapter shall be met for sorbent trap monitoring systems.

[72 FR 32722, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5083, Jan. 28, 2009]

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-68



§ 60.51Da Reporting requirements.

(a) For SO, NOx, PM, and Hg emissions, the performance test data from the initial and
subsequent performance test and from the performance evaluation of the continuous monitors
(including the transmissometer) are submitted to the Administrator.

(b) For SO, and NOx the following information is reported to the Administrator for each 24-hour
period.

(1) Calendar date.

(2) The average SO, and NOx emission rates (ng/J, [t/MMBtu, or Ib/MWh) for each 30
successive boiler operating days, ending with the last 30-day period in the quarter; reasons for
non-compliance with the emission standards; and, description of corrective actions taken.

(3) For owners or operators of affected facilities complying with the percent reduction
requirement, percent reduction of the potential combustion concentration of SO, for each 30
successive boiler operating days, ending with the last 30-day period in the quarter; reasons for
non-compliance with the standard; and, description of corrective actions taken.

(4) Identification of the boiler operating days for which pollutant or diluent data have not been
obtained by an approved method for at least 75 percent of the hours of operation of the facility;
justification for not obtaining sufficient data; and description of corrective actions taken.

(5) Identification of the times when emissions data have been excluded from the calculation of
average emission rates because of startup, shutdown, malfunction (NOx only), emergency
conditions (SO, only), or other reasons, and justification for excluding data for reasons other than
startup, shutdown, malfunction, or emergency conditions.

(6) Identification of “F” factor used for calculations, method of determination, and type of fuel
combusted.

(7) Identification of times when hourly averages have been obtained based on manual sampling
methods.

(8) Identification of the times when the pollutant concentration exceeded full span of the CEMS.

(9) Description of any modifications to CEMS which could affect the ability of the CEMS to
comply with Performance Specifications 2 or 3.

(c) If the minimum quantity of emission data as required by §60.49Da is not obtained for any 30
successive boiler operating days, the following information obtained under the requirements of

§60.48Da(h) is reported to the Administrator for that 30-day period:

(1) The number of hourly averages available for outlet emission rates (no) and inlet emission
rates (n;) as applicable.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-69



(2) The standard deviation of hourly averages for outlet emission rates (s,) and inlet emission
rates (s;) as applicable.

(3) The lower confidence limit for the mean outlet emission rate (E,*) and the upper confidence
limit for the mean inlet emission rate (E;*) as applicable.

(4) The applicable potential combustion concentration.

(5) The ratio of the upper confidence limit for the mean outlet emission rate (E,*) and the
allowable emission rate (Egq4) as applicable.

(d) If any standards under §60.43Da are exceeded during emergency conditions because of
control system malfunction, the owner or operator of the affected facility shall submit a signed

Statement:

(1) Indicating if emergency conditions existed and requirements under §60.48Da(d) were met
during each period, and

(2) Listing the following information:
(i) Time periods the emergency condition existed,;

(i1) Electrical output and demand on the owner or operator's electric utility system and the
affected facility;

(ii1) Amount of power purchased from interconnected neighboring utility companies during the
emergency period;

(iv) Percent reduction in emissions achieved;
(v) Atmospheric emission rate (ng/J) of the pollutant discharged; and
(vi) Actions taken to correct control system malfunction.

(e) If fuel pretreatment credit toward the SO, emission standard under §60.43Da is claimed, the
owner or operator of the affected facility shall submit a signed statement:

(1) Indicating what percentage cleaning credit was taken for the calendar quarter, and whether
the credit was determined in accordance with the provisions of §60.50Da and Method 19 of
appendix A of this part; and

(2) Listing the quantity, heat content, and date each pretreated fuel shipment was received during
the previous quarter; the name and location of the fuel pretreatment facility; and the total
quantity and total heat content of all fuels received at the affected facility during the previous
quarter.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-70



(f) For any periods for which opacity, SO, or NOx emissions data are not available, the owner or
operator of the affected facility shall submit a signed statement indicating if any changes were
made in operation of the emission control system during the period of data unavailability.
Operations of the control system and affected facility during periods of data unavailability are to
be compared with operation of the control system and affected facility before and following the
period of data unavailability.

(g) For Hg, the following information shall be reported to the Administrator:

(1) Company name and address;

(2) Date of report and beginning and ending dates of the reporting period,;

(3) The applicable Hg emission limit (Ib/MWh); and

(4) For each month in the reporting period:

(1) The number of unit operating hours;

(i1) The number of unit operating hours with valid data for Hg concentration, stack gas flow rate,
moisture (if required), and electrical output;

(iii) The monthly Hg emission rate (Ib/MWh);

(iv) The number of hours of valid data excluded from the calculation of the monthly Hg emission
rate, due to unit startup, shutdown and malfunction; and

(v) The 12-month rolling average Hg emission rate (Ib/MWh); and

(5) The data assessment report (DAR) required by appendix F to this part, or an equivalent
summary of QA test results if the QA of part 75 of this chapter are implemented.

(h) The owner or operator of the affected facility shall submit a signed statement indicating
whether:

(1) The required CEMS calibration, span, and drift checks or other periodic audits have or have
not been performed as specified.

(2) The data used to show compliance was or was not obtained in accordance with approved
methods and procedures of this part and is representative of plant performance.

(3) The minimum data requirements have or have not been met; or, the minimum data
requirements have not been met for errors that were unavoidable.

(4) Compliance with the standards has or has not been achieved during the reporting period.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-71



(i) For the purposes of the reports required under §60.7, periods of excess emissions are defined
as all 6-minute periods during which the average opacity exceeds the applicable opacity
standards under §60.42Da(b). Opacity levels in excess of the applicable opacity standard and the
date of such excesses are to be submitted to the Administrator each calendar quarter.

(i) The owner or operator of an affected facility shall submit the written reports required under
this section and subpart A to the Administrator semiannually for each six-month period. All
semiannual reports shall be postmarked by the 30th day following the end of each six-month
period.

(k) The owner or operator of an affected facility may submit electronic quarterly reports for SO,
and/or NOx and/or opacity and/or Hg in lieu of submitting the written reports required under
paragraphs (b), (g), and (i) of this section. The format of each quarterly electronic report shall be
coordinated with the permitting authority. The electronic report(s) shall be submitted no later
than 30 days after the end of the calendar quarter and shall be accompanied by a certification
statement from the owner or operator, indicating whether compliance with the applicable
emission standards and minimum data requirements of this subpart was achieved during the
reporting period. Before submitting reports in the electronic format, the owner or operator shall
coordinate with the permitting authority to obtain their agreement to submit reports in this
alternative format.

[72 FR 32722, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5083, Jan. 28, 2009]

§ 60.52Da Recordkeeping requirements.

(a) The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to the emissions limitations in §60.45Da
shall provide notifications in accordance with §60.7(a) and shall maintain records of all

information needed to demonstrate compliance including performance tests, monitoring data,
fuel analyses, and calculations, consistent with the requirements of §60.7(f).

(b) The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to the opacity limits in §60.42Da(b) that
elects to monitor emissions according to the requirements in §60.49Da(a)(3) shall maintain
records according to the requirements specified in paragraphs (b)(1) through (3) of this section,
as applicable to the visible emissions monitoring method used.

(1) For each performance test conducted using Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part, the owner
or operator shall keep the records including the information specified in paragraphs (b)(1)(1)
through (iii) of this section.

(i) Dates and time intervals of all opacity observation periods;

(ii) Name, affiliation, and copy of current visible emission reading certification for each visible
emission observer participating in the performance test; and

(iii) Copies of all visible emission observer opacity field data sheets;

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-72



(2) For each performance test conducted using Method 22 of appendix A—4 of this part, the
owner or operator shall keep the records including the information specified in paragraphs
(b)(2)(i) through (iv) of this section.

(i) Dates and time intervals of all visible emissions observation periods;

(i1) Name and affiliation for each visible emission observer participating in the performance test;
(iii) Copies of all visible emission observer opacity field data sheets; and

(iv) Documentation of any adjustments made and the time the adjustments were completed to the
affected facility operation by the owner or operator to demonstrate compliance with the
applicable monitoring requirements.

(3) For each digital opacity compliance system, the owner or operator shall maintain records and
submit reports according to the requirements specified in the site-specific monitoring plan

approved by the Administrator.

[74 FR 5083, Jan. 28, 2009]

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-73



Title 40: Protection of Environment
PART 60—STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW STATIONARY SOURCES

Subpart Db—Standards of Performance for Industrial-Commercial-Institutional Steam
Generating Units

Source: 72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007, unless otherwise noted.
§ 60.40b Applicability and delegation of authority.

(a) The affected facility to which this subpart applies is each steam generating unit that
commences construction, modification, or reconstruction after June 19, 1984, and that has a heat
input capacity from fuels combusted in the steam generating unit of greater than 29 megawatts
(MW) (100 million British thermal units per hour (MMBtu/hr)).

(b) Any affected facility meeting the applicability requirements under paragraph (a) of this
section and commencing construction, modification, or reconstruction after June 19, 1984, but on
or before June 19, 1986, is subject to the following standards:

(1) Coal-fired affected facilities having a heat input capacity between 29 and 73 MW (100 and
250 MMBtu/hr), inclusive, are subject to the particulate matter (PM) and nitrogen oxides (NOx)
standards under this subpart.

(2) Coal-fired affected facilities having a heat input capacity greater than 73 MW (250
MMBtu/hr) and meeting the applicability requirements under subpart D (Standards of
performance for fossil-fuel-fired steam generators; §60.40) are subject to the PM and NOx
standards under this subpart and to the sulfur dioxide (SO,) standards under subpart D (§60.43).

(3) Oil-fired affected facilities having a heat input capacity between 29 and 73 MW (100 and 250
MMBtw/hr), inclusive, are subject to the NOx standards under this subpart.

(4) Oil-fired affected facilities having a heat input capacity greater than 73 MW (250 MMBtuw/hr)
and meeting the applicability requirements under subpart D (Standards of performance for fossil-

fuel-fired steam generators; §60.40) are also subject to the NOx standards under this subpart and
the PM and SO; standards under subpart D (§60.42 and §60.43).

(c) Affected facilities that also meet the applicability requirements under subpart J (Standards of
performance for petroleum refineries; §60.104) are subject to the PM and NOy standards under
this subpart and the SO, standards under subpart J (§60.104).

(d) Affected facilities that also meet the applicability requirements under subpart E (Standards of
performance for incinerators; §60.50) are subject to the NOx and PM standards under this
subpart.

(e) Steam generating units meeting the applicability requirements under subpart Da (Standards of

performance for electric utility steam generating units; §60.40Da) are not subject to this subpart.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-74



(f) Any change to an existing steam generating unit for the sole purpose of combusting gases
containing total reduced sulfur (TRS) as defined under §60.281 is not considered a modification
under §60.14 and the steam generating unit is not subject to this subpart.

(g) In delegating implementation and enforcement authority to a State under section 111(c) of the
Clean Air Act, the following authorities shall be retained by the Administrator and not
transferred to a State.

(1) Section 60.44b(f).
(2) Section 60.44b(g).
(3) Section 60.49b(a)(4).

(h) Any affected facility that meets the applicability requirements and is subject to subpart Ea,
subpart Eb, or subpart AAAA of this part is not covered by this subpart.

(i) Heat recovery steam generators that are associated with combined cycle gas turbines and that
meet the applicability requirements of subpart KKKK of this part are not subject to this subpart.
This subpart will continue to apply to all other heat recovery steam generators that are capable of
combusting more than 29 MW (100 MMBtuw/hr) heat input of fossil fuel. If the heat recovery
steam generator is subject to this subpart, only emissions resulting from combustion of fuels in
the steam generating unit are subject to this subpart. (The gas turbine emissions are subject to
subpart GG or KKKK, as applicable, of this part.)

(J) Any affected facility meeting the applicability requirements under paragraph (a) of this
section and commencing construction, modification, or reconstruction after June 19, 1986, is not
subject to subpart D (Standards of Performance for Fossil-Fuel-Fired Steam Generators, §60.40).

(k) Any affected facility that meets the applicability requirements and is subject to an EPA
approved State or Federal section 111(d)/129 plan implementing subpart Cb or subpart BBBB of
this part is not covered by this subpart.

[72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5084, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.41b Definitions.

As used in this subpart, all terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given them in the
Clean Air Act and in subpart A of this part.

Annual capacity factor means the ratio between the actual heat input to a steam generating unit
from the fuels listed in §60.42b(a), §60.43b(a), or §60.44b(a), as applicable, during a calendar
year and the potential heat input to the steam generating unit had it been operated for 8,760 hours
during a calendar year at the maximum steady state design heat input capacity. In the case of
steam generating units that are rented or leased, the actual heat input shall be determined based
on the combined heat input from all operations of the affected facility in a calendar year.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-75



Byproduct/waste means any liquid or gaseous substance produced at chemical manufacturing
plants, petroleum refineries, or pulp and paper mills (except natural gas, distillate oil, or residual
oil) and combusted in a steam generating unit for heat recovery or for disposal. Gaseous
substances with carbon dioxide (CO;) levels greater than 50 percent or carbon monoxide levels
greater than 10 percent are not byproduct/waste for the purpose of this subpart.

Chemical manufacturing plants mean industrial plants that are classified by the Department of
Commerce under Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code 28.

Coal means all solid fuels classified as anthracite, bituminous, subbituminous, or lignite by the
American Society of Testing and Materials in ASTM D388 (incorporated by reference, see
§60.17), coal refuse, and petroleum coke. Coal-derived synthetic fuels, including but not limited
to solvent refined coal, gasified coal not meeting the definition of natural gas, coal-oil mixtures,
coke oven gas, and coal-water mixtures, are also included in this definition for the purposes of
this subpart.

Coal refuse means any byproduct of coal mining or coal cleaning operations with an ash content
greater than 50 percent, by weight, and a heating value less than 13,900 kJ/kg (6,000 Btu/Ib) on a
dry basis.

Cogeneration, also known as combined heat and power, means a facility that simultaneously
produces both electric (or mechanical) and useful thermal energy from the same primary energy
source.

Coke oven gas means the volatile constituents generated in the gaseous exhaust during the
carbonization of bituminous coal to form coke.

Combined cycle system means a system in which a separate source, such as a gas turbine, internal
combustion engine, kiln, etc., provides exhaust gas to a steam generating unit.

Conventional technology means wet flue gas desulfurization (FGD) technology, dry FGD
technology, atmospheric fluidized bed combustion technology, and oil hydrodesulfurization
technology.

Distillate oil means fuel oils that contain 0.05 weight percent nitrogen or less and comply with
the specifications for fuel oil numbers 1 and 2, as defined by the American Society of Testing
and Materials in ASTM D396 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17) or diesel fuel oil numbers
1 and 2, as defined by the American Society for Testing and Materials in ASTM D975
(incorporated by reference, see §60.17).

Dry flue gas desulfurization technology means a SO, control system that is located downstream
of the steam generating unit and removes sulfur oxides from the combustion gases of the steam
generating unit by contacting the combustion gases with an alkaline reagent and water, whether
introduced separately or as a premixed slurry or solution and forming a dry powder material.
This definition includes devices where the dry powder material is subsequently converted to

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-76



another form. Alkaline slurries or solutions used in dry flue gas desulfurization technology
include but are not limited to lime and sodium.

Duct burner means a device that combusts fuel and that is placed in the exhaust duct from
another source, such as a stationary gas turbine, internal combustion engine, kiln, etc., to allow
the firing of additional fuel to heat the exhaust gases before the exhaust gases enter a steam
generating unit.

Emerging technology means any SO, control system that is not defined as a conventional
technology under this section, and for which the owner or operator of the facility has applied to
the Administrator and received approval to operate as an emerging technology under
§60.49b(a)(4).

Federally enforceable means all limitations and conditions that are enforceable by the
Administrator, including the requirements of 40 CFR parts 60 and 61, requirements within any
applicable State Implementation Plan, and any permit requirements established under 40 CFR
52.21 or under 40 CFR 51.18 and 51.24.

Fluidized bed combustion technology means combustion of fuel in a bed or series of beds
(including but not limited to bubbling bed units and circulating bed units) of limestone aggregate
(or other sorbent materials) in which these materials are forced upward by the flow of
combustion air and the gaseous products of combustion.

Fuel pretreatment means a process that removes a portion of the sulfur in a fuel before
combustion of the fuel in a steam generating unit.

Full capacity means operation of the steam generating unit at 90 percent or more of the
maximum steady-state design heat input capacity.

Gaseous fuel means any fuel that is a gas at ISO conditions. This includes, but is not limited to,
natural gas and gasified coal (including coke oven gas).

Gross output means the gross useful work performed by the steam generated. For units
generating only electricity, the gross useful work performed is the gross electrical output from
the turbine/generator set. For cogeneration units, the gross useful work performed is the gross
electrical or mechanical output plus 75 percent of the useful thermal output measured relative to
ISO conditions that is not used to generate additional electrical or mechanical output or to
enhance the performance of the unit (i.e., steam delivered to an industrial process).

Heat input means heat derived from combustion of fuel in a steam generating unit and does not

include the heat derived from preheated combustion air, recirculated flue gases, or exhaust gases
from other sources, such as gas turbines, internal combustion engines, kilns, etc.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-77



Heat release rate means the steam generating unit design heat input capacity (in MW or Btu/hr)
divided by the furnace volume (in cubic meters or cubic feet); the furnace volume is that volume
bounded by the front furnace wall where the burner is located, the furnace side waterwall, and
extending to the level just below or in front of the first row of convection pass tubes.

Heat transfer medium means any material that is used to transfer heat from one point to another
point.

H3igh heat release rate means a heat release rate greater than 730,000 J/sec-m® (70,000 Btu/hr-
ft).

ISO Conditions means a temperature of 288 Kelvin, a relative humidity of 60 percent, and a
pressure of 101.3 kilopascals.

Lignite means a type of coal classified as lignite A or lignite B by the American Society of
Testing and Materials in ASTM D388 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17).

Low heat release rate means a heat release rate of 730,000 J/sec-m’ (70,000 Btuw/hr-ft’) or less.

Mass-feed stoker steam generating unit means a steam generating unit where solid fuel is
introduced directly into a retort or is fed directly onto a grate where it is combusted.

Maximum heat input capacity means the ability of a steam generating unit to combust a stated
maximum amount of fuel on a steady state basis, as determined by the physical design and
characteristics of the steam generating unit.

Municipal-type solid waste means refuse, more than 50 percent of which is waste consisting of a
mixture of paper, wood, yard wastes, food wastes, plastics, leather, rubber, and other
combustible materials, and noncombustible materials such as glass and rock.

Natural gas means:

(1) A naturally occurring mixture of hydrocarbon and nonhydrocarbon gases found in geologic
formations beneath the earth's surface, of which the principal constituent is methane; or

(2) Liquefied petroleum gas, as defined by the American Society for Testing and Materials in
ASTM D1835 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17); or

(3) A mixture of hydrocarbons that maintains a gaseous state at ISO conditions. Additionally,
natural gas must either be composed of at least 70 percent methane by volume or have a gross
calorific value between 34 and 43 megajoules (MJ) per dry standard cubic meter (910 and 1,150
Btu per dry standard cubic foot).

Noncontinental area means the State of Hawaii, the Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, or the Northern Mariana Islands.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-78



Oil means crude oil or petroleum or a liquid fuel derived from crude oil or petroleum, including
distillate and residual oil.

Petroleum refinery means industrial plants as classified by the Department of Commerce under
Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code 29.

Potential sulfur dioxide emission rate means the theoretical SO, emissions (nanograms per joule
(ng/J) or Ib/MMBtu heat input) that would result from combusting fuel in an uncleaned state and
without using emission control systems. For gasified coal or oil that is desulfurized prior to
combustion, the Potential sulfur dioxide emission rate is the theoretical SO, emissions (ng/J or
1b/MMBtu heat input) that would result from combusting fuel in a cleaned state without using
any post combustion emission control systems.

Process heater means a device that is primarily used to heat a material to initiate or promote a
chemical reaction in which the material participates as a reactant or catalyst.

Pulp and paper mills means industrial plants that are classified by the Department of Commerce
under North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Code 322 or Standard Industrial
Classification (SIC) Code 26.

Pulverized coal-fired steam generating unit means a steam generating unit in which pulverized
coal is introduced into an air stream that carries the coal to the combustion chamber of the steam
generating unit where it is fired in suspension. This includes both conventional pulverized coal-
fired and micropulverized coal-fired steam generating units. Residual oil means crude oil, fuel
oil numbers 1 and 2 that have a nitrogen content greater than 0.05 weight percent, and all fuel oil
numbers 4, 5 and 6, as defined by the American Society of Testing and Materials in ASTM D396
(incorporated by reference, see §60.17).

Spreader stoker steam generating unit means a steam generating unit in which solid fuel is
introduced to the combustion zone by a mechanism that throws the fuel onto a grate from above.
Combustion takes place both in suspension and on the grate.

Steam generating unit means a device that combusts any fuel or byproduct/waste and produces
steam or heats water or heats any heat transfer medium. This term includes any municipal-type
solid waste incinerator with a heat recovery steam generating unit or any steam generating unit
that combusts fuel and is part of a cogeneration system or a combined cycle system. This term
does not include process heaters as they are defined in this subpart.

Steam generating unit operating day means a 24-hour period between 12:00 midnight and the
following midnight during which any fuel is combusted at any time in the steam generating unit.
It is not necessary for fuel to be combusted continuously for the entire 24-hour period.

Very low sulfur oil means for units constructed, reconstructed, or modified on or before February
28, 2005, oil that contains no more than 0.5 weight percent sulfur or that, when combusted
without SO, emission control, has a SO, emission rate equal to or less than 215 ng/J (0.5
1b/MMBtu) heat input. For units constructed, reconstructed, or modified after February 28,

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-79



2005, and not located in a noncontinental area, very low sulfur oil means oil that contains no
more than 0.30 weight percent sulfur or that, when combusted without SO, emission control, has
a SO, emission rate equal to or less than 140 ng/J (0.32 Ib/MMBtu) heat input. For units
constructed, reconstructed, or modified after February 28, 2005, and located in a noncontinental
area, very low sulfur oil means oil that contains no more than 0.5 weight percent sulfur or that,
when combusted without SO, emission control, has a SO; emission rate equal to or less than 215
ng/J (0.50 Ib/MMBtu) heat input.

Wet flue gas desulfurization technology means a SO, control system that is located downstream
of the steam generating unit and removes sulfur oxides from the combustion gases of the steam
generating unit by contacting the combustion gas with an alkaline slurry or solution and forming
a liquid material. This definition applies to devices where the aqueous liquid material product of
this contact is subsequently converted to other forms. Alkaline reagents used in wet flue gas
desulfurization technology include, but are not limited to, lime, limestone, and sodium.

Wet scrubber system means any emission control device that mixes an aqueous stream or slurry
with the exhaust gases from a steam generating unit to control emissions of PM or SO,.

Wood means wood, wood residue, bark, or any derivative fuel or residue thereof, in any form,
including, but not limited to, sawdust, sanderdust, wood chips, scraps, slabs, millings, shavings,
and processed pellets made from wood or other forest residues.

[72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5084, Jan. 28, 2009]

§ 60.42b Standard for sulfur dioxide (SO5).

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (b), (c), (d), or (j) of this section, on and after the date on
which the performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever
comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that commenced construction,
reconstruction, or modification on or before February 28, 2005, that combusts coal or oil shall
cause to be discharged into the atmosphere any gases that contain SO, in excess of 87 ng/J (0.20

Ib/MMBtu) or 10 percent (0.10) of the potential SO, emission rate (90 percent reduction) and the
emission limit determined according to the following formula:

RN

Where:

Es= SO, emission limit, in ng/J or Ib/MMBtu heat input;
Ka= 520 ng/J (or 1.2 Ib/MMBtu);

Ky= 340 ng/J (or 0.80 Ib/MMBtu);

H,= Heat input from the combustion of coal, in J (MMBtu); and

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-80



Hy= Heat input from the combustion of oil, in J] (MMBtu).

For facilities complying with the percent reduction standard, only the heat input supplied to the
affected facility from the combustion of coal and oil is counted in this paragraph. No credit is
provided for the heat input to the affected facility from the combustion of natural gas, wood,
municipal-type solid waste, or other fuels or heat derived from exhaust gases from other sources,
such as gas turbines, internal combustion engines, kilns, etc.

(b) On and after the date on which the performance test is completed or required to be completed
under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that
commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification on or before February 28, 2005, that
combusts coal refuse alone in a fluidized bed combustion steam generating unit shall cause to be
discharged into the atmosphere any gases that contain SO, in excess of 87 ng/J (0.20 1b/MMBtu)
or 20 percent (0.20) of the potential SO, emission rate (80 percent reduction) and 520 ng/J (1.2
1b/MMBtu) heat input. If coal or oil is fired with coal refuse, the affected facility is subject to
paragraph (a) or (d) of this section, as applicable. For facilities complying with the percent
reduction standard, only the heat input supplied to the affected facility from the combustion of
coal and oil is counted in this paragraph. No credit is provided for the heat input to the affected
facility from the combustion of natural gas, wood, municipal-type solid waste, or other fuels or
heat derived from exhaust gases from other sources, such as gas turbines, internal combustion
engines, kilns, etc.

(c) On and after the date on which the performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that
combusts coal or oil, either alone or in combination with any other fuel, and that uses an
emerging technology for the control of SO, emissions, shall cause to be discharged into the
atmosphere any gases that contain SO, in excess of 50 percent of the potential SO, emission rate

(50 percent reduction) and that contain SO, in excess of the emission limit determined according
to the following formula:

E = (Kch +K‘de)
‘ (Ha +Hd)

Where:

Es= SO, emission limit, in ng/J or Ib/MM Btu heat input;

K= 260 ng/J (or 0.60 Ib/MMBtu);

Kq4= 170 ng/J (or 0.40 Ib/MMBtu);

H.= Heat input from the combustion of coal, in ] (MMBtu); and

Hy= Heat input from the combustion of oil, in J (MMBtu).

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, D¢ C-81



For facilities complying with the percent reduction standard, only the heat input supplied to the
affected facility from the combustion of coal and oil is counted in this paragraph. No credit is
provided for the heat input to the affected facility from the combustion of natural gas, wood,
municipal-type solid waste, or other fuels, or from the heat input derived from exhaust gases
from other sources, such as gas turbines, internal combustion engines, kilns, etc.

(d) On and after the date on which the performance test is completed or required to be completed
under §60.8, whichever comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that commenced
construction, reconstruction, or modification on or before February 28, 2005, and listed in
paragraphs (d)(1), (2), (3), or (4) of this section shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere
any gases that contain SO, in excess of 520 ng/J (1.2 ]1b/MMBtu) heat input if the affected
facility combusts coal, or 215 ng/J (0.5 Ib/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility combusts oil
other than very low sulfur oil. Percent reduction requirements are not applicable to affected
facilities under paragraphs (d)(1), (2), (3) or (4) of this section. For facilities complying with
paragraphs (d)(1), (2), or (3) of this section, only the heat input supplied to the affected facility
from the combustion of coal and oil is counted in this paragraph. No credit is provided for the
heat input to the affected facility from the combustion of natural gas, wood, municipal-type solid
waste, or other fuels or heat derived from exhaust gases from other sources, such as gas turbines,
internal combustion engines, kilns, etc.

(1) Affected facilities that have an annual capacity factor for coal and oil of 30 percent (0.30) or
less and are subject to a federally enforceable permit limiting the operation of the affected
facility to an annual capacity factor for coal and oil of 30 percent (0.30) or less;

(2) Affected facilities located in a noncontinental area; or

(3) Affected facilities combusting coal or oil, alone or in combination with any fuel, in a duct
burner as part of a combined cycle system where 30 percent (0.30) or less of the heat entering the
steam generating unit is from combustion of coal and oil in the duct burner and 70 percent (0.70)
or more of the heat entering the steam generating unit is from the exhaust gases entering the duct
burner; or

(4) The affected facility burns coke oven gas alone or in combination with natural gas or very
low sulfur distillate oil.

(e) Except as provided in paragraph (f) of this section, compliance with the emission limits, fuel
oil sulfur limits, and/or percent reduction requirements under this section are determined on a 30-
day rolling average basis.

(f) Except as provided in paragraph (j)(2) of this section, compliance with the emission limits or
fuel oil sulfur limits under this section is determined on a 24-hour average basis for affected
facilities that (1) have a federally enforceable permit limiting the annual capacity factor for oil to
10 percent or less, (2) combust only very low sulfur oil, and (3) do not combust any other fuel.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-82



(g) Except as provided in paragraph (i) of this section and §60.45b(a), the SO, emission limits
and percent reduction requirements under this section apply at all times, including periods of
startup, shutdown, and malfunction.

(h) Reductions in the potential SO, emission rate through fuel pretreatment are not credited
toward the percent reduction requirement under paragraph (c) of this section unless:

(1) Fuel pretreatment results in a 50 percent or greater reduction in potential SO, emissions and

(2) Emissions from the pretreated fuel (without combustion or post-combustion SO, control) are
equal to or less than the emission limits specified in paragraph (c) of this section.

(i) An affected facility subject to paragraph (a), (b), or (c) of this section may combust very low
sulfur oil or natural gas when the SO, control system is not being operated because of
malfunction or maintenance of the SO; control system.

(j) Percent reduction requirements are not applicable to affected facilities combusting only very
low sulfur oil. The owner or operator of an affected facility combusting very low sulfur oil shall
demonstrate that the oil meets the definition of very low sulfur oil by: (1) Following the
performance testing procedures as described in §60.45b(c) or §60.45b(d), and following the
monitoring procedures as described in §60.47b(a) or §60.47b(b) to determine SO, emission rate
or fuel oil sulfur content; or (2) maintaining fuel records as described in §60.49b(r).

(k)(1) Except as provided in paragraphs (k)(2), (k)(3), and (k)(4) of this section, on and after the
date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be completed under
§60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that commences
construction, reconstruction, or modification after February 28, 2005, and that combusts coal, oil,
natural gas, a mixture of these fuels, or a mixture of these fuels with any other fuels shall cause
to be discharged into the atmosphere any gases that contain SO, in excess of 87 ng/J (0.20
Ib/MMBtu) heat input or 8 percent (0.08) of the potential SO; emission rate (92 percent
reduction) and 520 ng/J (1.2 Ib/MMBtu) heat input. For facilities complying with the percent
reduction standard and paragraph (k)(3) of this section, only the heat input supplied to the
affected facility from the combustion of coal and oil is counted in paragraph (k) of this section.
No credit is provided for the heat input to the affected facility from the combustion of natural
gas, wood, municipal-type solid waste, or other fuels or heat derived from exhaust gases from
other sources, such as gas turbines, internal combustion engines, kilns, etc.

(2) Units firing only very low sulfur oil, gaseous fuel, a mixture of these fuels, or a mixture of
these fuels with any other fuels with a potential SO, emission rate of 140 ng/J (0.32 Ib/MMBtu)
heat input or less are exempt from the SO, emissions limit in paragraph (k)(1) of this section.

(3) Units that are located in a noncontinental area and that combust coal, oil, or natural gas shall
not discharge any gases that contain SO, in excess of 520 ng/J (1.2 I1b/MMBtu) heat input if the
affected facility combusts coal, or 215 ng/J (0.50 1b/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility
combusts oil or natural gas.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-83



[72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5084, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.43b Standard for particulate matter (PM).

(a) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that
commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification on or before February 28, 2005, that
combusts coal or combusts mixtures of coal with other fuels, shall cause to be discharged into
the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain PM in excess of the following
emission limits:

(1) 22 ng/J (0.051 Ib/MMBtu) heat input, (i) If the affected facility combusts only coal, or

(ii) If the affected facility combusts coal and other fuels and has an annual capacity factor for the
other fuels of 10 percent (0.10) or less.

(2) 43 ng/J (0.10 Ib/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility combusts coal and other fuels and

has an annual capacity factor for the other fuels greater than 10 percent (0.10) and is subject to a

federally enforceable requirement limiting operation of the affected facility to an annual capacity
factor greater than 10 percent (0.10) for fuels other than coal.

(3) 86 ng/J (0.20 1b/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility combusts coal or coal and other
fuels and

(i) Has an annual capacity factor for coal or coal and other fuels of 30 percent (0.30) or less,
(ii) Has a maximum heat input capacity of 73 MW (250 MMBtu/hr) or less,

(iii) Has a federally enforceable requirement limiting operation of the affected facility to an
annual capacity factor of 30 percent (0.30) or less for coal or coal and other solid fuels, and

(iv) Construction of the affected facility commenced after June 19, 1984, and before November
25, 1986.

(4) An affected facility burning coke oven gas alone or in combination with other fuels not
subject to a PM standard under §60.43b and not using a post-combustion technology (except a
wet scrubber) for reducing PM or SO, emissions is not subject to the PM limits under
§60.43b(a).

(b) On and after the date on which the performance test is completed or required to be completed
under §60.8, whichever comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that commenced
construction, reconstruction, or modification on or before February 28, 2005, and that combusts
oil (or mixtures of oil with other fuels) and uses a conventional or emerging technology to reduce
SO, emissions shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any
gases that contain PM in excess of 43 ng/J (0.10 Ib/MMBtu) heat input.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-84



(c) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that
commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification on or before February 28, 2005, and
that combusts wood, or wood with other fuels, except coal, shall cause to be discharged from that
affected facility any gases that contain PM in excess of the following emission limits:

(1) 43 ng/J (0.10 Ib/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility has an annual capacity factor
greater than 30 percent (0.30) for wood.

(2) 86 ng/J (0.20 1b/MMBtu) heat input if (i) The affected facility has an annual capacity factor
of 30 percent (0.30) or less for wood;

(ii) Is subject to a federally enforceable requirement limiting operation of the affected facility to
an annual capacity factor of 30 percent (0.30) or less for wood; and

(ii1) Has a maximum heat input capacity of 73 MW (250 MMBtu/hr) or less.

(d) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be

completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that combusts municipal-type solid waste or mixtures of municipal-type solid waste with other

fuels, shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that
contain PM in excess of the following emission limits:

(1) 43 ng/J (0.10 Ib/MMBtu) heat input;
(1) If the affected facility combusts only municipal-type solid waste; or

(i1) If the affected facility combusts municipal-type solid waste and other fuels and has an annual
capacity factor for the other fuels of 10 percent (0.10) or less.

(2) 86 ng/J (0.20 Ib/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility combusts municipal-type solid
waste or municipal-type solid waste and other fuels; and

(i) Has an annual capacity factor for municipal-type solid waste and other fuels of 30 percent
(0.30) or less;

(i) Has a maximum heat input capacity of 73 MW (250 MMBtu/hr) or less;
(iii) Has a federally enforceable requirement limiting operation of the affected facility to an
annual capacity factor of 30 percent (0.30) or less for municipal-type solid waste, or municipal-

type solid waste and other fuels; and

(iv) Construction of the affected facility commenced after June 19, 1984, but on or before
November 25, 1986.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-85



(e) For the purposes of this section, the annual capacity factor is determined by dividing the
actual heat input to the steam generating unit during the calendar year from the combustion of
coal, wood, or municipal-type solid waste, and other fuels, as applicable, by the potential heat
input to the steam generating unit if the steam generating unit had been operated for 8,760 hours
at the maximum heat input capacity.

(f) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that can combust coal, oil, wood, or mixtures of these fuels with any other fuels shall cause to be
discharged into the atmosphere any gases that exhibit greater than 20 percent opacity (6-minute
average), except for one 6-minute period per hour of not more than 27 percent opacity. Owners
and operators of an affected facility that elect to install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a
continuous emissions monitoring system (CEMS) for measuring PM emissions according to the
requirements of this subpart and are subject to a federally enforceable PM limit of 0.030
1b/MMBtu or less are exempt from the opacity standard specified in this paragraph.

(g) The PM and opacity standards apply at all times, except during periods of startup, shutdown,
or malfunction.

(h)(1) Except as provided in paragraphs (h)(2), (h)(3), (h)(4), (h)(5), and (h)(6) of this section, on
and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification after February 28, 2005, and that
combusts coal, oil, wood, a mixture of these fuels, or a mixture of these fuels with any other
fuels shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that
contain PM in excess of 13 ng/J (0.030 Ib/MMBtu) heat input,

(2) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (h)(1) of this section, the owner or
operator of an affected facility for which modification commenced after February 28, 2005, may
elect to meet the requirements of this paragraph. On and after the date on which the initial
performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, no owner or operator of
an affected facility that commences modification after February 28, 2005, shall cause to be
discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain PM in excess of
both:

(1) 22 ng/J (0.051 Ib/MMBtu) heat input derived from the combustion of coal, oil, wood, a
mixture of these fuels, or a mixture of these fuels with any other fuels; and

(ii) 0.2 percent of the combustion concentration (99.8 percent reduction) when combusting coal,
oil, wood, a mixture of these fuels, or a mixture of these fuels with any other fuels.

(3) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that commences modification after February 28, 2005, and that combusts over 30 percent wood
(by heat input) on an annual basis and has a maximum heat input capacity of 73 MW (250

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-86



MMBtu/h) or less shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any
gases that contain PM in excess of 43 ng/J (0.10 Ib/MMBtu) heat input.

(4) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be

completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that commences modification after February 28, 2005, and that combusts over 30 percent wood
(by heat input) on an annual basis and has a maximum heat input capacity greater than 73 MW

(250 MMBtu/h) shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any
gases that contain PM in excess of 37 ng/J (0.085 Ib/MMBtu) heat input.

(5) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, an owner or operator of an affected facility
not located in a noncontinental area that commences construction, reconstruction, or
modification after February 28, 2005, and that combusts only oil that contains no more than 0.30
weight percent sulfur, coke oven gas, a mixture of these fuels, or either fuel (or a mixture of
these fuels) in combination with other fuels not subject to a PM standard in §60.43b and not
using a post-combustion technology (except a wet scrubber) to reduce SO, or PM emissions is
not subject to the PM limits in (h)(1) of this section.

(6) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, an owner or operator of an affected facility
located in a noncontinental area that commences construction, reconstruction, or modification
after February 28, 2005, and that combusts only oil that contains no more than 0.5 weight
percent sulfur, coke oven gas, a mixture of these fuels, or either fuel (or a mixture of these fuels)
in combination with other fuels not subject to a PM standard in §60.43b and not using a post-
combustion technology (except a wet scrubber) to reduce SO, or PM emissions is not subject to
the PM limits in (h)(1) of this section.

[72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5084, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.44b Standard for nitrogen oxides (NOX).

(a) Except as provided under paragraphs (k) and (1) of this section, on and after the date on which
the initial performance test is completed or is required to be completed under §60.8, whichever
date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that is subject to the provisions of
this section and that combusts only coal, oil, or natural gas shall cause to be discharged into the
atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain NOx (expressed as NO,) in excess
of the following emission limits:

Nitrogen oxide emission limits
(expressed as NO,) heat input

ng/J Ib/MMBTu

Fuel/steam generating unit type

(1) Natural gas and distillate oil, except (4):

(i) Low heat release rate 43 0.10

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-87




(ii) High heat release rate 86 0.20
(2) Residual oil:

(i) Low heat release rate 130 0.30

(ii) High heat release rate 170 0.40
(3) Coal:

(i) Mass-feed stoker 210 0.50

(i1) Spreader stoker and fluidized bed combustion 260 0.60

(ii1) Pulverized coal 300 0.70

(iv) Lignite, except (v) 260 0.60

(v) Lignite mined in North Dakota, South Dakota, or 340 0.80

Montana and combusted in a slag tap furnace

(vi) Coal-derived synthetic fuels 210 0.50
(4) Duct burner used in a combined cycle system:

(i) Natural gas and distillate oil 86 0.20

(ii) Residual oil 170 0.40

(b) Except as provided under paragraphs (k) and (1) of this section, on and after the date on
which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be completed under §60.8,
whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that simultaneously

combusts mixtures of coal, oil, or natural gas shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere
from that affected facility any gases that contain NOx in excess of a limit determined by the use

of the following formula:

(EL H, )+ (EL,H, )+ (EL.H,)

Ea® (H,+H,+HJ

k-

Where:

E.= NOyx emission limit (expressed as NO,), ng/J (Ib/MMBtu);

ELg,= Appropriate emission limit from paragraph (a)(1) for combustion of natural gas or

distillate oil, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu);

Hg= Heat input from combustion of natural gas or distillate oil, J] (MMBtu);

EL,,= Appropriate emission limit from paragraph (a)(2) for combustion of residual oil, ng/J

(I1b/MMBtu);

H;o= Heat input from combustion of residual oil, ] (MMBtu);

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc

C-88



EL.= Appropriate emission limit from paragraph (a)(3) for combustion of coal, ng/J
(It/MMBtu); and

H= Heat input from combustion of coal, ] (MMBtu).

(c) Except as provided under paragraph (1) of this section, on and after the date on which the
initial performance test is completed or is required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date
comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that simultaneously combusts coal or oil,
or a mixture of these fuels with natural gas, and wood, municipal-type solid waste, or any other
fuel shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere any gases that contain NOx in excess of the
emission limit for the coal or oil, or mixtures of these fuels with natural gas combusted in the
affected facility, as determined pursuant to paragraph (a) or (b) of this section, unless the
affected facility has an annual capacity factor for coal or oil, or mixture of these fuels with
natural gas of 10 percent (0.10) or less and is subject to a federally enforceable requirement that
limits operation of the affected facility to an annual capacity factor of 10 percent (0.10) or less
for coal, oil, or a mixture of these fuels with natural gas.

(d) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that simultaneously combusts natural gas with wood, municipal-type solid waste, or other solid
fuel, except coal, shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any
gases that contain NOx in excess of 130 ng/J (0.30 Ib/MMBtu) heat input unless the affected
facility has an annual capacity factor for natural gas of 10 percent (0.10) or less and is subject to
a federally enforceable requirement that limits operation of the affected facility to an annual
capacity factor of 10 percent (0.10) or less for natural gas.

(e) Except as provided under paragraph (1) of this section, on and after the date on which the
initial performance test is completed or is required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date
comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that simultaneously combusts coal, oil,
or natural gas with byproduct/waste shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere any gases
that contain NOx in excess of the emission limit determined by the following formula unless the
affected facility has an annual capacity factor for coal, oil, and natural gas of 10 percent (0.10) or
less and is subject to a federally enforceable requirement that limits operation of the affected
facility to an annual capacity factor of 10 percent (0.10) or less:

_(ELGH,)+(ELH,)+(EL.H,)
) (H,+H,*H,)

n

Where:
E.= NOx emission limit (expressed as NOy), ng/J (Ib/MMBtu);

EL,= Appropriate emission limit from paragraph (a)(1) for combustion of natural gas or
distillate oil, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu);

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-89



Hg.= Heat input from combustion of natural gas, distillate oil and gaseous byproduct/waste, J
(MMBtu);

EL,,= Appropriate emission limit from paragraph (a)(2) for combustion of residual oil and/or
byproduct/waste, ng/J (1b/MMBtu);

H;,= Heat input from combustion of residual oil, J] (MMBtu);

EL.= Appropriate emission limit from paragraph (a)(3) for combustion of coal, ng/J
(Ib/MMBtu); and

H.= Heat input from combustion of coal, ] (MMBtu).

(f) Any owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts byproduct/waste with either
natural gas or oil may petition the Administrator within 180 days of the initial startup of the
affected facility to establish a NOx emission limit that shall apply specifically to that affected
facility when the byproduct/waste is combusted. The petition shall include sufficient and
appropriate data, as determined by the Administrator, such as NOx emissions from the affected
facility, waste composition (including nitrogen content), and combustion conditions to allow the
Administrator to confirm that the affected facility is unable to comply with the emission limits in
paragraph (e) of this section and to determine the appropriate emission limit for the affected
facility.

(1) Any owner or operator of an affected facility petitioning for a facility-specific NOx emission
limit under this section shall:

(i) Demonstrate compliance with the emission limits for natural gas and distillate oil in paragraph
(a)(1) of this section or for residual oil in paragraph (a)(2) or (1)(1) of this section, as appropriate,
by conducting a 30-day performance test as provided in §60.46b(e). During the performance test
only natural gas, distillate oil, or residual oil shall be combusted in the affected facility; and

(i1) Demonstrate that the affected facility is unable to comply with the emission limits for natural
gas and distillate oil in paragraph (a)(1) of this section or for residual oil in paragraph (a)(2) or
(D(1) of this section, as appropriate, when gaseous or liquid byproduct/waste is combusted in the
affected facility under the same conditions and using the same technological system of emission
reduction applied when demonstrating compliance under paragraph (f)(1)(i) of this section.

(2) The NOyx emission limits for natural gas or distillate oil in paragraph (a)(1) of this section or
for residual oil in paragraph (a)(2) or (1)(1) of this section, as appropriate, shall be applicable to
the affected facility until and unless the petition is approved by the Administrator. If the petition
is approved by the Administrator, a facility-specific NOx emission limit will be established at the
NOy emission level achievable when the affected facility is combusting oil or natural gas and
byproduct/waste in a manner that the Administrator determines to be consistent with minimizing
NOx emissions. In lieu of amending this subpart, a letter will be sent to the facility describing
the facility-specific NOx limit. The facility shall use the compliance procedures detailed in the
letter and make the letter available to the public. If the Administrator determines it is

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-90



appropriate, the conditions and requirements of the letter can be reviewed and changed at any
point.

(g) Any owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts hazardous waste (as defined by
40 CFR part 261 or 40 CFR part 761) with natural gas or oil may petition the Administrator
within 180 days of the initial startup of the affected facility for a waiver from compliance with
the NOyx emission limit that applies specifically to that affected facility. The petition must
include sufficient and appropriate data, as determined by the Administrator, on NOx emissions
from the affected facility, waste destruction efficiencies, waste composition (including nitrogen
content), the quantity of specific wastes to be combusted and combustion conditions to allow the
Administrator to determine if the affected facility is able to comply with the NOx emission limits
required by this section. The owner or operator of the affected facility shall demonstrate that
when hazardous waste is combusted in the affected facility, thermal destruction efficiency
requirements for hazardous waste specified in an applicable federally enforceable requirement
preclude compliance with the NOx emission limits of this section. The NOx emission limits for
natural gas or distillate oil in paragraph (a)(1) of this section or for residual oil in paragraph
(a)(2) or (1)(1) of this section, as appropriate, are applicable to the affected facility until and
unless the petition is approved by the Administrator. (See 40 CFR 761.70 for regulations
applicable to the incineration of materials containing polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB's).) In lieu
of amending this subpart, a letter will be sent to the facility describing the facility-specific NOx
limit. The facility shall use the compliance procedures detailed in the letter and make the letter
available to the public. If the Administrator determines it is appropriate, the conditions and
requirements of the letter can be reviewed and changed at any point.

(h) For purposes of paragraph (i) of this section, the NOx standards under this section apply at all
times including periods of startup, shutdown, or malfunction.

(i) Except as provided under paragraph (j) of this section, compliance with the emission limits
under this section is determined on a 30-day rolling average basis.

(j) Compliance with the emission limits under this section is determined on a 24-hour average
basis for the initial performance test and on a 3-hour average basis for subsequent performance
tests for any affected facilities that:

(1) Combust, alone or in combination, only natural gas, distillate oil, or residual oil with a
nitrogen content of 0.30 weight percent or less;

(2) Have a combined annual capacity factor of 10 percent or less for natural gas, distillate oil,
and residual oil with a nitrogen content of 0.30 weight percent or less; and

(3) Are subject to a federally enforceable requirement limiting operation of the affected facility
to the firing of natural gas, distillate oil, and/or residual oil with a nitrogen content of 0.30 weight
percent or less and limiting operation of the affected facility to a combined annual capacity
factor of 10 percent or less for natural gas, distillate oil, and residual oil with a nitrogen content
of 0.30 weight percent or less.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-91



(k) Affected facilities that meet the criteria described in paragraphs (j)(1), (2), and (3) of this
section, and that have a heat input capacity of 73 MW (250 MMBtwhr) or less, are not subject to
the NOyx emission limits under this section.

(1) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that commenced construction or reconstruction after July 9, 1997, shall cause to be discharged
into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain NOy (expressed as NO;) in
excess of the following limits:

(1) If the affected facility combusts coal, oil, natural gas, a mixture of these fuels, or a mixture of
these fuels with any other fuels: A limit of 86 ng/J (0.20 Ib/MMBtu) heat input unless the
affected facility has an annual capacity factor for coal, oil, and natural gas of 10 percent (0.10) or
less and is subject to a federally enforceable requirement that limits operation of the facility to an
annual capacity factor of 10 percent (0.10) or less for coal, oil, and natural gas; or

(2) If the affected facility has a low heat release rate and combusts natural gas or distillate oil in
excess of 30 percent of the heat input on a 30-day rolling average from the combustion of all
fuels, a limit determined by use of the following formula:

_(0.10xH ) +(020%H,)
) (Ho+Hy)

Where:

En,= NOx emission limit, (Ibt/MMBtu);

Hgo= 30-day heat input from combustion of natural gas or distillate oil; and

H,= 30-day heat input from combustion of any other fuel.

(3) After February 27, 2006, units where more than 10 percent of total annual output is electrical
or mechanical may comply with an optional limit of 270 ng/J (2.1 Ib/MWh) gross energy output,
based on a 30-day rolling average. Units complying with this output-based limit must
demonstrate compliance according to the procedures of §60.48Da(i) of subpart Da of this part,
and must monitor emissions according to §60.49Da(c), (k), through (n) of subpart Da of this part.
[72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5086, Jan. 28, 2009]

§ 60.45b Compliance and performance test methods and procedures for sulfur dioxide.
(a) The SO, emission standards in §60.42b apply at all times. Facilities burning coke oven gas

alone or in combination with any other gaseous fuels or distillate oil are allowed to exceed the
limit 30 operating days per calendar year for SO, control system maintenance.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-92



(b) In conducting the performance tests required under §60.8, the owner or operator shall use the
methods and procedures in appendix A (including fuel certification and sampling) of this part or
the methods and procedures as specified in this section, except as provided in §60.8(b). Section
60.8(f) does not apply to this section. The 30-day notice required in §60.8(d) applies only to the
initial performance test unless otherwise specified by the Administrator.

(c) The owner or operator of an affected facility shall conduct performance tests to determine
compliance with the percent of potential SO, emission rate (% P;) and the SO, emission rate (Es)
pursuant to §60.42b following the procedures listed below, except as provided under paragraph
(d) and (k) of this section.

(1) The initial performance test shall be conducted over 30 consecutive operating days of the
steam generating unit. Compliance with the SO; standards shall be determined using a 30-day
average. The first operating day included in the initial performance test shall be scheduled
within 30 days after achieving the maximum production rate at which the affected facility will be
operated, but not later than 180 days after initial startup of the facility.

(2) If only coal, only oil, or a mixture of coal and oil is combusted, the following procedures are
used:

(1) The procedures in Method 19 of appendix A—7 of this part are used to determine the hourly
SO, emission rate (Ejp,) and the 30-day average emission rate (E,,). The hourly averages used to
compute the 30-day averages are obtained from the CEMS of §60.47b(a) or (b).

(i) The percent of potential SO, emission rate (%P;) emitted to the atmosphere is computed
using the following formula:

%R
%P, =100]1 - -t |[1 - %R«
100 100

Where:

%P = Potential SO, emission rate, percent;

%Rg= SO, removal efficiency of the control device as determined by Method 19 of appendix A
of this part, in percent; and

%R¢= SO, removal efficiency of fuel pretreatment as determined by Method 19 of appendix A of
this part, in percent.

(3) If coal or oil is combusted with other fuels, the same procedures required in paragraph (c)(2)
of this section are used, except as provided in the following:

(i) An adjusted hourly SO, emission rate (Ej,°) is used in Equation 19-19 of Method 19 of

appendix A of this part to compute an adjusted 30-day average emission rate (E,,’). The Eho® is
computed using the following formula:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-93



= Eh—Ew(l ‘Xl)
Xl

Ey
Where:

Eno_ = Adjusted hourly SO, emission rate, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu);

Eno= Hourly SO, emission rate, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu);

Ew= SO, concentration in fuels other than coal and oil combusted in the affected facility, as
determined by the fuel sampling and analysis procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this
part, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu). The value E,, for each fuel lot is used for each hourly average during the

time that the lot is being combusted; and

Xy= Fraction of total heat input from fuel combustion derived from coal, oil, or coal and oil, as
determined by applicable procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part.

(ii) To compute the percent of potential SO, emission rate (%P;), an adjusted %R4(%R,°) is

computed from the adjusted E,,° from paragraph (b)(3)(i) of this section and an adjusted average
SO, inlet rate (E4°) using the following formula:

L}
%R"=IUU [1 0- E"]

To compute E,°, an adjusted hourly SO, inlet rate (Ep;°) is used. The Ey;° is computed using the
following formula:

_Eu-E (1-X,)
xl

E%
Where:

Eni® = Adjusted hourly SO, inlet rate, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu); and

En= Hourly SO; inlet rate, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu).

(4) The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to paragraph (c)(3) of this section does
not have to measure parameters E,, or Xy if the owner or operator elects to assume that Xy = 1.0.
Owners or operators of affected facilities who assume Xy = 1.0 shall:

(i) Determine %P, following the procedures in paragraph (c)(2) of this section; and

(ii) Sulfur dioxide emissions (E;) are considered to be in compliance with SO, emission limits
under §60.42b.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-94



(5) The owner or operator of an affected facility that qualifies under the provisions of §60.42b(d)
does not have to measure parameters E, or X in paragraph (c)(3) of this section if the owner or
operator of the affected facility elects to measure SO, emission rates of the coal or oil following
the fuel sampling and analysis procedures in Method 19 of appendix A—7 of this part.

(d) Except as provided in paragraph (j) of this section, the owner or operator of an affected
facility that combusts only very low sulfur oil, natural gas, or a mixture of these fuels, has an
annual capacity factor for oil of 10 percent (0.10) or less, and is subject to a federally enforceable
requirement limiting operation of the affected facility to an annual capacity factor for oil of 10
percent (0.10) or less shall:

(1) Conduct the initial performance test over 24 consecutive steam generating unit operating
hours at full load;

(2) Determine compliance with the standards after the initial performance test based on the
arithmetic average of the hourly emissions data during each steam generating unit operating day
if a CEMS is used, or based on a daily average if Method 6B of appendix A of this part or fuel
sampling and analysis procedures under Method 19 of appendix A of this part are used.

(e) The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to §60.42b(d)(1) shall demonstrate the
maximum design capacity of the steam generating unit by operating the facility at maximum
capacity for 24 hours. This demonstration will be made during the initial performance test and a
subsequent demonstration may be requested at any other time. If the 24-hour average firing rate
for the affected facility is less than the maximum design capacity provided by the manufacturer
of the affected facility, the 24-hour average firing rate shall be used to determine the capacity
utilization rate for the affected facility, otherwise the maximum design capacity provided by the
manufacturer is used.

(f) For the initial performance test required under §60.8, compliance with the SO, emission limits
and percent reduction requirements under §60.42b is based on the average emission rates and the
average percent reduction for SO, for the first 30 consecutive steam generating unit operating
days, except as provided under paragraph (d) of this section. The initial performance test is the
only test for which at least 30 days prior notice is required unless otherwise specified by the
Administrator. The initial performance test is to be scheduled so that the first steam generating
unit operating day of the 30 successive steam generating unit operating days is completed within
30 days after achieving the maximum production rate at which the affected facility will be
operated, but not later than 180 days after initial startup of the facility. The boiler load during
the 30-day period does not have to be the maximum design load, but must be representative of
future operating conditions and include at least one 24-hour period at full load.

(g) After the initial performance test required under §60.8, compliance with the SO; emission
limits and percent reduction requirements under §60.42b is based on the average emission rates
and the average percent reduction for SO, for 30 successive steam generating unit operating
days, except as provided under paragraph (d). A separate performance test is completed at the
end of each steam generating unit operating day after the initial performance test, and a new 30-

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-95



day average emission rate and percent reduction for SO, are calculated to show compliance with
the standard.

(h) Except as provided under paragraph (i) of this section, the owner or operator of an affected
facility shall use all valid SO, emissions data in calculating %P and Ep, under paragraph (c), of
this section whether or not the minimum emissions data requirements under §60.46b are
achieved. All valid emissions data, including valid SO, emission data collected during periods of
startup, shutdown and malfunction, shall be used in calculating %Ps and Ejp, pursuant to
paragraph (c) of this section.

(i) During periods of malfunction or maintenance of the SO, control systems when oil is
combusted as provided under §60.42b(i), emission data are not used to calculate %P; or Es under
§60.42b(a), (b) or (c), however, the emissions data are used to determine compliance with the
emission limit under §60.42b(i).

() The owner or operator of an affected facility that only combusts very low sulfur oil, natural
gas, or a mixture of these fuels with any other fuels not subject to an SO, standard is not subject
to the compliance and performance testing requirements of this section if the owner or operator
obtains fuel receipts as described in §60.49b(r).

(k) The owner or operator of an affected facility seeking to demonstrate compliance in
§§60.42b(d)(4), 60.42b(j), 60.42b(k)(2), and 60.42b(k)(3) (when not burning coal) shall follow
the applicable procedures in §60.49b(r).

[72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5086, Jan. 28, 2009]

§ 60.46b Compliance and performance test methods and procedures for particulate
matter and nitrogen oxides.

(a) The PM emission standards and opacity limits under §60.43b apply at all times except during
periods of startup, shutdown, or malfunction. The NOx emission standards under §60.44b apply
at all times.

(b) Compliance with the PM emission standards under §60.43b shall be determined through
performance testing as described in paragraph (d) of this section, except as provided in paragraph
(i) of this section.

(c) Compliance with the NOx emission standards under §60.44b shall be determined through
performance testing under paragraph (e) or (f), or under paragraphs (g) and (h) of this section, as
applicable.

(d) To determine compliance with the PM emission limits and opacity limits under §60.43b, the
owner or operator of an affected facility shall conduct an initial performance test as required
under §60.8, and shall conduct subsequent performance tests as requested by the Administrator,
using the following procedures and reference methods:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-96



(1) Method 3A or 3B of appendix A-2 of this part is used for gas analysis when applying
Method 5 of appendix A3 of this part or Method 17 of appendix A—6 of this part.

(2) Method 5, 5B, or 17 of appendix A of this part shall be used to measure the concentration of
PM as follows:

(i) Method 5 of appendix A of this part shall be used at affected facilities without wet flue gas
desulfurization (FGD) systems; and

(ii) Method 17 of appendix A—6 of this part may be used at facilities with or without wet
scrubber systems provided the stack gas temperature does not exceed a temperature of 160 °C
(320 °F). The procedures of sections 8.1 and 11.1 of Method 5B of appendix A-3 of this part
may be used in Method 17 of appendix A—6 of this part only if it is used after a wet FGD system.
Do not use Method 17 of appendix A—6 of this part after wet FGD systems if the effluent is
saturated or laden with water droplets.

(iii) Method 5B of appendix A of this part is to be used only after wet FGD systems.

(3) Method 1 of appendix A of this part is used to select the sampling site and the number of
traverse sampling points. The sampling time for each run is at least 120 minutes and the
minimum sampling volume is 1.7 dscm (60 dscf) except that smaller sampling times or volumes

may be approved by the Administrator when necessitated by process variables or other factors.

(4) For Method 5 of appendix A of this part, the temperature of the sample gas in the probe and
filter holder is monitored and is maintained at 160+14 °C (320£25 °F).

(5) For determination of PM emissions, the oxygen (O;) or CO, sample is obtained
simultaneously with each run of Method 5, 5B, or 17 of appendix A of this part by traversing the
duct at the same sampling location.

(6) For each run using Method 5, 5B, or 17 of appendix A of this part, the emission rate
expressed in ng/J heat input is determined using:

(1) The O; or CO, measurements and PM measurements obtained under this section;
(ii) The dry basis F factor; and

(iii) The dry basis emission rate calculation procedure contained in Method 19 of appendix A of
this part.

(7) Method 9 of appendix A of this part is used for determining the opacity of stack emissions.
(e) To determine compliance with the emission limits for NOx required under §60.44b, the owner

or operator of an affected facility shall conduct the performance test as required under §60.8
using the continuous system for monitoring NOx under §60.48(b).

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-97



(1) For the initial compliance test, NOx from the steam generating unit are monitored for 30
successive steam generating unit operating days and the 30-day average emission rate is used to
determine compliance with the NOy emission standards under §60.44b. The 30-day average
emission rate is calculated as the average of all hourly emissions data recorded by the monitoring
system during the 30-day test period.

(2) Following the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed in §60.8, whichever date comes first, the owner or operator of an affected facility
which combusts coal (except as specified under §60.46b(e)(4)) or which combusts residual oil
having a nitrogen content greater than 0.30 weight percent shall determine compliance with the
NOx emission standards in §60.44b on a continuous basis through the use of a 30-day rolling
average emission rate. A new 30-day rolling average emission rate is calculated for each steam
generating unit operating day as the average of all of the hourly NOx emission data for the
preceding 30 steam generating unit operating days.

(3) Following the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, the owner or operator of an affected facility
that has a heat input capacity greater than 73 MW (250 MMBtu/hr) and that combusts natural
gas, distillate oil, or residual oil having a nitrogen content of 0.30 weight percent or less shall
determine compliance with the NOx standards under §60.44b on a continuous basis through the
use of a 30-day rolling average emission rate. A new 30-day rolling average emission rate is
calculated each steam generating unit operating day as the average of all of the hourly NOx
emission data for the preceding 30 steam generating unit operating days.

(4) Following the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, the owner or operator of an affected facility
that has a heat input capacity of 73 MW (250 MMBtu/hr) or less and that combusts natural gas,
distillate oil, gasified coal, or residual oil having a nitrogen content of 0.30 weight percent or less
shall upon request determine compliance with the NOy standards in §60.44b through the use of a
30-day performance test. During periods when performance tests are not requested, NOx
emissions data collected pursuant to §60.48b(g)(1) or §60.48b(g)(2) are used to calculate a 30-
day rolling average emission rate on a daily basis and used to prepare excess emission reports,
but will not be used to determine compliance with the NOx emission standards. A new 30-day
rolling average emission rate is calculated each steam generating unit operating day as the
average of all of the hourly NOx emission data for the preceding 30 steam generating unit
operating days.

(5) If the owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts residual oil does not sample and
analyze the residual oil for nitrogen content, as specified in §60.49b(e), the requirements of
§60.48b(g)(1) apply and the provisions of §60.48b(g)(2) are inapplicable.

(f) To determine compliance with the emissions limits for NOx required by §60.44b(a)(4) or

§60.44b(]) for duct burners used in combined cycle systems, either of the procedures described in
paragraph (f)(1) or (2) of this section may be used:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, D¢ C-98



(1) The owner or operator of an affected facility shall conduct the performance test required
under §60.8 as follows:

(1) The emissions rate (E) of NOx shall be computed using Equation 1 in this section:
H
E=E,+ [H_:] (E,-E,) Eal)

Where:
E = Emissions rate of NOy from the duct burner, ng/J (lb/MMBtu) heat input;

Eq= Combined effluent emissions rate, in ng/J (1b/MMBtu) heat input using appropriate F factor
as described in Method 19 of appendix A of this part;

Hg= Heat input rate to the combustion turbine, in J/hr (MMBtu/hr);
Hyp= Heat input rate to the duct burner, in J/hr (MMBtu/hr); and

E,= Emissions rate from the combustion turbine, in ng/J (Ib/MMBtu) heat input calculated using
appropriate F factor as described in Method 19 of appendix A of this part.

(i1) Method 7E of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine the NOx concentrations.
Method 3A or 3B of appendix A of this part shall be used to determine O; concentration.

(iii) The owner or operator shall identify and demonstrate to the Administrator's satisfaction
suitable methods to determine the average hourly heat input rate to the combustion turbine and
the average hourly heat input rate to the affected duct burner.

(iv) Compliance with the emissions limits under §60.44b(a)(4) or §60.44b(l) is determined by the
three-run average (nominal 1-hour runs) for the initial and subsequent performance tests; or

(2) The owner or operator of an affected facility may elect to determine compliance on a 30-day
rolling average basis by using the CEMS specified under §60.48b for measuring NOx and O, and
meet the requirements of §60.48b. The sampling site shall be located at the outlet from the steam
generating unit. The NOx emissions rate at the outlet from the steam generating unit shall
constitute the NOx emissions rate from the duct burner of the combined cycle system.

(2) The owner or operator of an affected facility described in §60.44b(j) or §60.44b(k) shall
demonstrate the maximum heat input capacity of the steam generating unit by operating the
facility at maximum capacity for 24 hours. The owner or operator of an affected facility shall
determine the maximum heat input capacity using the heat loss method or the heat input method
described in sections 5 and 7.3 of the ASME Power Test Codes 4.1 (incorporated by reference,
see §60.17). This demonstration of maximum heat input capacity shall be made during the initial
performance test for affected facilities that meet the criteria of §60.44b(j). It shall be made
within 60 days after achieving the maximum production rate at which the affected facility will be

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-99



operated, but not later than 180 days after initial start-up of each facility, for affected facilities
meeting the criteria of §60.44b(k). Subsequent demonstrations may be required by the
Administrator at any other time. If this demonstration indicates that the maximum heat input
capacity of the affected facility is less than that stated by the manufacturer of the affected
facility, the maximum heat input capacity determined during this demonstration shall be used to
determine the capacity utilization rate for the affected facility. Otherwise, the maximum heat
input capacity provided by the manufacturer is used.

(h) The owner or operator of an affected facility described in §60.44b(j) that has a heat input
capacity greater than 73 MW (250 MMBtu/hr) shall:

(1) Conduct an initial performance test as required under §60.8 over a minimum of 24
consecutive steam generating unit operating hours at maximum heat input capacity to
demonstrate compliance with the NOx emission standards under §60.44b using Method 7, 7A,
7E of appendix A of this part, or other approved reference methods; and

(2) Conduct subsequent performance tests once per calendar year or every 400 hours of operation
(whichever comes first) to demonstrate compliance with the NOx emission standards under
§60.44b over a minimum of 3 consecutive steam generating unit operating hours at maximum
heat input capacity using Method 7, 7A, 7E of appendix A of this part, or other approved
reference methods.

(i) The owner or operator of an affected facility seeking to demonstrate compliance with the PM
limit in paragraphs §60.43b(a)(4) or §60.43b(h)(5) shall follow the applicable procedures in
§60.49b(r).

() In place of PM testing with Method 5 or 5B of appendix A-3 of this part, or Method 17 of
appendix A—6 of this part, an owner or operator may elect to install, calibrate, maintain, and
operate a CEMS for monitoring PM emissions discharged to the atmosphere and record the
output of the system. The owner or operator of an affected facility who elects to continuously
monitor PM emissions instead of conducting performance testing using Method 5 or 5B of
appendix A3 of this part or Method 17 of appendix A—6 of this part shall comply with the
requirements specified in paragraphs (j)(1) through (j)(14) of this section.

(1) Notify the Administrator one month before starting use of the system.
(2) Notify the Administrator one month before stopping use of the system.

(3) The monitor shall be installed, evaluated, and operated in accordance with §60.13 of subpart
A of this part.

(4) The initial performance evaluation shall be completed no later than 180 days after the date of
initial startup of the affected facility, as specified under §60.8 of subpart A of this part or within
180 days of notification to the Administrator of use of the CEMS if the owner or operator was
previously determining compliance by Method 5, 5B, or 17 of appendix A of this part
performance tests, whichever is later.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-100



(5) The owner or operator of an affected facility shall conduct an initial performance test for PM
emissions as required under §60.8 of subpart A of this part. Compliance with the PM emission
limit shall be determined by using the CEMS specified in paragraph (j) of this section to measure
PM and calculating a 24-hour block arithmetic average emission concentration using EPA
Reference Method 19 of appendix A of this part, section 4.1.

(6) Compliance with the PM emission limit shall be determined based on the 24-hour daily
(block) average of the hourly arithmetic average emission concentrations using CEMS outlet
data.

(7) At a minimum, valid CEMS hourly averages shall be obtained as specified in paragraphs
()(7)() of this section for 75 percent of the total operating hours per 30-day rolling average.

(i) At least two data points per hour shall be used to calculate each 1-hour arithmetic average.
(ii) [Reserved]

(8) The 1-hour arithmetic averages required under paragraph (j)(7) of this section shall be
expressed in ng/J or I/MMBtu heat input and shall be used to calculate the boiler operating day
daily arithmetic average emission concentrations. The 1-hour arithmetic averages shall be
calculated using the data points required under §60.13(e)(2) of subpart A of this part.

(9) All valid CEMS data shall be used in calculating average emission concentrations even if the
minimum CEMS data requirements of paragraph (j)(7) of this section are not met.

(10) The CEMS shall be operated according to Performance Specification 11 in appendix B of
this part.

(11) During the correlation testing runs of the CEMS required by Performance Specification 11
in appendix B of this part, PM and O, (or CO;) data shall be collected concurrently (or within a
30-to 60-minute period) by both the continuous emission monitors and performance tests
conducted using the following test methods.

(i) For PM, Method 5 or 5B of appendix A—3 of this part or Method 17 of appendix A—6 of this
part shall be used; and

(ii) After July 1, 2010, or after Method 202 of appendix M of part 51 has been revised to
minimize artifact measurement and notice of that change has been published in the Federal

Register, whichever is later, for condensable PM emissions, Method 202 of appendix M of part
51 shall be used; and

(ii1) For O; (or CO;,), Method 3A or 3B of appendix A-2 of this part, as applicable shall be used.
(12) Quarterly accuracy determinations and daily calibration drift tests shall be performed in

accordance with procedure 2 in appendix F of this part. Relative Response Audit's must be
performed annually and Response Correlation Audits must be performed every 3 years.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-101



(13) When PM emissions data are not obtained because of CEMS breakdowns, repairs,
calibration checks, and zero and span adjustments, emissions data shall be obtained by using
other monitoring systems as approved by the Administrator or EPA Reference Method 19 of
appendix A of this part to provide, as necessary, valid emissions data for a minimum of 75
percent of total operating hours per 30-day rolling average.

(14) After July 1, 2011, within 90 days after completing a correlation testing run, the owner or

operator of an affected facility shall either successfully enter the test data into EPA's WebFIRE
data base located at http.://cfpub.epa.gov/oarweb/index.cfm?action=fire.main or mail a copy to:
United States Environmental Protection Agency; Energy Strategies Group; 109 TW Alexander
DR; Mail Code: D243-01; RTP, NC 27711.

[72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5086, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.47b Emission monitoring for sulfur dioxide.

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (b) and (f) of this section, the owner or operator of an
affected facility subject to the SO; standards in §60.42b shall install, calibrate, maintain, and
operate CEMS for measuring SO, concentrations and either O, or CO; concentrations and shall
record the output of the systems. For units complying with the percent reduction standard, the
SO, and either O, or CO; concentrations shall both be monitored at the inlet and outlet of the SO,
control device. If the owner or operator has installed and certified SO, and O, or CO; CEMS
according to the requirements of §75.20(c)(1) of this chapter and appendix A to part 75 of this
chapter, and is continuing to meet the ongoing quality assurance requirements of §75.21 of this
chapter and appendix B to part 75 of this chapter, those CEMS may be used to meet the
requirements of this section, provided that:

(1) When relative accuracy testing is conducted, SO, concentration data and CO; (or O,) data are
collected simultaneously; and

(2) In addition to meeting the applicable SO, and CO; (or O) relative accuracy specifications in
Figure 2 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter, the relative accuracy (RA) standard in section
13.2 of Performance Specification 2 in appendix B to this part is met when the RA is calculated
on a Ib/MMBtu basis; and

(3) The reporting requirements of §60.49b are met. SO, and CO;, (or O,) data used to meet the
requirements of §60.49b shall not include substitute data values derived from the missing data
procedures in subpart D of part 75 of this chapter, nor shall the SO, data have been bias adjusted
according to the procedures of part 75 of this chapter.

(b) As an alternative to operating CEMS as required under paragraph (a) of this section, an
owner or operator may elect to determine the average SO; emissions and percent reduction by:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-102



(1) Collecting coal or oil samples in an as-fired condition at the inlet to the steam generating unit
and analyzing them for sulfur and heat content according to Method 19 of appendix A of this
part. Method 19 of appendix A of this part provides procedures for converting these
measurements into the format to be used in calculating the average SO, input rate, or

(2) Measuring SO, according to Method 6B of appendix A of this part at the inlet or outlet to the
SO; control system. An initial stratification test is required to verify the adequacy of the Method
6B of appendix A of this part sampling location. The stratification test shall consist of three
paired runs of a suitable SO, and CO, measurement train operated at the candidate location and a
second similar train operated according to the procedures in section 3.2 and the applicable
procedures in section 7 of Performance Specification 2. Method 6B of appendix A of this part,
Method 6A of appendix A of this part, or a combination of Methods 6 and 3 or 3B of appendix A
of this part or Methods 6C and 3A of appendix A of this part are suitable measurement
techniques. If Method 6B of appendix A of this part is used for the second train, sampling time
and timer operation may be adjusted for the stratification test as long as an adequate sample
volume is collected; however, both sampling trains are to be operated similarly. For the location
to be adequate for Method 6B of appendix A of this part 24-hour tests, the mean of the absolute
difference between the three paired runs must be less than 10 percent.

(3) A daily SO, emission rate, Ep, shall be determined using the procedure described in Method
6A of appendix A of this part, section 7.6.2 (Equation 6A-8) and stated in ng/J (Ib/MMBtu) heat
input.

(4) The mean 30-day emission rate is calculated using the daily measured values in ng/J
(Ib/MMBtu) for 30 successive steam generating unit operating days using equation 19-20 of
Method 19 of appendix A of this part. '

(c) The owner or operator of an affected facility shall obtain emission data for at least 75 percent
of the operating hours in at least 22 out of 30 successive boiler operating days. If this minimum
data requirement is not met with a single monitoring system, the owner or operator of the
affected facility shall supplement the emission data with data collected with other monitoring
systems as approved by the Administrator or the reference methods and procedures as described
in paragraph (b) of this section.

(d) The 1-hour average SO; emission rates measured by the CEMS required by paragraph (a) of
this section and required under §60.13(h) is expressed in ng/J or lb/MMBtu heat input and is
used to calculate the average emission rates under §60.42(b). Each 1-hour average SO, emission
rate must be based on 30 or more minutes of steam generating unit operation. The hourly
averages shall be calculated according to §60.13(h)(2). Hourly SO, emission rates are not
calculated if the affected facility is operated less than 30 minutes in a given clock hour and are
not counted toward determination of a steam generating unit operating day.

(e) The procedures under §60.13 shall be followed for installation, evaluation, and operation of
the CEMS.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-103



(1) Except as provided for in paragraph (e)(4) of this section, all CEMS shall be operated in
accordance with the applicable procedures under Performance Specifications 1, 2, and 3 of
appendix B of this part.

(2) Except as provided for in paragraph (e)(4) of this section, quarterly accuracy determinations
and daily calibration drift tests shall be performed in accordance with Procedure 1 of appendix F
of this part.

(3) For affected facilities combusting coal or oil, alone or in combination with other fuels, the
span value of the SO, CEMS at the inlet to the SO; control device is 125 percent of the maximum
estimated hourly potential SO, emissions of the fuel combusted, and the span value of the CEMS
at the outlet to the SO, control device is 50 percent of the maximum estimated hourly potential
SO, emissions of the fuel combusted. Alternatively, SO, span values determined according to
section 2.1.1 in appendix A to part 75 of this chapter may be used.

(4) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of requirements of paragraphs (e)(1) and (e)(2)
of this section, the owner or operator may elect to implement the following alternative data
accuracy assessment procedures:

(i) For all required CO, and O, monitors and for SO; and NOx monitors with span values greater
than or equal to 100 ppm, the daily calibration error test and calibration adjustment procedures
described in sections 2.1.1 and 2.1.3 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter may be followed
instead of the CD assessment procedures in Procedure 1, section 4.1 of appendix F to this part.

(ii) For all required CO, and O, monitors and for SO, and NOx monitors with span values greater
than 30 ppm, quarterly linearity checks may be performed in accordance with section 2.2.1 of
appendix B to part 75 of this chapter, instead of performing the cylinder gas audits (CGAs)
described in Procedure 1, section 5.1.2 of appendix F to this part. If this option is selected: The
frequency of the linearity checks shall be as specified in section 2.2.1 of appendix B to part 75 of
this chapter; the applicable linearity specifications in section 3.2 of appendix A to part 75 of this
chapter shall be met; the data validation and out-of-control criteria in section 2.2.3 of appendix B
to part 75 of this chapter shall be followed instead of the excessive audit inaccuracy and out-of-
control criteria in Procedure 1, section 5.2 of appendix F to this part; and the grace period
provisions in section 2.2.4 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter shall apply. For the purposes
of data validation under this subpart, the cylinder gas audits described in Procedure 1, section
5.1.2 of appendix F to this part shall be performed for SO, and NOx span values less than or
equal to 30 ppm; and

(iii) For SO,, CO,, and O, monitoring systems and for NOx emission rate monitoring systems,
RATAs may be performed in accordance with section 2.3 of appendix B to part 75 of this
chapter instead of following the procedures described in Procedure 1, section 5.1.1 of appendix F
to this part. If this option is selected: The frequency of each RATA shall be as specified in
section 2.3.1 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter; the applicable relative accuracy
specifications shown in Figure 2 in appendix B to part 75 of this chapter shall be met; the data
validation and out-of-control criteria in section 2.3.2 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter
shall be followed instead of the excessive audit inaccuracy and out-of-control criteria in

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-104



Procedure 1, section 5.2 of appendix F to this part; and the grace period provisions in section
2.3.3 of appendix B to part 75 of this chapter shall apply. For the purposes of data validation
under this subpart, the relative accuracy specification in section 13.2 of Performance
Specification 2 in appendix B to this part shall be met on a [b/MMBtu basis for SO, (regardless
of the SO, emission level during the RATA), and for NOx when the average NOx emission rate
measured by the reference method during the RATA is less than 0.100 Ib/MMBtu.

(f) The owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts very low sulfur oil or is
demonstrating compliance under §60.45b(k) is not subject to the emission monitoring
requirements under paragraph (a) of this section if the owner or operator maintains fuel records
as described in §60.49b(r).

[72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5087, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.48b Emission monitoring for particulate matter and nitrogen oxides.

(a) Except as provided in paragraph (j) of this section, the owner or operator of an affected
facility subject to the opacity standard under §60.43b shall install, calibrate, maintain, and
operate a continuous opacity monitoring systems (COMS) for measuring the opacity of
emissions discharged to the atmosphere and record the output of the system. The owner or
operator of an affected facility subject to an opacity standard under §60.43b and meeting the
conditions under paragraphs (j)(1), (2), (3), (4), or (5) of this section who elects not to install a
COMS shall conduct a performance test using Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part and the
procedures in §60.11 to demonstrate compliance with the applicable limit in §60.43b and shall
comply with either paragraphs (a)(1), (a)(2), or (a)(3) of this section. If during the initial 60
minutes of observation all 6-minute averages are less than 10 percent and all individual 15-
second observations are less than or equal to 20 percent, the observation period may be reduced
from 3-hours to 60 minutes.

(1) Except as provided in paragraph (a)(2) and (a)(3) of this section, the owner or operator shall
conduct subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance tests using the
procedures in paragraph (a) of this section according to the applicable schedule in paragraphs
(a)(1)(i) through (a)(1)(iv) of this section, as determined by the most recent Method 9 of
appendix A—4 of this part performance test results.

(i) If no visible emissions are observed, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part
performance test must be completed within 12 calendar months from the date that the most
recent performance test was conducted;

(i1) If visible emissions are observed but the maximum 6-minute average opacity is less than or
equal to 5 percent, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test must be
completed within 6 calendar months from the date that the most recent performance test was
conducted;

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-105



(iii) If the maximum 6-minute average opacity is greater than 5 percent but less than or equal to
10 percent, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test must be
completed within 3 calendar months from the date that the most recent performance test was
conducted; or

(iv) If the maximum 6-minute average opacity is greater than 10 percent, a subsequent Method 9
of appendix A—4 of this part performance test must be completed within 30 calendar days from
the date that the most recent performance test was conducted.

(2) If the maximum 6-minute opacity is less than 10 percent during the most recent Method 9 of
appendix A—4 of this part performance test, the owner or operator may, as an alternative to
performing subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance tests, elect to
perform subsequent monitoring using Method 22 of appendix A—7 of this part according to the
procedures specified in paragraphs (a)(2)(i) and (ii) of this section.

(i) The owner or operator shall conduct 10 minute observations (during normal operation) each
operating day the affected facility fires fuel for which an opacity standard is applicable using
Method 22 of appendix A—7 of this part and demonstrate that the sum of the occurrences of any
visible emissions is not in excess of 5 percent of the observation period (i.e., 30 seconds per 10
minute period). If the sum of the occurrence of any visible emissions is greater than 30 seconds
during the initial 10 minute observation, immediately conduct a 30 minute observation. If the
sum of the occurrence of visible emissions is greater than 5 percent of the observation period
(i.e., 90 seconds per 30 minute period) the owner or operator shall either document and adjust the
operation of the facility and demonstrate within 24 hours that the sum of the occurrence of
visible emissions is equal to or less than 5 percent during a 30 minute observation (i.e., 90
seconds) or conduct a new Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test using the
procedures in paragraph (a) of this section within 30 calendar days according to the requirements
in §60.46d(d)(7).

(ii) If no visible emissions are observed for 30 operating days during which an opacity standard
is applicable, observations can be reduced to once every 7 operating days during which an
opacity standard is applicable. If any visible emissions are observed, daily observations shall be
resumed.

(3) If the maximum 6-minute opacity is less than 10 percent during the most recent Method 9 of
appendix A—4 of this part performance test, the owner or operator may, as an alternative to
performing subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 performance tests, elect to perform
subsequent monitoring using a digital opacity compliance system according to a site-specific
monitoring plan approved by the Administrator. The observations shall be similar, but not
necessarily identical, to the requirements in paragraph (a)(2) of this section. For reference
purposes in preparing the monitoring plan, see OAQPS “Determination of Visible Emission
Opacity from Stationary Sources Using Computer-Based Photographic Analysis Systems.” This
document is available from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA); Office of Air
Quality and Planning Standards; Sector Policies and Programs Division; Measurement Policy
Group (D243-02), Research Triangle Park, NC 27711. This document is also available on the

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-106



Technology Transfer Network (TTN) under Emission Measurement Center Preliminary
Methods.

(b) Except as provided under paragraphs (g), (h), and (i) of this section, the owner or operator of
an affected facility subject to a NOx standard under §60.44b shall comply with either paragraphs
(b)(1) or (b)(2) of this section.

(1) Install, calibrate, maintain, and operate CEMS for measuring NOx and O, (or CO;) emissions
discharged to the atmosphere, and shall record the output of the system; or

(2) If the owner or operator has installed a NOx emission rate CEMS to meet the requirements of
part 75 of this chapter and is continuing to meet the ongoing requirements of part 75 of this
chapter, that CEMS may be used to meet the requirements of this section, except that the owner
or operator shall also meet the requirements of §60.49b. Data reported to meet the requirements
of §60.49b shall not include data substituted using the missing data procedures in subpart D of
part 75 of this chapter, nor shall the data have been bias adjusted according to the procedures of
part 75 of this chapter.

(c) The CEMS required under paragraph (b) of this section shall be operated and data recorded
during all periods of operation of the affected facility except for CEMS breakdowns and repairs.
Data is recorded during calibration checks, and zero and span adjustments.

(d) The 1-hour average NOy emission rates measured by the continuous NOx monitor required
by paragraph (b) of this section and required under §60.13(h) shall be expressed in ng/J or
1b/MMBtu heat input and shall be used to calculate the average emission rates under §60.44b.
The 1-hour averages shall be calculated using the data points required under §60.13(h)(2).

(e) The procedures under §60.13 shall be followed for installation, evaluation, and operation of
the continuous monitoring systems.

(1) For affected facilities combusting coal, wood or municipal-type solid waste, the span value
for a COMS shall be between 60 and 80 percent.

(2) For affected facilities combusting coal, oil, or natural gas, the span value for NOx is
determined using one of the following procedures:

(i) Except as provided under paragraph (e)(2)(ii) of this section, NOx span values shall be
determined as follows:

Span values for NOy
Fuel (ppm)
Natural gas 500.
Oil 500.
Coal ] 1,000.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-107




Mixtures 500 (x +y) + 1,000z

Where:

x = Fraction of total heat input derived from natural gas;
y = Fraction of total heat input derived from oil; and

z = Fraction of total heat input derived from coal.

(ii) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (€)(2)(i) of this section, the owner
or operator of an affected facility may elect to use the NOx span values determined according to
section 2.1.2 in appendix A to part 75 of this chapter.

(3) All span values computed under paragraph (e)(2)(i) of this section for combusting mixtures
of regulated fuels are rounded to the nearest 500 ppm. Span values computed under paragraph
(e)(2)(ii) of this section shall be rounded off according to section 2.1.2 in appendix A to part 75
of this chapter.

(f) When NOx emission data are not obtained because of CEMS breakdowns, repairs, calibration
checks and zero and span adjustments, emission data will be obtained by using standby
monitoring systems, Method 7 of appendix A of this part, Method 7A of appendix A of this part,
or other approved reference methods to provide emission data for a minimum of 75 percent of
the operating hours in each steam generating unit operating day, in at least 22 out of 30
successive steam generating unit operating days.

(g) The owner or operator of an affected facility that has a heat input capacity of 73 MW (250
MMBtw/hr) or less, and that has an annual capacity factor for residual oil having a nitrogen
content of 0.30 weight percent or less, natural gas, distillate oil, gasified coal, or any mixture of
these fuels, greater than 10 percent (0.10) shall:

(1) Comply with the provisions of paragraphs (b), (c), (d), (€)(2), (e)(3), and (f) of this section; or

(2) Monitor steam generating unit operating conditions and predict NOx emission rates as
specified in a plan submitted pursuant to §60.49b(c).

(h) The owner or operator of a duct burner, as described in §60.41b, that is subject to the NOx
standards in §60.44b(a)(4), §60.44b(e), or §60.44b(1) is not required to install or operate a

continuous emissions monitoring system to measure NOx emissions.

(i) The owner or operator of an affected facility described in §60.44b(j) or §60.44b(k) is not
required to install or operate a CEMS for measuring NOyx emissions.

(i) The owner or operator of an affected facility that meets the conditions in either paragraph
GXD), (2), (3), (4), (5), or (6) of this section is not required to install or operate a COMS if:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-108



(1) The affected facility uses a PM CEMS to monitor PM emissions; or

(2) The affected facility burns only liquid (excluding residual oil) or gaseous fuels with potential
SO, emissions rates of 26 ng/J (0.060 1b/MMBtu) or less and does not use a post-combustion
technology to reduce SO, or PM emissions. The owner or operator must maintain fuel records of
the sulfur content of the fuels burned, as described under §60.49b(r); or

(3) The affected facility burns coke oven gas alone or in combination with fuels meeting the
criteria in paragraph (j)(2) of this section and does not use a post-combustion technology to
reduce SO, or PM emissions; or

(4) The affected facility does not use post-combustion technology (except a wet scrubber) for
reducing PM, SO,, or carbon monoxide (CO) emissions, burns only gaseous fuels or fuel oils
that contain less than or equal to 0.30 weight percent sulfur, and is operated such that emissions
of CO to the atmosphere from the affected facility are maintained at levels less than or equal to
0.15 Ib/MMBtu on a steam generating unit operating day average basis. Owners and operators
of affected facilities electing to comply with this paragraph must demonstrate compliance
according to the procedures specified in paragraphs (j)(4)(i) through (iv) of this section; or

(i) You must monitor CO emissions using a CEMS according to the procedures specified in
paragraphs (j)(4)(i)(A) through (D) of this section.

(A) The CO CEMS must be installed, certified, maintained, and operated according to the
provisions in §60.58b(i)(3) of subpart Eb of this part.

(B) Each 1-hour CO emissions average is calculated using the data points generated by the CO
CEMS expressed in parts per million by volume corrected to 3 percent oxygen (dry basis).

(C) At a minimum, valid 1-hour CO emissions averages must be obtained for at least 90 percent
of the operating hours on a 30-day rolling average basis. The 1-hour averages are calculated
using the data points required in §60.13(h)(2).

(D) Quarterly accuracy determinations and daily calibration drift tests for the CO CEMS must be
performed in accordance with procedure 1 in appendix F of this part.

(i) You must calculate the 1-hour average CO emissions levels for each steam generating unit
operating day by multiplying the average hourly CO output concentration measured by the CO
CEMS times the corresponding average hourly flue gas flow rate and divided by the
corresponding average hourly heat input to the affected source. The 24-hour average CO
emission level is determined by calculating the arithmetic average of the hourly CO emission
levels computed for each steam generating unit operating day.

(iii) You must evaluate the preceding 24-hour average CO emission level each steam generating
unit operating day excluding periods of affected source startup, shutdown, or malfunction. If the
24-hour average CO emission level is greater than 0.15 1b/MMBtu, you must initiate
investigation of the relevant equipment and control systems within 24 hours of the first discovery

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-109



of the high emission incident and, take the appropriate corrective action as soon as practicable to

adjust control settings or repair equipment to reduce the 24-hour average CO emission level to
0.15 Ib/MMBtu or less.

(iv) You must record the CO measurements and calculations performed according to paragraph
(j)(4) of this section and any corrective actions taken. The record of corrective action taken must
include the date and time during which the 24-hour average CO emission level was greater than
0.15 Ib/MMBtu, and the date, time, and description of the corrective action.

(5) The affected facility uses a bag leak detection system to monitor the performance of a fabric
filter (baghouse) according to the most recent requirements in section §60.48Da of this part; or

(6) The affected facility burns only gaseous fuels or fuel oils that contain less than or equal to
0.30 weight percent sulfur and operates according to a written site-specific monitoring plan
approved by the permitting authority. This monitoring plan must include procedures and criteria
for establishing and monitoring specific parameters for the affected facility indicative of
compliance with the opacity standard.

(k) Owners or operators complying with the PM emission limit by using a PM CEMS must
calibrate, maintain, operate, and record the output of the system for PM emissions discharged to
the atmosphere as specified in §60.46b(j). The CEMS specified in paragraph §60.46b(j) shall be
operated and data recorded during all periods of operation of the affected facility except for
CEMS breakdowns and repairs. Data is recorded during calibration checks, and zero and span
adjustments.

[72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5087, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.49b Reporting and recordkeeping requirements.

(a) The owner or operator of each affected facility shall submit notification of the date of initial
startup, as provided by §60.7. This notification shall include:

(1) The design heat input capacity of the affected facility and identification of the fuels to be
combusted in the affected facility;

(2) If applicable, a copy of any federally enforceable requirement that limits the annual capacity
factor for any fuel or mixture of fuels under §§60.42b(d)(1), 60.43b(a)(2), (a)(3)(iii), (c)(2)(ii),
(d)(2)(iii), 60.44b(c), (d), (e), (i), (), (k), 60.45b(d), (g), 60.46b(h), or 60.48b(i);

(3) The annual capacity factor at which the owner or operator anticipates operating the facility
based on all fuels fired and based on each individual fuel fired; and

(4) Notification that an emerging technology will be used for controlling emissions of SO,. The
Administrator will examine the description of the emerging technology and will determine
whether the technology qualifies as an emerging technology. In making this determination, the
Administrator may require the owner or operator of the affected facility to submit additional

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-110



information concerning the control device. The affected facility is subject to the provisions of
§60.42b(a) unless and until this determination is made by the Administrator.

(b) The owner or operator of each affected facility subject to the SO,, PM, and/or NOx emission
limits under §§60.42b, 60.43b, and 60.44b shall submit to the Administrator the performance test
data from the initial performance test and the performance evaluation of the CEMS using the
applicable performance specifications in appendix B of this part. The owner or operator of each
affected facility described in §60.44b(j) or §60.44b(k) shall submit to the Administrator the
maximum heat input capacity data from the demonstration of the maximum heat input capacity
of the affected facility.

(c) The owner or operator of each affected facility subject to the NOx standard in §60.44b who
seeks to demonstrate compliance with those standards through the monitoring of steam
generating unit operating conditions in the provisions of §60.48b(g)(2) shall submit to the
Administrator for approval a plan that identifies the operating conditions to be monitored in
§60.48b(g)(2) and the records to be maintained in §60.49b(g). This plan shall be submitted to
the Administrator for approval within 360 days of the initial startup of the affected facility. An
affected facility burning coke oven gas alone or in combination with other gaseous fuels or
distillate oil shall submit this plan to the Administrator for approval within 360 days of the initial
startup of the affected facility or by November 30, 2009, whichever date comes later. If the plan
is approved, the owner or operator shall maintain records of predicted nitrogen oxide emission
rates and the monitored operating conditions, including steam generating unit load, identified in
the plan. The plan shall:

(1) Identify the specific operating conditions to be monitored and the relationship between these
operating conditions and NOx emission rates (i.e., ng/J or Ibss/MMBtu heat input). Steam
generating unit operating conditions include, but are not limited to, the degree of staged
combustion (i.e., the ratio of primary air to secondary and/or tertiary air) and the level of excess
air (i.e., flue gas O, level);

(2) Include the data and information that the owner or operator used to identify the relationship
between NOx emission rates and these operating conditions; and

(3) Identify how these operating conditions, including steam generating unit load, will be
monitored under §60.48b(g) on an hourly basis by the owner or operator during the period of
operation of the affected facility; the quality assurance procedures or practices that will be
employed to ensure that the data generated by monitoring these operating conditions will be
representative and accurate; and the type and format of the records of these operating conditions,
including steam generating unit load, that will be maintained by the owner or operator under
§60.49b(g).

(d) Except as provided in paragraph (d)(2) of this section, the owner or operator of an affected
facility shall record and maintain records as specified in paragraph (d)(1) of this section.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, D¢ C-111



(1) The owner or operator of an affected facility shall record and maintain records of the amounts
of each fuel combusted during each day and calculate the annual capacity factor individually for
coal, distillate oil, residual oil, natural gas, wood, and municipal-type solid waste for the
reporting period. The annual capacity factor is determined on a 12-month rolling average basis
with a new annual capacity factor calculated at the end of each calendar month.

(2) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (d)(1) of this section, the owner or
operator of an affected facility that is subject to a federally enforceable permit restricting fuel use
to a single fuel such that the facility is not required to continuously monitor any emissions
(excluding opacity) or parameters indicative of emissions may elect to record and maintain
records of the amount of each fuel combusted during each calendar month.

(e) For an affected facility that combusts residual oil and meets the criteria under §§60.46b(e)(4),
60.44b(j), or (k), the owner or operator shall maintain records of the nitrogen content of the
residual oil combusted in the affected facility and calculate the average fuel nitrogen content for
the reporting period. The nitrogen content shall be determined using ASTM Method D4629
(incorporated by reference, see §60.17), or fuel suppliers. If residual oil blends are being
combusted, fuel nitrogen specifications may be prorated based on the ratio of residual oils of
different nitrogen content in the fuel blend.

(f) For an affected facility subject to the opacity standard in §60.43b, the owner or operator shall
maintain records of opacity. In addition, an owner or operator that elects to monitor emissions
according to the requirements in §60.48b(a) shall maintain records according to the requirements
specified in paragraphs (f)(1) through (3) of this section, as applicable to the visible emissions
monitoring method used.

(1) For each performance test conducted using Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part, the owner
or operator shall keep the records including the information specified in paragraphs (f)(1)(i)
through (iii) of this section.

(i) Dates and time intervals of all opacity observation periods;

(i1) Name, affiliation, and copy of current visible emission reading certification for each visible
emission observer participating in the performance test; and

(iii) Copies of all visible emission observer opacity field data sheets;

(2) For each performance test conducted using Method 22 of appendix A—4 of this part, the
owner or operator shall keep the records including the information specified in paragraphs
(H)(2)(1) through (iv) of this section.

(i) Dates and time intervals of all visible emissions observation periods;

(ii) Name and affiliation for each visible emission observer participating in the performance test;

(iii) Copies of all visible emission observer opacity field data sheets; and

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-112



(iv) Documentation of any adjustments made and the time the adjustments were completed to the
affected facility operation by the owner or operator to demonstrate compliance with the
applicable monitoring requirements.

(3) For each digital opacity compliance system, the owner or operator shall maintain records and
submit reports according to the requirements specified in the site-specific monitoring plan
approved by the Administrator.

(g) Except as provided under paragraph (p) of this section, the owner or operator of an affected
facility subject to the NOx standards under §60.44b shall maintain records of the following
information for each steam generating unit operating day:

(1) Calendar date;

(2) The average hourly NOx emission rates (expressed as NO,) (ng/J or It/MMBtu heat input)
measured or predicted;

(3) The 30-day average NOx emission rates (ng/J or lt/MMBtu heat input) calculated at the end
of each steam generating unit operating day from the measured or predicted hourly nitrogen
oxide emission rates for the preceding 30 steam generating unit operating days;

(4) Identification of the steam generating unit operating days when the calculated 30-day average
NOy emission rates are in excess of the NOy emissions standards under §60.44b, with the
reasons for such excess emissions as well as a description of corrective actions taken;

(5) Identification of the steam generating unit operating days for which pollutant data have not
been obtained, including reasons for not obtaining sufficient data and a description of corrective

actions:taken;

(6) Identification of the times when emission data have been excluded from the calculation of
average emission rates and the reasons for excluding data;

(7) Identification of “F” factor used for calculations, method of determination, and type of fuel
combusted;

(8) Identification of the times when the pollutant concentration exceeded full span of the CEMS;

(9) Description of any modifications to the CEMS that could affect the ability of the CEMS to
comply with Performance Specification 2 or 3; and

(10) Results of daily CEMS drift tests and quarterly accuracy assessments as required under
appendix F, Procedure 1 of this part.

(h) The owner or operator of any affected facility in any category listed in paragraphs (h)(1) or

(2) of this section is required to submit excess emission reports for any excess emissions that
occurred during the reporting period.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-113



(1) Any affected facility subject to the opacity standards in §60.43b(f) or to the operating
parameter monitoring requirements in §60.13(i)(1).

(2) Any affected facility that is subject to the NOx standard of §60.44b, and that:

(i) Combusts natural gas, distillate oil, gasified coal, or residual oil with a nitrogen content of 0.3
weight percent or less; or

(i) Has a heat input capacity of 73 MW (250 MMBtu/hr) or less and is required to monitor NOx
emissions on a continuous basis under §60.48b(g)(1) or steam generating unit operating
conditions under §60.48b(g)(2).

(3) For the purpose of §60.43b, excess emissions are defined as all 6-minute periods during
which the average opacity exceeds the opacity standards under §60.43b(f).

(4) For purposes of §60.48b(g)(1), excess emissions are defined as any calculated 30-day rolling
average NOx emission rate, as determined under §60.46b(e), that exceeds the applicable
emission limits in §60.44b.

(i) The owner or operator of any affected facility subject to the continuous monitoring
requirements for NOyx under §60.48(b) shall submit reports containing the information recorded
under paragraph (g) of this section.

(j) The owner or operator of any affected facility subject to the SO, standards under §60.42b
shall submit reports.

(k) For each affected facility subject to the compliance and performance testing requirements of
§60.45b and the reporting requirement in paragraph (j) of this section, the following information
shall be reported to the Administrator:

(1) Calendar dates covered in the reporting period,

(2) Each 30-day average SO, emission rate (ng/J or lb/MMBtu heat input) measured during the
reporting period, ending with the last 30-day period; reasons for noncompliance with the
emission standards; and a description of corrective actions taken; For an exceedance due to
maintenance of the SO, control system covered in paragraph 60.45b(a), the report shall identify
the days on which the maintenance was performed and a description of the maintenance;

(3) Each 30-day average percent reduction in SO, emissions calculated during the reporting
period, ending with the last 30-day period; reasons for noncompliance with the emission
standards; and a description of corrective actions taken;

(4) Identification of the steam generating unit operating days that coal or oil was combusted and
for which SO, or diluent (O, or CO,) data have not been obtained by an approved method for at
least 75 percent of the operating hours in the steam generating unit operating day; justification
for not obtaining sufficient data; and description of corrective action taken;

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-114



(5) Identification of the times when emissions data have been excluded from the calculation of
average emission rates; justification for excluding data; and description of corrective action taken
if data have been excluded for periods other than those during which coal or oil were not
combusted in the steam generating unit;

(6) Identification of “F” factor used for calculations, method of determination, and type of fuel
combusted,;

(7) Identification of times when hourly averages have been obtained based on manual sampling
methods;

(8) Identification of the times when the pollutant concentration exceeded full span of the CEMS;

(9) Description of any modifications to the CEMS that could affect the ability of the CEMS to
comply with Performance Specification 2 or 3;

(10) Results of daily CEMS drift tests and quarterly accuracy assessments as required under
appendix F, Procedure 1 of this part; and

(11) The annual capacity factor of each fired as provided under paragraph (d) of this section.

(1) For each affected facility subject to the compliance and performance testing requirements of
§60.45b(d) and the reporting requirements of paragraph (j) of this section, the following
information shall be reported to the Administrator:

(1) Calendar dates when the facility was in operation during the reporting period;

(2) The 24-hour average SO, emission rate measured for each steam generating unit operating
day during the reporting period that coal or oil was combusted, ending in the last 24-hour period
in the quarter; reasons for noncompliance with the emission standards; and a description of
corrective actions taken;

(3) Identification of the steam generating unit operating days that coal or oil was combusted for
which S0, or diluent (O, or CO,) data have not been obtained by an approved method for at least
75 percent of the operating hours; justification for not obtaining sufficient data; and description
of corrective action taken;

(4) Identification of the times when emissions data have been excluded from the calculation of
average emission rates; justification for excluding data; and description of corrective action taken
if data have been excluded for periods other than those during which coal or oil were not
combusted in the steam generating unit;

(5) Identification of “F” factor used for calculations, method of determination, and type of fuel
combusted;

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-115



(6) Identification of times when hourly averages have been obtained based on manual sampling
methods;

(7) Identification of the times when the pollutant concentration exceeded full span of the CEMS;

(8) Description of any modifications to the CEMS that could affect the ability of the CEMS to
comply with Performance Specification 2 or 3; and

(9) Results of daily CEMS drift tests and quarterly accuracy assessments as required under
Procedure 1 of appendix F 1 of this part. If the owner or operator elects to implement the
alternative data assessment procedures described in §§60.47b(e)(4)(i) through (e)(4)(iii), each
data assessment report shall include a summary of the results of all of the RATAs, linearity
checks, CGAs, and calibration error or drift assessments required by §§60.47b(e)(4)(i) through

(e)(4)(iii).

(m) For each affected facility subject to the SO, standards in §60.42(b) for which the minimum
amount of data required in §60.47b(c) were not obtained during the reporting period, the
following information is reported to the Administrator in addition to that required under
paragraph (k) of this section:

(1) The number of hourly averages available for outlet emission rates and inlet emission rates;

(2) The standard deviation of hourly averages for outlet emission rates and inlet emission rates,
as determined in Method 19 of appendix A of this part, section 7,

(3) The lower confidence limit for the mean outlet emission rate and the upper confidence limit
for the mean inlet emission rate, as calculated in Method 19 of appendix A of this part, section 7;
and

(4) The ratio of the lower confidence limit for the mean outlet emission rate and the allowable
emission rate, as determined in Method 19 of appendix A of this part, section 7.

(n) If a percent removal efficiency by fuel pretreatment (i.e., %Ry) is used to determine the
overall percent reduction (i.e., %R,) under §60.45b, the owner or operator of the affected facility
shall submit a signed statement with the report.

(1) Indicating what removal efficiency by fuel pretreatment (i.e., %R) was credited during the
reporting period;

(2) Listing the quantity, heat content, and date each pre-treated fuel shipment was received
during the reporting period, the name and location of the fuel pretreatment facility; and the total
quantity and total heat content of all fuels received at the affected facility during the reporting
period;

(3) Documenting the transport of the fuel from the fuel pretreatment facility to the steam
generating unit; and

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-116



(4) Including a signed statement from the owner or operator of the fuel pretreatment facility
certifying that the percent removal efficiency achieved by fuel pretreatment was determined in
accordance with the provisions of Method 19 of appendix A of this part and listing the heat
content and sulfur content of each fuel before and after fuel pretreatment.

(o) All records required under this section shall be maintained by the owner or operator of the
affected facility for a period of 2 years following the date of such record.

(p) The owner or operator of an affected facility described in §60.44b(j) or (k) shall maintain
records of the following information for each steam generating unit operating day:

(1) Calendar date;
(2) The number of hours of operation; and
(3) A record of the hourly steam load.

(q) The owner or operator of an affected facility described in §60.44b(j) or §60.44b(k) shall
submit to the Administrator a report containing:

(1) The annual capacity factor over the previous 12 months;
(2) The average fuel nitrogen content during the reporting period, if residual oil was fired; and

(3) If the affected facility meets the criteria described in §60.44b(j), the results of any NOx
emission tests required during the reporting period, the hours of operation during the reporting
period, and the hours of operation since the last NOx emission test.

(r) The owner or operator of an affected facility who elects to use the fuel based compliance
alternatives in §60.42b or §60.43b shall either:

(1) The owner or operator of an affected facility who elects to demonstrate that the affected
facility combusts only very low sulfur oil, natural gas, wood, a mixture of these fuels, or any of
these fuels (or a mixture of these fuels) in combination with other fuels that are known to contain
an insignificant amount of sulfur in §60.42b(j) or §60.42b(k) shall obtain and maintain at the
affected facility fuel receipts from the fuel supplier that certify that the oil meets the definition of
distillate oil and gaseous fuel meets the definition of natural gas as defined in §60.41b and the
applicable sulfur limit. For the purposes of this section, the distillate oil need not meet the fuel
nitrogen content specification in the definition of distillate oil. Reports shall be submitted to the
Administrator certifying that only very low sulfur oil meeting this definition, natural gas, wood,
and/or other fuels that are known to contain insignificant amounts of sulfur were combusted in
the affected facility during the reporting period; or

(2) The owner or operator of an affected facility who elects to demonstrate compliance based on

fuel analysis in §60.42b or §60.43b shall develop and submit a site-specific fuel analysis plan to
the Administrator for review and approval no later than 60 days before the date you intend to

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-117



demonstrate compliance. Each fuel analysis plan shall include a minimum initial requirement of
weekly testing and each analysis report shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:

(i) The potential sulfur emissions rate of the representative fuel mixture in ng/J heat input;

(ii) The method used to determine the potential sulfur emissions rate of each constituent of the
mixture. For distillate oil and natural gas a fuel receipt or tariff sheet is acceptable;

(iii) The ratio of different fuels in the mixture; and

(iv) The owner or operator can petition the Administrator to approve monthly or quarterly
sampling in place of weekly sampling.

(s) Facility specific NOx standard for Cytec Industries Fortier Plant's C.AOG incinerator located
in Westwego, Louisiana:

(1) Definitions.

Oxidation zone is defined as the portion of the C.AOG incinerator that extends from the inlet of
the oxidizing zone combustion air to the outlet gas stack.

Reducing zone is defined as the portion of the C.AOG incinerator that extends from the burner
section to the inlet of the oxidizing zone combustion air.

Total inlet air is defined as the total amount of air introduced into the C.AOG incinerator for
combustion of natural gas and chemical by-product waste and is equal to the sum of the air flow
into the reducing zone and the air flow into the oxidation zone.

(2) Standard for nitrogen oxides. (i) When fossil fuel alone is combusted, the NOx emission
limit for fossil fuel in §60.44b(a) applies.

(ii) When natural gas and chemical by-product waste are simultaneously combusted, the NOx
emission limit is 289 ng/J (0.67 1b/MMBtu) and a maximum of 81 percent of the total inlet air
provided for combustion shall be provided to the reducing zone of the C.AOG incinerator.

(3) Emission monitoring. (i) The percent of total inlet air provided to the reducing zone shall be
determined at least every 15 minutes by measuring the air flow of all the air entering the
reducing zone and the air flow of all the air entering the oxidation zone, and compliance with the
percentage of total inlet air that is provided to the reducing zone shall be determined on a 3-hour
average basis.

(ii) The NOx emission limit shall be determined by the compliance and performance test methods
and procedures for NOx in §60.46b(i).

(iii) The monitoring of the NOx emission limit shall be performed in accordance with §60.48b.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-118



(4) Reporting and recordkeeping requirements. (i) The owner or operator of the C.AOG
incinerator shall submit a report on any excursions from the limits required by paragraph (a)(2)
of this section to the Administrator with the quarterly report required by paragraph (i) of this
section.

(ii) The owner or operator of the C.AOG incinerator shall keep records of the monitoring
required by paragraph (a)(3) of this section for a period of 2 years following the date of such
record.

(iii) The owner of operator of the C.AOG incinerator shall perform all the applicable reporting
and recordkeeping requirements of this section.

(t) Facility-specific NOx standard for Rohm and Haas Kentucky Incorporated's Boiler No. 100
located in Louisville, Kentucky:

(1) Definitions.

Air ratio control damper is defined as the part of the low NOx burner that is adjusted to control
the split of total combustion air delivered to the reducing and oxidation portions of the
combustion flame.

Flue gas recirculation line is defined as the part of Boiler No. 100 that recirculates a portion of
the boiler flue gas back into the combustion air.

(2) Standard for nitrogen oxides. (1) When fossil fuel alone is combusted, the NOx emission
limit for fossil fuel in §60.44b(a) applies.

(i1) When fossil fuel and chemical by-product waste are simultaneously combusted, the NOx
emission limit is 473 ng/J (1.1 1b/MMBtu), and the air ratio control damper tee handle shall be at
a minimum of 5 inches (12.7 centimeters) out of the boiler, and the flue gas recirculation line
shall be operated at a minimum of 10 percent open as indicated by its valve opening position
indicator.

(3) Emission monitoring for nitrogen oxides. (i) The air ratio control damper tee handle setting
and the flue gas recirculation line valve opening position indicator setting shall be recorded
during each 8-hour operating shift.

(i1) The NOx emission limit shall be determined by the compliance and performance test methods
and procedures for NOx in §60.46b.

(iii) The monitoring of the NOx emission limit shall be performed in accordance with §60.48b.
(4) Reporting and recordkeeping requirements. (1) Thé owner or operator of Boiler No. 100

shall submit a report on any excursions from the limits required by paragraph (b)(2) of this
section to the Administrator with the quarterly report required by §60.49b(i).

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-119



(i1) The owner or operator of Boiler No. 100 shall keep records of the monitoring required by
paragraph (b)(3) of this section for a period of 2 years following the date of such record.

(iii) The owner of operator of Boiler No. 100 shall perform all the applicable reporting and
recordkeeping requirements of §60.49b.

(u) Site-specific standard for Merck & Co., Inc.'s Stonewall Plant in Elkton, Virginia. (1) This
paragraph (u) applies only to the pharmaceutical manufacturing facility, commonly referred to as
the Stonewall Plant, located at Route 340 South, in Elkton, Virginia (“site”) and only to the
natural gas-fired boilers installed as part of the powerhouse conversion required pursuant to 40
CFR 52.2454(g). The requirements of this paragraph shall apply, and the requirements of
§8§60.40b through 60.49b(t) shall not apply, to the natural gas-fired boilers installed pursuant to
40 CFR 52.2454(g).

(i) The site shall equip the natural gas-fired boilers with low NOx technology.

(i) The site shall install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a continuous monitoring and recording
system for measuring NOx emissions discharged to the atmosphere and opacity using a
continuous emissions monitoring system or a predictive emissions monitoring system.

(iii) Within 180 days of the completion of the powerhouse conversion, as required by 40 CFR
52.2454, the site shall perform a performance test to quantify criteria pollutant emissions.

(2) [Reserved]

(v) The owner or operator of an affected facility may submit electronic quarterly reports for SO,
and/or NOx and/or opacity in lieu of submitting the written reports required under paragraphs
(h), (1), (§), (k) or (1) of this section. The format of each quarterly electronic report shall be
coordinated with the permitting authority. The electronic report(s) shall be submitted no later
than 30 days after the end of the calendar quarter and shall be accompanied by a certification
statement from the owner or operator, indicating whether compliance with the applicable
emission standards and minimum data requirements of this subpart was achieved during the
reporting period. Before submitting reports in the electronic format, the owner or operator shall
coordinate with the permitting authority to obtain their agreement to submit reports in this
alternative format.

(w) The reporting period for the reports required under this subpart is each 6 month period. All
reports shall be submitted to the Administrator and shall be postmarked by the 30th day
following the end of the reporting period.

(x) Facility-specific NOy standard for Weyerhaeuser Company's No. 2 Power Boiler located in
New Bern, North Carolina:

(1) Standard for nitrogen oxides. (i) When fossil fuel alone is combusted, the NOx emission
limit for fossil fuel in §60.44b(a) applies.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-120



(i1) When fossil fuel and chemical by-product waste are simultaneously combusted, the NOx
emission limit is 215 ng/J (0.5 [b/MMBtu).

(2) Emission monitoring for nitrogen oxides. (i) The NOx emissions shall be determined by the
compliance and performance test methods and procedures for NOx in §60.46b.

(ii) The monitoring of the NOx emissions shall be performed in accordance with §60.48b.

(3) Reporting and recordkeeping requirements. (i) The owner or operator of the No. 2 Power
Boiler shall submit a report on any excursions from the limits required by paragraph (x)(2) of
this section to the Administrator with the quarterly report required by §60.49b(i).

(it) The owner or operator of the No. 2 Power Boiler shall keep records of the monitoring
required by paragraph (x)(3) of this section for a period of 2 years following the date of such

record.

(iii) The owner or operator of the No. 2 Power Boiler shall perform all the applicable reporting
and recordkeeping requirements of §60.49b.

(y) Facility-specific NOx standard for INEOS USA's AOGI located in Lima, Ohio:

(1) Standard for NOx. (i) When fossil fuel alone is combusted, the NOx emission limit for fossil
fuel in §60.44b(a) applies.

(ii) When fossil fuel and chemical byproduct/waste are simultaneously combusted, the NOx
emission limit is 645 ng/J (1.5 Ib/MMBtu).

(2) Emission monitoring for NOx. (i) The NOx emissions shall be determined by the compliance
and performance test methods and procedures for NOx in §60.46b.

(ii) The monitoring of the NOx emissions shall be performed in accordance with §60.48b.
(3) Reporting and recordkeeping requirements. (i) The owner or operator of the AOGI shall
submit a report on any excursions from the limits required by paragraph (y)(2) of this section to

the Administrator with the quarterly report required by paragraph (i) of this section.

(i) The owner or operator of the AOGI shall keep records of the monitoring required by
paragraph (y)(3) of this section for a period of 2 years following the date of such record.

(iii) The owner or operator of the AOGI shall perform all the applicable reporting and
recordkeeping requirements of this section.

[72 FR 32742, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5089, Jan. 28, 2009]

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, D¢ C-121



Title 40: Protection of Environment
PART 60—STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR NEW STATIONARY SOURCES

Subpart De—Standards of Performance for Small Industrial-Commercial-Institutional
Steam Generating Units

Source: 72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, unless otherwise noted.
§ 60.40c Applicability and delegation of authority.

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (d), (e), (f), and (g) of this section, the affected facility to
which this subpart applies is each steam generating unit for which construction, modification, or
reconstruction is commenced after June 9, 1989, and that has a maximum design heat input
capacity of 29 megawatts (MW) (100 million British thermal units per hour (MMBtu/hr)) or less,
but greater than or equal to 2.9 MW (10 MMBtu/hr).

(b) In delegating implementation and enforcement authority to a State under section 111(c) of the
Clean Air Act, §60.48c(a)(4) shall be retained by the Administrator and not transferred to a State.

(c) Steam generating units that meet the applicability requirements in paragraph (a) of this
section are not subject to the sulfur dioxide (SO;) or particulate matter (PM) emission limits,
performance testing requirements, or monitoring requirements under this subpart (§§60.42c,
60.43c, 60.44c, 60.45c, 60.46¢, or 60.47¢) during periods of combustion research, as defined in
§60.41c.

(d) Any temporary change to an existing steam generating unit for the purpose of conducting
combustion research is not considered a modification under §60.14.

(e) Heat recovery steam generators that are associated with combined cycle gas turbines and
meet the applicability requirements of subpart KKKK of this part are not subject to this subpart.
This subpart will continue to apply to all other heat recovery steam generators that are capable of
combusting more than or equal to 2.9 MW (10 MMBtwhr) heat input of fossil fuel but less than
or equal to 29 MW (100 MMBtuw/hr) heat input of fossil fuel. If the heat recovery steam
generator is subject to this subpart, only emissions resulting from combustion of fuels in the
steam generating unit are subject to this subpart. (The gas turbine emissions are subject to
subpart GG or KKKK, as applicable, of this part).

(f) Any facility covered by subpart AAAA of this part is not subject by this subpart.

(g) Any facility covered by an EPA approved State or Federal section 111(d)/129 plan
implementing subpart BBBB of this part is not subject by this subpart.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5090, Jan. 28, 2009]

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-122



§ 60.41c Definitions.

As used in this subpart, all terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given them in the
Clean Air Act and in subpart A of this part.

Annual capacity factor means the ratio between the actual heat input to a steam generating unit
from an individual fuel or combination of fuels during a period of 12 consecutive calendar
months and the potential heat input to the steam generating unit from all fuels had the steam
generating unit been operated for 8,760 hours during that 12-month period at the maximum
design heat input capacity. In the case of steam generating units that are rented or leased, the
actual heat input shall be determined based on the combined heat input from all operations of the
affected facility during a period of 12 consecutive calendar months.

Coal means all solid fuels classified as anthracite, bituminous, subbituminous, or lignite by the
American Society of Testing and Materials in ASTM D388 (incorporated by reference, see
§60.17), coal refuse, and petroleum coke. Coal-derived synthetic fuels derived from coal for the
purposes of creating useful heat, including but not limited to solvent refined coal, gasified coal
not meeting the definition of natural gas, coal-oil mixtures, and coal-water mixtures, are also
included in this definition for the purposes of this subpart.

Coal refuse means any by-product of coal mining or coal cleaning operations with an ash content
greater than 50 percent (by weight) and a heating value less than 13,900 kilojoules per kilogram
(kJ/kg) (6,000 Btu per pound (Btw/lb) on a dry basis.

Cogeneration steam generating unit means a steam generating unit that simultaneously produces
both electrical (or mechanical) and thermal energy from the same primary energy source.

Combined cycle system means a system in which a separate source (such as a stationary gas
turbine, internal combustion engine, or kiln) provides exhaust gas to a steam generating unit.

Combustion research means the experimental firing of any fuel or combination of fuels in a
steam generating unit for the purpose of conducting research and development of more efficient
combustion or more effective prevention or control of air pollutant emissions from combustion,
provided that, during these periods of research and development, the heat generated is not used
for any purpose other than preheating combustion air for use by that steam generating unit (i.e.,
the heat generated is released to the atmosphere without being used for space heating, process
heating, driving pumps, preheating combustion air for other units, generating electricity, or any
other purpose).

Conventional technology means wet flue gas desulfurization technology, dry flue gas

desulfurization technology, atmospheric fluidized bed combustion technology, and oil
hydrodesulfurization technology.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-123



Distillate oil means fuel oil that complies with the specifications for fuel oil numbers 1 or 2, as
defined by the American Society for Testing and Materials in ASTM D396 (incorporated by
reference, see §60.17) or diesel fuel oil numbers 1 or 2, as defined by the American Society for
Testing and Materials in ASTM D975 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17).

Dry flue gas desulfurization technology means a SO, control system that is located between the
steam generating unit and the exhaust vent or stack, and that removes sulfur oxides from the
combustion gases of the steam generating unit by contacting the combustion gases with an
alkaline reagent and water, whether introduced separately or as a premixed slurry or solution and
forming a dry powder material. This definition includes devices where the dry powder material
is subsequently converted to another form. Alkaline reagents used in dry flue gas desulfurization
systems include, but are not limited to, lime and sodium compounds.

Duct burner means a device that combusts fuel and that is placed in the exhaust duct from
another source (such as a stationary gas turbine, internal combustion engine, kiln, etc.) to allow
the firing of additional fuel to heat the exhaust gases before the exhaust gases enter a steam
generating unit.

Emerging technology means any SO; control system that is not defined as a conventional
technology under this section, and for which the owner or operator of the affected facility has
received approval from the Administrator to operate as an emerging technology under

§60.48c(a)(4).

Federally enforceable means all limitations and conditions that are enforceable by the
Administrator, including the requirements of 40 CFR parts 60 and 61, requirements within any
applicable State implementation plan, and any permit requirements established under 40 CFR
52.21 or under 40 CFR 51.18 and 51.24.

Fluidized bed combustion technology means a device wherein fuel is distributed onto a bed (or
series of beds) of limestone aggregate (or other sorbent materials) for combustion; and these
materials are forced upward in the device by the flow of combustion air and the gaseous products
of combustion. Fluidized bed combustion technology includes, but is not limited to, bubbling
bed units and circulating bed units.

Fuel pretreatment means a process that removes a portion of the sulfur in a fuel before
combustion of the fuel in a steam generating unit.

Heat input means heat derived from combustion of fuel in a steam generating unit and does not
include the heat derived from preheated combustion air, recirculated flue gases, or exhaust gases

from other sources (such as stationary gas turbines, internal combustion engines, and kilns).

Heat transfer medium means any material that is used to transfer heat from one point to another
point.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-124



Maximum design heat input capacity means the ability of a steam generating unit to combust a
stated maximum amount of fuel (or combination of fuels) on a steady state basis as determined
by the physical design and characteristics of the steam generating unit.

Natural gas means:

(1) A naturally occurring mixture of hydrocarbon and nonhydrocarbon gases found in geologic
formations beneath the earth's surface, of which the principal constituent is methane; or

(2) Liquefied petroleum (LP) gas, as defined by the American Society for Testing and Materials
in ASTM D1835 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17); or

(3) A mixture of hydrocarbons that maintains a gaseous state at ISO conditions. Additionally,
natural gas must either be composed of at least 70 percent methane by volume or have a gross
calorific value between 34 and 43 megajoules (MJ) per dry standard cubic meter (910 and 1,150
Btu per dry standard cubic foot).

Noncontinental area means the State of Hawaii, the Virgin Islands, Guam, American Samoa, the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, or the Northern Mariana Islands.

Oil means crude oil or petroleum, or a liquid fuel derived from crude oil or petroleum, including
distillate oil and residual oil.

Potential sulfur dioxide emission rate means the theoretical SO, emissions (nanograms per joule
(ng/J) or Ib/MMBtu heat input) that would result from combusting fuel in an uncleaned state and
without using emission control systems.

Process heater means a device that is primarily used to heat a material to initiate or promote a
chemical reaction in which the material participates as a reactant or catalyst.

Residual oil means crude oil, fuel oil that does not comply with the specifications under the
definition of distillate oil, and all fuel oil numbers 4, 5, and 6, as defined by the American
Society for Testing and Materials in ASTM D396 (incorporated by reference, see §60.17).

Steam generating unit means a device that combusts any fuel and produces steam or heats water
or heats any heat transfer medium. This term includes any duct burner that combusts fuel and is
part of a combined cycle system. This term does not include process heaters as defined in this
subpart.

Steam generating unit operating day means a 24-hour period between 12:00 midnight and the
following midnight during which any fuel is combusted at any time in the steam generating unit.
It is not necessary for fuel to be combusted continuously for the entire 24-hour period.

Wet flue gas desulfurization technology means an SO, control system that is located between the

steam generating unit and the exhaust vent or stack, and that removes sulfur oxides from the
combustion gases of the steam generating unit by contacting the combustion gases with an

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-125



alkaline slurry or solution and forming a liquid material. This definition includes devices where
the liquid material is subsequently converted to another form. Alkaline reagents used in wet flue
gas desulfurization systems include, but are not limited to, lime, limestone, and sodium
compounds.

Wet scrubber system means any emission control device that mixes an aqueous stream or slurry
with the exhaust gases from a steam generating unit to control emissions of PM or SO,.

Wood means wood, wood residue, bark, or any derivative fuel or residue thereof, in any form,
including but not limited to sawdust, sanderdust, wood chips, scraps, slabs, millings, shavings,
and processed pellets made from wood or other forest residues.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5090, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.42¢ Standard for sulfur dioxide (SO,).

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (b), (c), and (e) of this section, on and after the date on
which the performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever
date comes first, the owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts only coal shall
neither: cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from the affected facility any gases that
contain SO; in excess of 87 ng/J (0.20 1lb/MMBtu) heat input or 10 percent (0.10) of the potential
SO, emission rate (90 percent reduction), nor cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from
the affected facility any gases that contain SO, in excess of 520 ng/J (1.2 1b/MMBtu) heat input.
If coal is combusted with other fuels, the affected facility shall neither: cause to be discharged
into the atmosphere from the affected facility any gases that contain SO; in excess of 87 ng/J
(0.20 Ib/MMBtu) heat input or 10 percent (0.10) of the potential SO, emission rate (90 percent
reduction), nor cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from the affected facility any gases
that contain SO, in excess of the emission limit is determined pursuant to paragraph (e)(2) of this
section.

(b) Except as provided in paragraphs (c) and (e) of this section, on and after the date on which
the performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date
comes first, the owner or operator of an affected facility that:

(1) Combusts only coal refuse alone in a fluidized bed combustion steam generating unit shall
neither:

(i) Cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain
SO, in excess of 87 ng/J (0.20 Ib/MMBtu) heat input or 20 percent (0.20) of the potential SO,
emission rate (80 percent reduction); nor

(i1) Cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain
SO, in excess of SO in excess of 520 ng/J (1.2 Ib/MMBtu) heat input. If coal is fired with coal
refuse, the affected facility subject to paragraph (a) of this section. If oil or any other fuel
(except coal) is fired with coal refuse, the affected facility is subject to the 87 ng/J (0.20
1b/MMBtu) heat input SO; emissions limit or the 90 percent SO, reduction requirement specified

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-126



in paragraph (a) of this section and the emission limit is determined pursuant to paragraph (¢)(2)
of this section.

(2) Combusts only coal and that uses an emerging technology for the control of SO, emissions
shall neither:

(i) Cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain
SO, in excess of 50 percent (0.50) of the potential SO, emission rate (50 percent reduction); nor

(ii) Cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain
SO, in excess of 260 ng/J (0.60 Ib/MMBtu) heat input. If coal is combusted with other fuels, the
affected facility is subject to the 50 percent SO, reduction requirement specified in this paragraph
and the emission limit determined pursuant to paragraph (e)(2) of this section.

(c) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that combusts coal, alone or in combination with any other fuel, and is listed in paragraphs
(c)(1), (2), (3), or (4) of this section shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that
affected facility any gases that contain SO, in excess of the emission limit determined pursuant to
paragraph (e)(2) of this section. Percent reduction requirements are not applicable to affected
facilities under paragraphs (c)(1), (2), (3), or (4).

(1) Affected facilities that have a heat input capacity of 22 MW (75 MMBtu/hr) or less.

(2) Affected facilities that have an annual capacity for coal of 55 percent (0.55) or less and are
subject to a federally enforceable requirement limiting operation of the affected facility to an
annual capacity factor for coal of 55 percent (0.55) or less.

(3) Affected facilities located in a noncontinental area.

(4) Affected facilities that combust coal in a duct burner as part of a combined cycle system
where 30 percent (0.30) or less of the heat entering the steam generating unit is from combustion
of coal in the duct burner and 70 percent (0.70) or more of the heat entering the steam generating
unit is from exhaust gases entering the duct burner.

(d) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that combusts oil shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any
gases that contain SO, in excess of 215 ng/J (0.50 Ib/MMBtu) heat input; or, as an alternative, no
owner or operator of an affected facility that combusts oil shall combust oil in the affected
facility that contains greater than 0.5 weight percent sulfur. The percent reduction requirements
are not applicable to affected facilities under this paragraph.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-127



(e) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that combusts coal, oil, or coal and oil with any other fuel shall cause to be discharged into the
atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain SO, in excess of the following:

(1) The percent of potential SO, emission rate or numerical SO; emission rate required under
paragraph (a) or (b)(2) of this section, as applicable, for any affected facility that

(i) Combusts coal in combination with any other fuel;
(i1) Has a heat input capacity greater than 22 MW (75 MMBtwhr); and
(iii) Has an annual capacity factor for coal greater than 55 percent (0.55); and

(2) The emission limit determined according to the following formula for any affected facility
that combusts coal, oil, or coal and oil with any other fuel:

K&HA +KNHB +K5Ha)
(Hc +H\ +Hn)

E,=(

Where:

Es= SO, emission limit, expressed in ng/J or Ib/MMBtu heat input;
Ka= 520 ng/J (1.2 Ib/MMBtu),

Ky= 260 ng/J (0.60 Ib/MMBtu);

Ke=215 ng/J (0.50 Ib/MMBtu);

H,= Heat input from the combustion of coal, except coal combusted in an affected facility
subject to paragraph (b)(2) of this section, in Joules (J) [MMBtu];

Hp= Heat input from the combustion of coal in an affected facility subject to paragraph (b)(2) of
this section, in J (MMBtu); and

H.= Heat input from the combustion of oil, in ] (MMBtu).

(f) Reduction in the potential SO, emission rate through fuel pretreatment is not credited toward
the percent reduction requirement under paragraph (b)(2) of this section unless:

(1) Fuel pretreatment results in a 50 percent (0.50) or greater reduction in the potential SO,
emission rate; and

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-128



(2) Emissions from the pretreated fuel (without either combustion or post-combustion SO,
control) are equal to or less than the emission limits specified under paragraph (b)(2) of this
section.

(g) Except as provided in paragraph (h) of this section, compliance with the percent reduction
requirements, fuel oil sulfur limits, and emission limits of this section shall be determined on a
30-day rolling average basis.

(h) For affected facilities listed under paragraphs (h)(1), (2), or (3) of this section, compliance
with the emission limits or fuel oil sulfur limits under this section may be determined based on a
certification from the fuel supplier, as described under §60.48c(f), as applicable.

(1) Distillate oil-fired affected facilities with heat input capacities between 2.9 and 29 MW (10
and 100 MMBtw/hr).

(2) Residual oil-fired affected facilities with heat input capacities between 2.9 and 8.7 MW (10
and 30 MMBtuw/hr).

(3) Coal-fired facilities with heat input capacities between 2.9 and 8.7 MW (10 and 30
MMBtu/hr).

(i) The SO, emission limits, fuel oil sulfur limits, and percent reduction requirements under this
section apply at all times, including periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction.

(j) For affected facilities located in noncontinental areas and affected facilities complying with
the percent reduction standard, only the heat input supplied to the affected facility from the
combustion of coal and oil is counted under this section. No credit is provided for the heat input
to the affected facility from wood or other fuels or for heat derived from exhaust gases from
other sources, such as stationary gas turbines, internal combustion engines, and kilns.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5090, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.43¢ Standard for particulate matter (PM).

(a) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification on or before February 28, 2005,
that combusts coal or combusts mixtures of coal with other fuels and has a heat input capacity of
8.7 MW (30 MMBtu/hr) or greater, shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that
affected facility any gases that contain PM in excess of the following emission limits:

(1) 22 ng/J (0.051 1b/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility combusts only coal, or combusts

coal with other fuels and has an annual capacity factor for the other fuels of 10 percent (0.10) or
less.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-129



(2) 43 ng/J (0.10 1b/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility combusts coal with other fuels, has
an annual capacity factor for the other fuels greater than 10 percent (0.10), and is subject to a
federally enforceable requirement limiting operation of the affected facility to an annual capacity
factor greater than 10 percent (0.10) for fuels other than coal.

(b) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification on or before February 28, 2005,
that combusts wood or combusts mixtures of wood with other fuels (except coal) and has a heat
input capacity of 8.7 MW (30 MMBtwhr) or greater, shall cause to be discharged into the
atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain PM in excess of the following
emissions limits:

(1) 43 ng/J (0.10 Ib/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility has an annual capacity factor for
wood greater than 30 percent (0.30); or

(2) 130 ng/J (0.30 Ib/MMBtu) heat input if the affected facility has an annual capacity factor for
wood of 30 percent (0.30) or less and is subject to a federally enforceable requirement limiting
operation of the affected facility to an annual capacity factor for wood of 30 percent (0.30) or
less.

(c) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that can combust coal, wood, or oil and has a heat input capacity of 8.7 MW (30 MMBtu/hr) or
greater shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that
exhibit greater than 20 percent opacity (6-minute average), except for one 6-minute period per
hour of not more than 27 percent opacity. Owners and operators of an affected facility that elect
to install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a continuous emissions monitoring system (CEMS) for
measuring PM emissions according to the requirements of this subpart and are subject to a
federally enforceable PM limit of 0.030 1b/MMBtu or less are exempt from the opacity standard
specified in this paragraph.

(d) The PM and opacity standards under this section apply at all times, except during periods of
startup, shutdown, or malfunction.

(e)(1) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that commences construction, reconstruction, or modification after February 28, 2005, and that
combusts coal, oil, wood, a mixture of these fuels, or a mixture of these fuels with any other
fuels and has a heat input capacity of 8.7 MW (30 MMBtu/hr) or greater shall cause to be
discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that contain PM in excess of
13 ng/J (0.030 Ib/MMBtu) heat input, except as provided in paragraphs (e)(2), (€)(3), and (e)(4)
of this section.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-130



(2) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (e)(1) of this section, the owner or
operator of an affected facility for which modification commenced after February 28, 2005, may
elect to meet the requirements of this paragraph. On and after the date on which the initial
performance test is completed or required to be completed under §60.8, whichever date comes
first, no owner or operator of an affected facility that commences modification after February 28,
2005, shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that
contain PM in excess of both:

(i) 22 ng/J (0.051 1b/MMBtu) heat input derived from the combustion of coal, oil, wood, a
mixture of these fuels, or a mixture of these fuels with any other fuels; and

(ii) 0.2 percent of the combustion concentration (99.8 percent reduction) when combusting coal,
oil, wood, a mixture of these fuels, or a mixture of these fuels with any other fuels.

(3) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, no owner or operator of an affected facility
that commences modification after February 28, 2005, and that combusts over 30 percent wood
(by heat input) on an annual basis and has a heat input capacity of 8.7 MW (30 MMBtu/hr) or
greater shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from that affected facility any gases that
contain PM in excess of 43 ng/J (0.10 Ib/MMBtu) heat input.

(4) On and after the date on which the initial performance test is completed or is required to be
completed under §60.8, whichever date comes first, an owner or operator of an affected facility
that commences construction, reconstruction, or modification after February 28, 2005, and that
combusts only oil that contains no more than 0.50 weight percent sulfur or a mixture of 0.50
weight percent sulfur oil with other fuels not subject to a PM standard under §60.43c and not
using-a post-combustion technology (except a wet scrubber) to reduce PM or SO, emissions is
not subject to the PM limit in this section.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5091, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.44c Compliance and performance test methods and procedures for sulfur dioxide.

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (g) and (h) of this section and §60.8(b), performance tests
required under §60.8 shall be conducted following the procedures specified in paragraphs (b),
(c), (d), (e), and (f) of this section, as applicable. Section 60.8(f) does not apply to this section.
The 30-day notice required in §60.8(d) applies only to the initial performance test unless
otherwise specified by the Administrator.

(b) The initial performance test required under §60.8 shall be conducted over 30 consecutive
operating days of the steam generating unit. Compliance with the percent reduction requirements
and SO, emission limits under §60.42¢ shall be determined using a 30-day average. The first
operating day included in the initial performance test shall be scheduled within 30 days after
achieving the maximum production rate at which the affect facility will be operated, but not later
than 180 days after the initial startup of the facility. The steam generating unit load during the

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, D¢ C-131



30-day period does not have to be the maximum design heat input capacity, but must be
representative of future operating conditions.

(c) After the initial performance test required under paragraph (b) of this section and §60.8,
compliance with the percent reduction requirements and SO, emission limits under §60.42c is
based on the average percent reduction and the average SO, emission rates for 30 consecutive
steam generating unit operating days. A separate performance test is completed at the end of
each steam generating unit operating day, and a new 30-day average percent reduction and SO,
emission rate are calculated to show compliance with the standard.

(d) If only coal, only oil, or a mixture of coal and oil is combusted in an affected facility, the
procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part are used to determine the hourly SO,
emission rate (Ey,) and the 30-day average SO, emission rate (E,,). The hourly averages used to
compute the 30-day averages are obtained from the CEMS. Method 19 of appendix A of this part
shall be used to calculate E,, when using daily fuel sampling or Method 6B of appendix A of this
part.

(e) If coal, oil, or coal and oil are combusted with other fuels:

(1) An adjusted Ej, (Eno0) is used in Equation 19—19 of Method 19 of appendix A of this part to
compute the adjusted E,, (Ea00). The Epq0 is computed using the following formula:

Ey, -E,(1-X
Eb0= o W( ))
X]

Where:
Eno0 = Adjusted Ep,, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu);
Eno= Hourly SO, emission rate, ng/J (1Ib/MMBtu);

Ew= SO, concentration in fuels other than coal and oil combusted in the affected facility, as
determined by fuel sampling and analysis procedures in Method 9 of appendix A of this part,
ng/J (Ib/MMBtu). The value E,, for each fuel lot is used for each hourly average during the time
that the lot is heing combusted. The owner or operator does not have to measure E,, if the owner
or operator elects to assume E,= 0.

Xi= Fraction of the total heat input from fuel combustion derived from coal and oil, as
determined by applicable procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part.

(2) The owner or operator of an affected facility that qualifies under the provisions of §60.42c(c)
or (d) (where percent reduction is not required) does not have to measure the parameters E,, or Xi
if the owner or operator of the affected facility elects to measure emission rates of the coal or oil
using the fuel sampling and analysis procedures under Method 19 of appendix A of this part.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-132



(f) Affected facilities subject to the percent reduction requirements under §60.42¢c(a) or (b) shall
determine compliance with the SO, emission limits under §60.42¢ pursuant to paragraphs (d) or
(e) of this section, and shall determine compliance with the percent reduction requirements using
the following procedures:

(1) If only coal is combusted, the percent of potential SO, emission rate is computed using the
following formula:

%R
%P, =100]1- ¢ |[1 - %Re
100 100

Where:
%P¢= Potential SO, emission rate, in percent;

%Rg= SO, removal efficiency of the control device as determined by Method 19 of appendix A
of this part, in percent; and

%R = SO, removal efficiency of fuel pretreatment as determined by Method 19 of appendix A of
this part, in percent.

(2) If coal, oil, or coal and oil are combusted with other fuels, the same procedures required in
paragraph (f)(1) of this section are used, except as provided for in the following:

(i) To compute the %Ps, an adjusted %R, (%6R,0) is computed from Eg,0 from paragraph (e)(1) of
this section and an adjusted average SO, inlet rate (E,i0) using the following formula:

%R‘U=IUU[I-E“’]

Where:

%Rg0 = Adjusted %R, in percent;

Ea0 = Adjusted E,,, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu); and

E.io = Adjusted average SO, inlet rate, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu).

(ii) To compute Ejo, an adjusted hourly SO, inlet rate (Enio) is used. The Eyjo is computed using
the following formula:

Ex-E,(1-%,;)

E,.o=
ki %,

Where:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, D¢ C-133



Enio = Adjusted Ey;, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu);
Eni= Hourly SO; inlet rate, ng/J (Ib/MMBtu);

Ew= SO; concentration in fuels other than coal and oil combusted in the affected facility, as
determined by fuel sampling and analysis procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part,
ng/J (Ib/MMBtu). The value E,, for each fuel lot is used for each hourly average during the time
that the lot is being combusted. The owner or operator does not have to measure E,, if the owner
or operator elects to assume E,= 0; and

Xy= Fraction of the total heat input from fuel combustion derived from coal and oil, as
determined by applicable procedures in Method 19 of appendix A of this part.

(g) For oil-fired affected facilities where the owner or operator seeks to demonstrate compliance
with the fuel oil sulfur limits under §60.42c based on shipment fuel sampling, the initial
performance test shall consist of sampling and analyzing the oil in the initial tank of oil to be
fired in the steam generating unit to demonstrate that the oil contains 0.5 weight percent sulfur or
less. Thereafter, the owner or operator of the affected facility shall sample the oil in the fuel tank
after each new shipment of oil is received, as described under §60.46¢c(d)(2).

(h) For affected facilities subject to §60.42¢c(h)(1), (2), or (3) where the owner or operator seeks
to demonstrate compliance with the SO, standards based on fuel supplier certification, the
performance test shall consist of the certification from the fuel supplier, as described in
§60.48c(f), as applicable.

(i) The owner or operator of an affected facility seeking to demonstrate compliance with the SO,
standards under §60.42c(c)(2) shall demonstrate the maximum design heat input capacity of the
steam generating unit by operating the steam generating unit at this capacity for 24 hours. This
demonstration shall be made during the initial performance test, and a subsequent demonstration
may be requested at any other time. If the demonstrated 24-hour average firing rate for the
affected facility is less than the maximum design heat input capacity stated by the manufacturer
of the affected facility, the demonstrated 24-hour average firing rate shall be used to determine
the annual capacity factor for the affected facility; otherwise, the maximum design heat input
capacity provided by the manufacturer shall be used.

(j) The owner or operator of an affected facility shall use all valid SO, emissions data in
calculating %P and Ej, under paragraphs (d), (e), or (f) of this section, as applicable, whether or
not the minimum emissions data requirements under §60.46¢(f) are achieved. All valid emissions
data, including valid data collected during periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction, shall
be used in calculating %P or Ejp, pursuant to paragraphs (d), (€), or (f) of this section, as
applicable.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5091, Jan. 28, 2009]

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-134



§ 60.45¢ Compliance and performance test methods and procedures for particulate
matter.

(a) The owner or operator of an affected facility subject to the PM and/or opacity standards under
§60.43c shall conduct an initial performance test as required under §60.8, and shall conduct
subsequent performance tests as requested by the Administrator, to determine compliance with
the standards using the following procedures and reference methods, except as specified in
paragraph (c) of this section.

(1) Method 1 of appendix A of this part shall be used to select the sampling site and the number
of traverse sampling points.

(2) Method 3A or 3B of appendix A-2 of this part shall be used for gas analysis when applying
Method 5 or 5B of appendix A-3 of this part or 17 of appendix A—6 of this part.

(3) Method 5, 5B, or 17 of appendix A of this part shall be used to measure the concentration of
PM as follows:

(i) Method 5 of appendix A of this part may be used only at affected facilities without wet
scrubber systems.

(i1) Method 17 of appendix A of this part may be used at affected facilities with or without wet
scrubber systems provided the stack gas temperature does not exceed a temperature of 160 °C
(320 °F). The procedures of Sections 8.1 and 11.1 of Method 5B of appendix A of this part may
be used in Method 17 of appendix A of this part only if Method 17 of appendix A of this part is
used in conjunction with a wet scrubber system. Method 17 of appendix A of this part shall not
be used in conjunction with a wet scrubber system if the effluent is saturated or laden with water
droplets.

(iii) Method 5B of appendix A of this part may be used in conjunction with a wet scrubber
system.

(4) The sampling time for each run shall be at least 120 minutes and the minimum sampling
volume shall be 1.7 dry standard cubic meters (dscm) [60 dry standard cubic feet (dscf)] except
that smaller sampling times or volumes may be approved by the Administrator when necessitated
by process variables or other factors.

(5) For Method 5 or 5B of appendix A of this part, the temperature of the sample gas in the probe
and filter holder shall be monitored and maintained at 160 £14 °C (320+25 °F).

(6) For determination of PM emissions, an oxygen (O,) or carbon dioxide (CO;) measurement
shall be obtained simultaneously with each run of Method 5, 5B, or 17 of appendix A of this part
by traversing the duct at the same sampling location.

(7) For each run using Method 5, 5B, or 17 of appendix A of this part, the emission rates
expressed in ng/J (Ib/MMBtu) heat input shall be determined using;:

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-135



(1) The O, or CO; measurements and PM measurements obtained under this section, (ii) The dry
basis F factor, and

(iii) The dry basis emission rate calculation procedure contained in Method 19 of appendix A of
this part.

(8) Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part shall be used for determining the opacity of stack
emissions.

(b) The owner or operator of an affected facility seeking to demonstrate compliance with the PM
standards under §60.43c(b)(2) shall demonstrate the maximum design heat input capacity of the
steam generating unit by operating the steam generating unit at this capacity for 24 hours. This
demonstration shall be made during the initial performance test, and a subsequent demonstration
may be requested at any other time. If the demonstrated 24-hour average firing rate for the
affected facility is less than the maximum design heat input capacity stated by the manufacturer
of the affected facility, the demonstrated 24-hour average firing rate shall be used to determine
the annual capacity factor for the affected facility; otherwise, the maximum design heat input
capacity provided by the manufacturer shall be used.

(c) In place of PM testing with Method 5 or 5B of appendix A—3 of this part or Method 17 of
appendix A—6 of this part, an owner or operator may elect to install, calibrate, maintain, and
operate a CEMS for monitoring PM emissions discharged to the atmosphere and record the
output of the system. The owner or operator of an affected facility who elects to continuously
monitor PM emissions instead of conducting performance testing using Method 5 or 5B of
appendix A-3 of this part or Method 17 of appendix A—6 of this part shall install, calibrate,
maintain, and operate a CEMS and shall comply with the requirements specified in paragraphs
(c)(1) through (c)(14) of this section.

(1) Notify the Administrator 1 month before starting use of the system.
(2) Notify the Administrator 1 month before stopping use of the system.

(3) The monitor shall be installed, evaluated, and operated in accordance with §60.13 of subpart
A of this part.

(4) The initial performance evaluation shall be completed no later than 180 days after the date of
initial startup of the affected facility, as specified under §60.8 of subpart A of this part or within
180 days of notification to the Administrator of use of CEMS if the owner or operator was
previously determining compliance by Method 5, 5B, or 17 of appendix A of this part
performance tests, whichever is later.

(5) The owner or operator of an affected facility shall conduct an initial performance test for PM
emissions as required under §60.8 of subpart A of this part. Compliance with the PM emission
limit shall be determined by using the CEMS specified in paragraph (d) of this section to
measure PM and calculating a 24-hour block arithmetic average emission concentration using
EPA Reference Method 19 of appendix A of this part, section 4.1.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-136



(6) Compliance with the PM emission limit shall be determined based on the 24-hour daily
(block) average of the hourly arithmetic average emission concentrations using CEMS outlet
data.

(7) At a minimum, valid CEMS hourly averages shall be obtained as specified in paragraph
(c)(7)(i) of this section for 75 percent of the total operating hours per 30-day rolling average.

(i) At least two data points per hour shall be used to calculate each 1-hour arithmetic average.
(ii) [Reserved]

(8) The 1-hour arithmetic averages required under paragraph (c)(7) of this section shall be
expressed in ng/J or Ib/MMBtu heat input and shall be used to calculate the boiler operating day
daily arithmetic average emission concentrations. The 1-hour arithmetic averages shall be
calculated using the data points required under §60.13(e)(2) of subpart A of this part.

(9) All valid CEMS data shall be used in calculating average emission concentrations even if the
minimum CEMS data requirements of paragraph (c)(7) of this section are not met.

(10) The CEMS shall be operated according to Performance Specification 11 in appendix B of
this part.

(11) During the correlation testing runs of the CEMS required by Performance Specification 11
in appendix B of this part, PM and O; (or CO,) data shall be collected concurrently (or within a
30- to 60-minute period) by both the continuous emission monitors and performance tests
conducted using the following test methods.

(i) For PM, Method 5 or 5B of appendix A—3 of this part or Method 17 of appendix A—6 of this
part shall be used; and

(ii) After July 1, 2010 or after Method 202 of appendix M of part 51 has been revised to
minimize artifact measurement and notice of that change has been published in the Federal
Register, whichever is later, for condensable PM emissions, Method 202 of appendix M of part
51 shall be used; and

(iii) For O; (or CO»), Method 3A or 3B of appendix A-2 of this part, as applicable shall be used.

(12) Quarterly accuracy determinations and daily calibration drift tests shall be performed in
accordance with procedure 2 in appendix F of this part. Relative Response Audit's must be
performed annually and Response Correlation Audits must be performed every 3 years.

(13) When PM emissions data are not obtained because of CEMS breakdowns, repairs,
calibration checks, and zero and span adjustments, emissions data shall be obtained by using
other monitoring systems as approved by the Administrator or EPA Reference Method 19 of
appendix A of this part to provide, as necessary, valid emissions data for a minimum of 75
percent of total operating hours on a 30-day rolling average.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, D¢ C-137



(14) After July 1, 2011, within 90 days after the date of completing each performance evaluation
required by paragraph (c)(11) of this section, the owner or operator of the affected facility must
either submit the test data to EPA by successfully entering the data electronically into EPA's
WebFIRE data base available at http://cfpub.epa.gov/oarweb/index.cfm? action=fire.main or mail
a copy to: United States Environmental Protection Agency; Energy Strategies Group; 109 TW
Alexander DR; Mail Code: D243-01; RTP, NC 27711.

(d) The owner or operator of an affected facility seeking to demonstrate compliance under
§60.43c(e)(4) shall follow the applicable procedures under §60.48c(f). For residual oil-fired
affected facilities, fuel supplier certifications are only allowed for facilities with heat input
capacities between 2.9 and 8.7 MW (10 to 30 MMBtuw/hr).

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5091, Jan. 28, 2009]
§ 60.46c Emission monitoring for sulfur dioxide.

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (d) and (e) of this section, the owner or operator of an
affected facility subject to the SO, emission limits under §60.42¢ shall install, calibrate, maintain,
and operate a CEMS for measuring SO, concentrations and either O, or CO; concentrations at the
outlet of the SO, control device (or the outlet of the steam generating unit if no SO, control
device is used), and shall record the output of the system. The owner or operator of an affected
facility subject to the percent reduction requirements under §60.42c shall measure SO,
concentrations and either O, or CO, concentrations at both the inlet and outlet of the SO, control
device.

(b) The 1-hour average SO, emission rates measured by a CEMS shall be expressed in ng/J or
1b/MMBtu heat input and shall be used to calculate the average emission rates under §60.42c.
Each 1-hour average SO, emission rate must be based on at least 30 minutes of operation, and
shall be calculated using the data points required under §60.13(h)(2). Hourly SO, emission rates
are not calculated if the affected facility is operated less than 30 minutes in a 1-hour period and
are not counted toward determination of a steam generating unit operating day.

(c) The procedures under §60.13 shall be followed for installation, evaluation, and operation of
the CEMS.

(1) All CEMS shall be operated in accordance with the applicable procedures under Performance
Specifications 1, 2, and 3 of appendix B of this part.

(2) Quarterly accuracy determinations and daily calibration drift tests shall be performed in
accordance with Procedure 1 of appendix F of this part.

(3) For affected facilities subject to the percent reduction requirements under §60.42c, the span
value of the SO, CEMS at the inlet to the SO; control device shall be 125 percent of the
maximum estimated hourly potential SO, emission rate of the fuel combusted, and the span value
of the SO, CEMS at the outlet from the SO, control device shall be 50 percent of the maximum
estimated hourly potential SO; emission rate of the fuel combusted.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-138



(4) For affected facilities that are not subject to the percent reduction requirements of §60.42c,
the span value of the SO, CEMS at the outlet from the SO, control device (or outlet of the steam
generating unit if no SO, control device is used) shall be 125 percent of the maximum estimated
hourly potential SO, emission rate of the fuel combusted.

(d) As an alternative to operating a CEMS at the inlet to the SO, control device (or outlet of the
steam generating unit if no SO, control device is used) as required under paragraph (a) of this
section, an owner or operator may elect to determine the average SO, emission rate by sampling
the fuel prior to combustion. As an alternative to operating a CEMS at the outlet from the SO,
control device (or outlet of the steam generating unit if no SO, control device is used) as required
under paragraph (a) of this section, an owner or operator may elect to determine the average SO,
emission rate by using Method 6B of appendix A of this part. Fuel sampling shall be conducted
pursuant to either paragraph (d)(1) or (d)(2) of this section. Method 6B of appendix A of this part
shall be conducted pursuant to paragraph (d)(3) of this section.

(1) For affected facilities combusting coal or oil, coal or oil samples shall be collected daily in an
_ as-fired condition at the inlet to the steam generating unit and analyzed for sulfur content and
heat content according the Method 19 of appendix A of this part. Method 19 of appendix A of
this part provides procedures for converting these measurements into the format to be used in
calculating the average SO; input rate.

(2) As-an alternative fuel sampling procedure for affected facilities combusting oil, oil samples
may be collected from the fuel tank for each steam generating unit immediately after the fuel
tank is filled and before any oil is combusted. The owner or operator of the affected facility shall
analyze the oil sample to determine the sulfur content of the oil. If a partially empty fuel tank is
refilled, a new sample and analysis of the fuel in the tank would be required upon filling. Results
of the fuel analysis taken after each new shipment of oil is received shall be used as the daily
value when calculating the 30-day rolling average until the next shipment is received. If the fuel
analysis shows that the sulfur content in the fuel tank is greater than 0.5 weight percent sulfur,
the owner or operator shall ensure that the sulfur content of subsequent oil shipments is low
enough to cause the 30-day rolling average sulfur content to be 0.5 weight percent sulfur or less.

(3) Method 6B of appendix A of this part may be used in lieu of CEMS to measure SO; at the
inlet or outlet of the SO, control system. An initial stratification test is required to verify the
adequacy of the Method 6B of appendix A of this part sampling location. The stratification test
shall consist of three paired runs of a suitable SO, and CO, measurement train operated at the
candidate location and a second similar train operated according to the procedures in §3.2 and
the applicable procedures in section 7 of Performance Specification 2 of appendix B of this part.
Method 6B of appendix A of this part, Method 6A of appendix A of this part, or a combination
of Methods 6 and 3 of appendix A of this part or Methods 6C and 3A of appendix A of this part
are suitable measurement techniques. If Method 6B of appendix A of this part is used for the
second train, sampling time and timer operation may be adjusted for the stratification test as long
as an adequate sample volume is collected; however, both sampling trains are to be operated
similarly. For the location to be adequate for Method 6B of appendix A of this part 24-hour
tests, the mean of the absolute difference between the three paired runs must be less than 10
percent (0.10).

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-139



(e) The monitoring requirements of paragraphs (a) and (d) of this section shall not apply to
affected facilities subject to §60.42c(h) (1), (2), or (3) where the owner or operator of the
affected facility seeks to demonstrate compliance with the SO, standards based on fuel supplier
certification, as described under §60.48c(f), as applicable.

(f) The owner or operator of an affected facility operating a CEMS pursuant to paragraph (a) of
this section, or conducting as-fired fuel sampling pursuant to paragraph (d)(1) of this section,
shall obtain emission data for at least 75 percent of the operating hours in at least 22 out of 30
successive steam generating unit operating days. If this minimum data requirement is not met
with a single monitoring system, the owner or operator of the affected facility shall supplement
the emission data with data collected with other monitoring systems as approved by the
Administrator.

§ 60.47¢ Emission monitoring for particulate matter.

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (c), (d), (€), (f), and (g) of this section, the owner or
operator of an affected facility combusting coal, oil, or wood that is subject to the opacity
standards under §60.43c shall install, calibrate, maintain, and operate a continuous opacity
monitoring system (COMS) for measuring the opacity of the emissions discharged to the
atmosphere and record the output of the system. The owner or operator of an affected facility
subject to an opacity standard in §60.43c(c) and that is not required to install a COMS due to
paragraphs (c), (d), (e), or (f) of this section that elects not to install a COMS shall conduct a
performance test using Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part and the procedures in §60.11 to
demonstrate compliance with the applicable limit in §60.43c and shall comply with either
paragraphs (a)(1), (a)(2), or (a)(3) of this section. If during the initial 60 minutes of observation
all 6-minute averages are less than 10 percent and all individual 15-second observations are less
than or equal to 20 percent, the observation period may be reduced from 3 hours to 60 minutes.

(1) Except as provided in paragraph (a)(2) and (a)(3) of this section, the owner or operator shall
conduct subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance tests using the
procedures in paragraph (a) of this section according to the applicable schedule in paragraphs
(a)(1)(i) through (a)(1)(iv) of this section, as determined by the most recent Method 9 of
appendix A—4 of this part performance test results.

(1) If no visible emissions are observed, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part
performance test must be completed within 12 calendar months from the date that the most
recent performance test was conducted;

(ii) If visible emissions are observed but the maximum 6-minute average opacity is less than or
equal to 5 percent, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test must be
completed within 6 calendar months from the date that the most recent performance test was
conducted;

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-140



(iii) If the maximum 6-minute average opacity is greater than 5 percent but less than or equal to
10 percent, a subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test must be
completed within 3 calendar months from the date that the most recent performance test was
conducted; or

(iv) If the maximum 6-minute average opacity is greater than 10 percent, a subsequent Method 9
of appendix A—4 of this part performance test must be completed within 30 calendar days from
the date that the most recent performance test was conducted.

(2) If the maximum 6-minute opacity is less than 10 percent during the most recent Method 9 of
appendix A—4 of this part performance test, the owner or operator may, as an alternative to
performing subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance tests, elect to
perform subsequent monitoring using Method 22 of appendix A—7 of this part according to the
procedures specified in paragraphs (a)(2)(i) and (ii) of this section.

(i) The owner or operator shall conduct 10 minute observations (during normal operation) each
operating day the affected facility fires fuel for which an opacity standard is applicable using
Method 22 of appendix A—7 of this part and demonstrate that the sum of the occurrences of any
visible emissions is not in excess of 5 percent of the observation period (i.e., 30 seconds per 10
minute period). If the sum of the occurrence of any visible emissions is greater than 30 seconds
during the initial 10 minute observation, immediately conduct a 30 minute observation. If the
sum of the occurrence of visible emissions is greater than 5 percent of the observation period
(i.e., 90 seconds per 30 minute period) the owner or operator shall either document and adjust the
operation of the facility and demonstrate within 24 hours that the sum of the occurrence of
visible emissions is equal to or less than 5 percent during a 30 minute observation (i.e., 90
seconds) or conduct a new Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part performance test using the
procedures in paragraph (a) of this section within 30 calendar days according to the requirements
in §60.45c(a)(8).

(i) If no visible emissions are observed for 30 operating days during which an opacity standard
is applicable, observations can be reduced to once every 7 operating days during which an
opacity standard is applicable. If any visible emissions are observed, daily observations shall be
resumed.

(3) If the maximum 6-minute opacity is less than 10 percent during the most recent Method 9 of
appendix A—4 of this part performance test, the owner or operator may, as an alternative to
performing subsequent Method 9 of appendix A—4 performance tests, elect to perform
subsequent monitoring using a digital opacity compliance system according to a site-specific
monitoring plan approved by the Administrator. The observations shall be similar, but not
necessarily identical, to the requirements in paragraph (a)(2) of this section. For reference
purposes in preparing the monitoring plan, see OAQPS “Determination of Visible Emission
Opacity from Stationary Sources Using Computer-Based Photographic Analysis Systems.” This
document is available from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA); Office of Air
Quality and Planning Standards; Sector Policies and Programs Division; Measurement Policy
Group (D243-02), Research Triangle Park, NC 27711. This document is also available on the

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-141



Technology Transfer Network (TTN) under Emission Measurement Center Preliminary
Methods.

(b) All COMS shall be operated in accordance with the applicable procedures under Performance
Specification 1 of appendix B of this part. The span value of the opacity COMS shall be
between 60 and 80 percent.

(c) Owners and operators of an affected facilities that burn only distillate oil that contains no
more than 0.5 weight percent sulfur and/or liquid or gaseous fuels with potential sulfur dioxide
emission rates of 26 ng/J (0.060 1b/MMBtu) heat input or less and that do not use a post-
combustion technology to reduce SO, or PM emissions and that are subject to an opacity
standard in §60.43¢c(c) are not required to operate a COMS if they follow the applicable
procedures in §60.48c(f).

(d) Owners or operators complying with the PM emission limit by using a PM CEMS must
calibrate, maintain, operate, and record the output of the system for PM emissions discharged to
the atmosphere as specified in §60.45¢c(c). The CEMS specified in paragraph §60.45¢(c) shall be
operated and data recorded during all periods of operation of the affected facility except for
CEMS breakdowns and repairs. Data is recorded during calibration checks, and zero and span
adjustments.

(e) Owners and operators of an affected facility that is subject to an opacity standard in
§60.43¢(c) and that does not use post-combustion technology (except a wet scrubber) for
reducing PM, SO,, or carbon monoxide (CO) emissions, burns only gaseous fuels or fuel oils
that contain less than or equal to 0.5 weight percent sulfur, and is operated such that emissions of
CO discharged to the atmosphere from the affected facility are maintained at levels less than or
equal to 0.15 Ib/MMBtu on a boiler operating day average basis is not required to operate a
COMS. Owners and operators of affected facilities electing to comply with this paragraph must
demonstrate compliance according to the procedures specified in paragraphs (e)(1) through (4) of
this section; or

(1) You must monitor CO emissions using a CEMS according to the procedures specified in
paragraphs (e)(1)(i) through (iv) of this section.

(i) The CO CEMS must be installed, certified, maintained, and operated according to the
provisions in §60.58b(i)(3) of subpart Eb of this part.

(i1) Each 1-hour CO emissions average is calculated using the data points generated by the CO
CEMS expressed in parts per million by volume corrected to 3 percent oxygen (dry basis).

(iii) At a minimum, valid 1-hour CO emissions averages must be obtained for at least 90 percent
of the operating hours on a 30-day rolling average basis. The 1-hour averages are calculated
using the data points required in §60.13(h)(2).

(iv) Quarterly accuracy determinations and daily calibration drift tests for the CO CEMS must be
performed in accordance with procedure 1 in appendix F of this part.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-142



(2) You must calculate the 1-hour average CO emissions levels for each steam generating unit
operating day by multiplying the average hourly CO output concentration measured by the CO
CEMS times the corresponding average hourly flue gas flow rate and divided by the
corresponding average hourly heat input to the affected source. The 24-hour average CO
emission level is determined by calculating the arithmetic average of the hourly CO emission
levels computed for each steam generating unit operating day.

(3) You must evaluate the preceding 24-hour average CO emission level each steam generating
unit operating day excluding periods of affected source startup, shutdown, or malfunction. If the
24-hour average CO emission level is greater than 0.15 Ib/MMBtu, you must initiate
investigation of the relevant equipment and control systems within 24 hours of the first discovery
of the high emission incident and, take the appropriate corrective action as soon as practicable to
adjust control settings or repair equipment to reduce the 24-hour average CO emission level to
0.15 Ib/MMBtu or less.

(4) You must record the CO measurements and calculations performed according to paragraph
(e) of this section and any corrective actions taken. The record of corrective action taken must
include the date and time during which the 24-hour average CO emission level was greater than
0.15 Ib/MMBtu, and the date, time, and description of the corrective action.

(f) Owners and operators of an affected facility that is subject to an opacity standard in
§60.43¢c(c) and that uses a bag leak detection system to monitor the performance of a fabric filter
(baghouse) according to the most recent requirements in section §60.48Da of this part is not
required to operate a COMS.

(g) Owners and operators of an affected facility that is subject to an opacity standard in
§60.43c(c) and that burns only gaseous fuels or fuel oils that contain less than or equal to 0.5
weight percent sulfur and operates according to a written site-specific monitoring plan approved
by the permitting authority is not required to operate a COMS. This monitoring plan must
include procedures and criteria for establishing and monitoring specific parameters for the
affected facility indicative of compliance with the opacity standard.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5091, Jan. 28, 2009]

§ 60.48c Reporting and recordkeeping requirements.

(a) The owner or operator of each affected facility shall submit notification of the date of
construction or reconstruction and actual startup, as provided by §60.7 of this part. This

notification shall include:

(1) The design heat input capacity of the affected facility and identification of fuels to be
combusted in the affected facility.

(2) If applicable, a copy of any federally enforceable requirement that limits the annual capacity
factor for any fuel or mixture of fuels under §60.42c, or §60.43c.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-143



(3) The annual capacity factor at which the owner or operator anticipates operating the affected
facility based on all fuels fired and based on each individual fuel fired.

(4) Notification if an emerging technology will be used for controlling SO, emissions. The
Administrator will examine the description of the control device and will determine whether the
technology qualifies as an emerging technology. In making this determination, the
Administrator may require the owner or operator of the affected facility to submit additional
information concerning the control device. The affected facility is subject to the provisions of
§60.42c(a) or (b)(1), unless and until this determination is made by the Administrator.

(b) The owner or operator of each affected facility subject to the SO, emission limits of §60.42c,
or the PM or opacity limits of §60.43c, shall submit to the Administrator the performance test
data from the initial and any subsequent performance tests and, if applicable, the performance
evaluation of the CEMS and/or COMS using the applicable performance specifications in
appendix B of this part.

(c) In addition to the applicable requirements in §60.7, the owner or operator of an affected
facility subject to the opacity limits in §60.43c(c) shall submit excess emission reports for any
excess emissions from the affected facility that occur during the reporting period and maintain
records according to the requirements specified in paragraphs (c)(1) through (3) of this section,
as applicable to the visible emissions monitoring method used.

(1) For each performance test conducted using Method 9 of appendix A—4 of this part, the owner
or operator shall keep the records including the information specified in paragraphs (c)(1)(i)
through (iii) of this section.

(i) Dates and time intervals of all opacity observation periods;

(ii) Name, affiliation, and copy of current visible emission reading certification for each visible
emission observer participating in the performance test; and

(iii) Copies of all visible emission observer opacity field data sheets;

(2) For each performance test conducted using Method 22 of appendix A—4 of this part, the
owner or operator shall keep the records including the information specified in paragraphs
(c)(2)(i) through (iv) of this section.

(i) Dates and time intervals of all visible emissions observation periods;

(ii) Name and affiliation for each visible emission observer participating in the performance test;
(iii) Copies of all visible emission observer opacity field data sheets; and

(iv) Documentation of any adjustments made and the time the adjustments were completed to the

affected facility operation by the owner or operator to demonstrate compliance with the
applicable monitoring requirements.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-144



(3) For each digital opacity compliance system, the owner or operator shall maintain records and
submit reports according to the requirements specified in the site-specific monitoring plan
approved by the Administrator

(d) The owner or operator of each affected facility subject to the SO, emission limits, fuel oil
sulfur limits, or percent reduction requirements under §60.42c shall submit reports to the
Administrator.

(e) The owner or operator of each affected facility subject to the SO, emission limits, fuel oil
sulfur limits, or percent reduction requirements under §60.42c shall keep records and submit
reports as required under paragraph (d) of this section, including the following information, as
applicable.

(1) Calendar dates covered in the reporting period.

(2) Each 30-day average SO, emission rate (ng/J or [/MMBtu), or 30-day average sulfur content
(weight percent), calculated during the reporting period, ending with the last 30-day period;
reasons for any noncompliance with the emission standards; and a description of corrective
actions taken. '

(3) Each 30-day average percent of potential SO, emission rate calculated during the reporting
period, ending with the last 30-day period; reasons for any noncompliance with the emission
standards; and a description of the corrective actions taken.

(4) Identification of any steam generating unit operating days for which SO, or diluent (O, or
CO,) data have not been obtained by an approved method for at least 75 percent of the operating
hours; justification for not obtaining sufficient data; and a description of corrective actions taken.

(5) Identification of any times when emissions data have been excluded from the calculation of
average emission rates; justification for excluding data; and a description of corrective actions
taken if data have been excluded for periods other than those during which coal or oil were not
combusted in the steam generating unit.

(6) Identification of the F factor used in calculations, method of determination, and type of fuel
combusted.

(7) Identification of whether averages have been obtained based on CEMS rather than manual
sampling methods.

(8) If a CEMS is used, identification of any times when the pollutant concentration exceeded the
full span of the CEMS.

(9) If a CEMS is used, description of any modifications to the CEMS that could affect the ability
of the CEMS to comply with Performance Specifications 2 or 3 of appendix B of this part.

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-145



(10) If a CEMS is used, results of daily CEMS drift tests and quarterly accuracy assessments as
required under appendix F, Procedure 1 of this part.

(11) If fuel supplier certification is used to demonstrate compliance, records of fuel supplier
certification as described under paragraph (f)(1), (2), (3), or (4) of this section, as applicable. In
addition to records of fuel supplier certifications, the report shall include a certified statement
signed by the owner or operator of the affected facility that the records of fuel supplier
certifications submitted represent all of the fuel combusted during the reporting period.

(f) Fuel supplier certification shall include the following information:

(1) For distillate oil:

(i) The name of the oil supplier;

(i) A statement from the oil supplier that the oil complies with the specifications under the
definition of distillate oil in §60.41c; and

(iii) The sulfur content or maximum sulfur content of the oil.

(2) For residual oil:

(i) The name of the oil supplier;

(ii) The location of the oil when the sample was drawn for analysis to determine the sulfur
content of the oil, specifically including whether the oil was sampled as delivered to the affected
facility, or whether the sample was drawn from oil in storage at the oil supplier's or oil refiner's
facility, or other location;

(iii) The sulfur content of the oil from which the shipment came (or of the shipment itself); and
(iv) The method used to determine the sulfur content of the oil.

(3) For coal:

(i) The name of the coal supplier;

(ii) The location of the coal when the sample was collected for analysis to determine the
properties of the coal, specifically including whether the coal was sampled as delivered to the
affected facility or whether the sample was collected from coal in storage at the mine, at a coal
preparation plant, at a coal supplier's facility, or at another location. The certification shall
include the name of the coal mine (and coal seam), coal storage facility, or coal preparation plant

(where the sample was collected);

(iii) The results of the analysis of the coal from which the shipment came (or of the shipment
itself) including the sulfur content, moisture content, ash content, and heat content; and

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-146



(iv) The methods used to determine the properties of the coal.
(4) For other fuels:
(i) The name of the supplier of the fuel;

(ii) The potential sulfur emissions rate or maximum potential sulfur emissions rate of the fuel in
ng/J heat input; and

(iii) The method used to determine the potential sulfur emissions rate of the fuel.

(g)(1) Except as provided under paragraphs (g)(2) and (g)(3) of this section, the owner or
operator of each affected facility shall record and maintain records of the amount of each fuel
combusted during each operating day.

(2) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (g)(1) of this section, the owner or
operator of an affected facility that combusts only natural gas, wood, fuels using fuel
certification in §60.48¢(f) to demonstrate compliance with the SO; standard, fuels not subject to
an emissions standard (excluding opacity), or a mixture of these fuels may elect to record and
maintain records of the amount of each fuel combusted during each calendar month.

(3) As an alternative to meeting the requirements of paragraph (g)(1) of this section, the owner or
operator of an affected facility or multiple affected facilities located on a contiguous property
unit where the only fuels combusted in any steam generating unit (including steam generating
units not subject to this subpart) at that property are natural gas, wood, distillate oil meeting the
most current requirements in §60.42C to use fuel certification to demonstrate compliance with
the SO, standard, and/or fuels, excluding coal and residual oil, not subject to an emissions
standard (excluding opacity) may elect to record and maintain records of the total amount of
each steam generating unit fuel delivered to that property during each calendar month.

(h) The owner or operator of each affected facility subject to a federally enforceable requirement
limiting the annual capacity factor for any fuel or mixture of fuels under §60.42¢c or §60.43c shall
calculate the annual capacity factor individually for each fuel combusted. The annual capacity
factor is determined on a 12-month rolling average basis with a new annual capacity factor
calculated at the end of the calendar month.

(i) All records required under this section shall be maintained by the owner or operator of the
affected facility for a period of two years following the date of such record.

() The reporting period for the reports required under this subpart is each six-month period. All
reports shall be submitted to the Administrator and shall be postmarked by the 30th day
following the end of the reporting period.

[72 FR 32759, June 13, 2007, as amended at 74 FR 5091, Jan. 28, 2009]

Proposed Federal NSPS Subparts D, Da, Db, Dc C-147



ATTACHMENT D

AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

ADOPTION BY REFERENCE OF
TITLE 40 CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATION (CFR) PART 60
NEW SOURCE PERFORMANCE STANDARDS:

SUBPART D - STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR FOSSIL-FUEL-FIRED STEAM
GENERATORS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION IS COMMENCED
AFTER AUGUST 17, 1971

SUBPART Da - STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR ELECTRIC UTILITY STEAM
GENERATING UNITS FOR WHICH CONSTRUCTION IS COMMENCED
AFTER SEPTEMBER 18, 1978

SUBPART Db — STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR INDUSTRIAL-COMMERCIAL-
INSTITUTIONAL STEAM GENERATING UNITS

SUBPART D¢ - STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE FOR SMALL INDUSTRIAL
COMMERCIAL-INSTITUTIONAL STEAM GENERATING UNITS

WORKSHOP REPORT

Workshop notices were mailed to affected facilities in San Diego County that are subject to Title
40, Chapter 1, Part 60 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Subparts D, Da, Db, or Dc. Notices
were also mailed to all Economic Development Corporations and Chambers of Commerce in San
Diego County, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, the California Air Resources Board,
and other interested parties.

Two workshops were conducted by the Air Pollution Control District on April 16, 2009. A
workshop addressing Subparts D and Da was attended by one person and was followed by a
workshop addressing Subparts Db and Dc, which was attended by two people.

No comments were received during either workshop regarding adoption by reference of the four
New Source Performance Standards listed above.

RR:jlm
04/30/09





